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Financial Highlights

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR

Earned Premiums

Net Investment Income

Other income

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings
Total Revenues

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations
Net Income (Loss)

Per Unrestricted Share:
Income {Loss) from Continuing Operations
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations
Net Income (Loss)

Per Unrestricted Share Assuming Dilution:
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations
Net Income (Loss)

Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)

AT YEAR END

Total Assets

Insurance Reserves

Unearned Premiums

Certificates of Deposits

Notes Payable <

All Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Book Value Per Share

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ 2,173.6 $ 2,2894 $ 24555 S 2,376.6 $ 2,286.9
298.0 325.7 319.9 208.5 284.9
1.0 1.3 2.5 41 3.5
33.7 426 24.6 59.2 95.5
(11.3) (16.5) (50.4) (152.9) (33.0)
$ 24950 $ 26425 $ 2,7521 $§ 2,4955 S 2,637.8
$ 709 $ 1691 $ 1675 S (15.7) $ 2169
12.8 15.5 (2.8) (13.9) (11.5)
S 837 $ 1846 $ 1647 S (29.6) $  205.4
$ 117 $ 273 § 269 $ (0.25) $ 3.30
0.21 0.25 (0.05) (0.22) (0.17)
$ 138 $ 298 $ 264 S (0.47) $ 3.13
S 117 $ 273 S 269 S (0.25) § 3.28
- 0.21 0.25 (0.05) (0.22) (0.17)
1.38 298 § 264 S (0.47) $ 3.11
096 $ 088 S 1.07 $ 1.88 S 1.82
$ 8,085.9 8,3585 $ 8,573.5 8,818.8 $§ 9,394.4
4,131.8 $ 4,1824 $ 4,239.3 42413 $ 3,855.9
666.2 678.6 724.9 733.5 722.2
- 321.4 682.4 1,110.8 1,274.3
- 610.6 609.8 561.4 560.8 560.1
461.2 452.9 447.9 523.8 690.9
5,869.8 6,245.1 6,655.9 7,170.2 7,103.4
2,216.1 2,113.4 1,917.6 1,648.6 2,291.0
8,085.9 8,3585 S 8,573.5 8,818.8 $ 9,394.4
$ 3678 S 3461 S 3075 S 2646 § 3565




Donald G. Southwell

To Our Shareholders,

Reflecting on 2011, we saw continued pressures in the
marketplace along with challenging weather patterns, yet
we remained focused on strengthening our balance sheet
and executing on our strategic priorities, all while
introducing our new Kemper name.

I'll touch on our progress for each of our priorities as well
as initiatives important to our shareholders:

e |mproving profitability in each of our businesses

e Optimizing our investment portfolio to maximize risk-
adjusted returns

e Managing capital to deliver shareholder value

e Ensuring an orderly wind-down of Fireside Bank
o Fulfilling our promises to our policyholders

Introducing Kemper Corporation

On August 25, 2011 we rang the opening bell at the New York
Stock Exchange in celebration of our name change to Kemper
Corporation. We had been using the Kemper name in one of
our businesses under license from a third party. Our agents and
customers have valued the Kemper brand censistently, so when
the opportunity to own the name arose in 2010, we secured the
rights to the Kemper name for all our businesses. We are
pleased with our re-branding progress and the market’s
overwhelmingly positive reaction to our new identity.

Improving profitability

Catastrophes and weather-related losses presented tough
challenges across the property and casualty insurance industry,
many of which set new loss records:

e Total 2011 insured catastrophe losses in the U.S. were
$35.9 billion, or 50 percent higher than the average of the
last 10 years and the 5th highest on record

e  Losses from thunderstorms, including tornadoes and hail,
exceeded $25 billion — more than twice the previous
record and causing the most fatalities in over 75 years

e  Texas suffered its most damaging wildfires in recorded
history

Given Kemper’s diverse product offerings, and with customers
in nearly every state, we were not immune to these weather
events. In total, we incurred $164 million of pre-tax
catastrophe losses, or $107 million after tax, the majority of
which were in our Preferred business. As significant as this
was to the bottom line; it is the nature of our business —
customers will suffer losses and we will pay claims. It’s the
commitment we make to our policyholders — to be there if
things go wrong and to live up to our promise.

Stepping back from the storms of 2011 and looking at the
underlying performance across our property and casualty
businesses, we are pleased with the progress we’ve made in two
of our three business units. Our Preferred business made clear
progress again during 2011 to shift its business mix. Sales and
total policies in force of packaged auto and home products
continue to rise in target markets. These product offerings tend
to have better retention and loss performance while delivering
higher returns over their lifetimes. Our Specialty business also
made progress in several areas during the past year, including
refined pricing segmentation and initiatives to increase
customer retention.

The Direct business did not meet our performance goals in
2011. During the year, we took several steps to improve
results; among them, we launched the newest product with
enhanced pricing segmentaZion in 14 states to date, we
completed re-pricing actions on approximately 56 percent of
the in-force book, and we shut off most new business in three
challenging states (NY, FL and M) due to significant losses in
personal injury protection and bodily injury coverages. The
Direct business announced that it will exit direct auto programs
in Michigan in early April 2012 and is taking several actions to
reduce the in-force book in New York and Florida. Loss
performance in the remaining states has progressed
meaningfully over the last vear. We continue to believe in the
investment potential and opportunity of direct distribution and
are evaluating several further actions to shift this business to
profitability.

Our Life and Health group delivered strong earnings again in
2011, with total operating profit up 9 percent. Earned
premiums rose modestly, and customer persistency remained
stable. The Reserve National business delivered record revenue
in the year, while introducing new products to address the
changing market needs. The Kemper Home Service



Companies enhanced their product offerings and the four-year
agent retention trend continues to rise.

Optimizing our investment portfolio

We have managed Kemper’s investment portfolio to maximize
both after-tax investment income and total return over the long
term, while balancing risk and return. Overall, our portfolio
has delivered on its long term income and return goals. In
2011, it generated a pre-tax equivalent book yield of 5.6
percerit, which was above our plan, while producing a total
return of 9.3 percent, which was above our benchmark.

In 2011, we remained focused predominantly on a highly-rated
core portfolio of fixed maturities, comprising $4.8 billion, or
77 percent, of the total investment portfolio at year end. On
average, these assets are rated A+ and are well diversified in
terms of issuer, sector, duration and geographic exposure.
Around this core portfolio, we maintain a diversified mix of
mostly dividend-paying common and preferred stocks, a
portfolio of income-focused limited partnership investments
and an internally-managed portfolio of wholly-owned real
estate. We have always had negligible exposure to sub-prime
residential mortgage-backed securities, non-U.S. sovereign
debt and derivatives — and that remains unchanged. We
reduced our large, single-name common stock exposures in the
portfolio substantially over the past few years. During 2011,
we contributed one of our last material holdings, Intermec, to
our pension fund to further strengthen it while also enhancing
our investment portfolio and tax efficiency. The pension fund
continued to sell down its position in Intermec at a modest
gain. We will continue to manage the portfolio proactively to
perform amidst changing economic, business and investment
market conditions.

Managing capital to deliver shareholder value

Kemper ended the year with $2.2 billion of shareholders’
equity, up 5 percent over 2010 and an increase of 41 percent
since the low point of the financial crisis at the end of the first
quarter of 2009. The combination of increasing asset
valuations and effective capital management has positioned us
well for the future. Our capital deployment priorities
encompass three key areas:

e  Profitable organic growth

e  Considering opportunistic acquisitions that are accretive to
our portfolio of companies

e Returning capital to our shareholders through dividends
and share repurchases

What can you expect from us?

During 2011, we repurchased about 940,000 shares of common
stock and increased the common stock dividend 9 percent to
$0.24 per quarter. In total, considering both dividends and
common stock repurchases, Kemper returned $86 million to
shareholders in 2011. Looking ahead, we remain focused on
improving our return on equity, increasing our capital
flexibility and improving our ratings over time.

Winding down Fireside Bank

We’ve substantially completed our wind down of Fireside
Bank, exceeding our original expectations on several fronts.
We sold our active loan portfolio at a modest gain and returned
$250 million of capital to the holding company in October.
The plan to complete the wind down is on track, after which
we will return the remaining capital to Kemper. I'm
particularly proud of how our team delivered on this plan.

Fulfilling our promises to our policyholders

I want to say thank you to the more than six million
policyholders whom we serve across our operating companies.
It is because of you that the Kemper team of over 6,500
employees comes to work every day. During 2011, we made
over $1.6 billion of claim and benefit payments to, or on behalf
of, our customers.

Although we changed our name in 2011, our heritage remains
one of fulfilling our promises. ..taking good care of the people
who keep us in business. With that in mind I want to recognize
one of our leaders who helped build our company, our friend
and former chairman and chief executive officer, Jerry Jerome,
who passed away in December 2011. Jerry’s leadership helped
to establish the platform for financial strength that we are
building on today.

Our teams across the business are energized and well-
positioned to capitalize on the opportunities before us while
navigating the challenges with confidence.

February 17, 2012

ol A St

Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

A commitment to financial excellence as we deliver straightforward

products and services tailored to meet the needs of our customers.

All from a name you can trust.




UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

B ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF

1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
Commission file number: 001-18298
[
Kemper Corporation
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware 95-4255452
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
One East Wacker Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60601
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(312) 661-4600
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $0.10 par value per share New York Stock Exchange
Preferred Share Purchase Rights
pursuant to Rights Agreement New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act. Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Website, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a

CEINTY

smaller reporting company. See definition of “large accelerated filer”,“accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer [1 Non-accelerated filer [1 Smaller Reporting Company [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes O No

As of June 30, 2011, the aggregate market value of the registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was
$1.7 billion based on the closing sale price as reported on the New York Stock Exchange. Solely for purposes of this
calculation, all executive officers and directors of the registrant are considered affiliates.

Registrant had 60,367,195 shares of common stock outstanding as of February 14, 2012.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 2, 2012 are incorporated by
reference into Part I11.



Table of Contents

Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 1
Part1
TEEIM 1. BUSIIESS . c.viueetiietetiitieie ittt et ettt e et ea et sbee e aee e re s be st esbesbesees s et ebe st astensenssseesesbesbase s essassabansesbensensensass 3
Ttem 1A, RISK FACOTS ...cuiiiteiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt sttt b ettt e st e s et e e abe s ane 16
Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff COMMENES ........coeoiriireiiirierniee ittt ree e etsit st e st e sae st et e eseesesaesbessesesseesesressessennens 20
TEEIML 2. PIOPEITIES .. euetiteiietiit it sttt st eatcteete st et et e e e e s re eaeebesbe st eese s coeesesst e bt ebeasensenteabeseestasasnesansasteneanesneasessans 20
[tem 3. Legal PrOCEEAINGS ..c.c.evveuiiiieiieintetieetert ettt sttt st b e b bbbt b et et et saa e ase st e be s ebansneas 21
Item4.  (Removed and RESEIVEM) .......coiiiuiiiniiiniiieteierrtei ettt ettt ettt s s st ene s beaeseanas 21
Part 11

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity -

SECUIITIES -...veereureiieenieseemtettreeeaeeseer e resteseeute st saesessebeese e sbeneaneeatensen et e sene et essenaasassertenseassnnaseasansaneensennensasensens 22
Item 6. Selected FINancial Datal........cccooiiceeiriiiieiniiieeiieestestee et ete bt ee e sse s e st eeaeshesaae s b e baestassesnsesbeesnentesas 24
Item7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations....................... 25
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market RisK........ccccooeoeiiiiiincriiienneecceee e 63
Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data............cc.ccceiiiriiiniinnieinerecccencereter et nans 65
Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure....................... 121
Item 9A. Controls and PrOCEAULES..........eeciiiieiiiieiiirreenteri et ee ettt ettt et s et e e s et ebe et e st aennessenesseaasessnsnsn 121
Item 9B.  Other INfOIrMAtiON. ... ccccirtiruiiitiieei ettt e st st e et ste et et e st et e essasaestereeabesbaensaanaessssnesbesnsensesneas 122
Part I1I
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate GOVEINAICE ..........cevvveerieuenrerenrereeereeeieristesessessaeesenessenssseses 123
Item 11.  EXECUtiVE COMPENSALION . ...c.c..eiiiiueuirieuiietiiireetrieeserertestese st esee s esest et et b et asestasesesebtstesentssesesaeseseesensssensases 123
Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.... 123
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence...........cecveveeinrerrerverrvnenene. 123
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and SEIVICES ......eceriiierireecirireititiseete e steevestesseseesee e sressesteseee e e ssesressesaessens 123
Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement SChedUIES .........o.ieeieieeieieeee ettt er e eaeeeneseens 124



Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “2011 Annual Report”), including the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Kemper Corporation, formerly known as Unitrin, Inc. (“Kemper™), and its subsidiaries (individually and
collectively referred to herein as the “Company”) and the notes thereto appearing in Item 8 herein (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements™), the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations appearing in Item 7
herein (the “MD&A”) and the other Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules filed as a part hereof or incorporated by
reference herein may contain or incorporate by reference information that includes or is based on forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Forward-looking statements give expectations or forecasts of future events. The reader can identify these statements by the fact
that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. They use words such as “believe(s),” “goal(s),” “target(s),” “estimate
(s),” “anticipate(s),” “forecast(s),” “project(s),” “plan(s),” “intend(s),” “expect(s),” “might,” “may” and other words and terms
of similar meaning in connection with a discussion of future operating, financial performance or financial condition. Forward-
looking statements, in particular, include statements relating to future actions, prospective services or products, future
performance or results of current and anticipated services or products, sales efforts, expenses, the outcome of contingencies
such as legal proceedings, trends in operations and financial results.
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Any or all forward-looking statements may turn out to be wrong, and, accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on such statements, which speak only as of the date of this 2011 Annual Report. These statements are based on current
expectations and the current economic environment. They involve a number of risks and uncertainties that are difficult to
predict. These statements are not guarantees of future performance; actual results could differ materially from those expressed
or implied in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be affected by inaccurate assumptions or by
known or unknown risks and uncertainties. The reader should consider the following list of general factors that could affect the
Company’s future results and financial condition, as well as those discussed below under Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” in this 2011
Annual Report.

Among the general factors that could cause actual results and financial condition to differ materially from estimated results and
financial condition are:

» The incidence, frequency, and severity of catastrophes occurring in any particular reporting period or geographic
concentration, including natural disasters, pandemics and terrorist attacks or other man-made events;

»  The number and severity of insurance claims (including those associated with catastrophe losses) and their impact on
the adequacy of loss reserves;

»  Changes in facts and circumstances affecting assumptions used in determining loss and LAE reserves;

+  The impact of inflation on insurance claims, including, but not limited to, the effects attributed to scarcity of resources
available to rebuild damaged structures, including labor and materials and the amount of salvage value recovered for
damaged property;

*  Changes in the pricing or availability of reinsurance, or in the financial condition of reinsurers and amounts
recoverable therefrom,

¢ Orders, interpretations or other actions by regulators that impact the reporting, adjustment and payment of claims;

»  The impact of residual market assessments and assessments for insurance industry insolvencies;

»  Changes in industry trends and significant industry developments;

*  Uncertainties related to regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, license applications and similar matters;

+  Developments related to insurance policy claims and coverage issues, including, but not limited to, interpretations or
decisions by courts or regulators that may govern or influence such issues arising with respect to losses incurred in
connection with hurricanes and other catastrophes;

»  Changes in ratings by credit ratings agencies, including A.M. Best Co., Inc. (“A.M. Best”);

»  Adverse outcomes in litigation or other legal or regulatory proceedings involving Kemper or its subsidiaries or
affiliates;

*  Regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or demand for, the Company’s products or services;

+  Governmental actions, including, but not limited to, implementation of the provisions of the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act, the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (the “Health Care Acts”) and the
Dodd-Frank Act, new laws or regulations or court decisions interpreting existing laws and regulations or policy
provisions;

»  Changes in distribution channels, methods or costs resulting from changes in laws or regulations, lawsuits or market
forces;

+  Changes in general economic conditions, including performance of financial markets, interest rates, unemployment



rates and fluctuating values of particular investments held by the Company;

»  The level of success and costs expended in realizing economies of scale and implementing significant business
consolidations and technology initiatives;

»  Heightened competition, including, with respect to pricing, entry of new competitors and the development of new
products by new and existing competitors;

+ Increased costs and risks related to data security;

*  Absolute and relative performance of the Company’s products or services; and

«  Other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in Kemper’s filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).

No assurances can be given that the results contemplated in any forward-looking statements will be achieved or will be
achieved in any particular timetable. The Company assumes no obligation to publicly correct or update any forward-looking
statements as a result of events or developments subsequent to the date of this 2011 Annual Report. The reader is advised,
however, to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on related subjects in its filings with the SEC.



PART 1
Item 1. Business.

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide life, health, automobile, homeowners and
other insurance products to individuals and small businesses. Kemper’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments thereto are accessible free of charge through Kemper’s website,
kemper.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials are filed with or furnished to the SEC.

(a) GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS
Change in Name of Company and Re-Branding

On August 25, 2011, Unitrin, Inc. changed its name to Kemper Corporation and began trading on the New York Stock
Exchange under a new ticker symbol, KMPR. During 2011, the Company also began re-branding its business units by renaming
its largest property and casualty business unit as “Kemper Preferred” and its largest life and health insurance business unit as
“Kemper Home Service Companies.” Kemper Preferred had previously been branded under the single name of “Kemper.”
Kemper Home Service Companies had previously used the name “Unitrin Career Agency Companies.” The Company plans to
incorporate the Kemper name in its other business units over time.

Runoff of Automobile Finance Business

During 2011, Kemper’s subsidiary, Fireside Bank, redeemed and closed all certificates of deposits that were outstanding at
December 31, 2010. Accordingly, on October 20, 2011, Fireside Bank requested that the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC”) terminate Fireside Bank’s FDIC insurance, which request was granted on December 8, 2011, effective March 31,
2012.

On September 14, 2011, Fireside Bank sold its active loan portfolio to a subsidiary of Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc. The
Company recognized a gain of $4.5 million from the sale, before tax. Fireside Bank retained its non-active loan portfolio of
previously charged-off loans, which is in run-off. Fireside Bank is accounted for as a discontinued operation in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

On January 13, 2012, the FDIC and the California Department of Financial Institutions (“CDFI”) issued an order terminating
the consent order to which Fireside Bank was a party since 2009.

Kemper Common Stock Repurchases

On February 2, 2011, the Board of Directors approved a new common stock repurchase program. Under this program, Kemper
is authorized to repurchase up to $300 million worth of its common stock. The repurchase program does not have an expiration
date. Repurchases may be made from time to time at prevailing prices in the open market or in privately-negotiated
transactions, subject to market conditions and other factors. Repurchases will be financed through Kemper’s general corporate
funds. Depending on the amount of repurchases and other factors, Kemper may also borrow funds under its existing revolving
credit facility. During 2011, Kemper repurchased 0.9 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $27.4 million
in open market transactions.

In-Kind Contribution to Defined Benefit Pension Plan

On September 14, 2011, the Company made a voluntary contribution of $83.7 million to its defined benefit pension plan. The
contribution consisted of $32.2 million in cash and 7,309,764 shares of Intermec Inc. (“Intermec”) common stock with a fair
value of $51.5 million on the date of contribution. The Company recognized a realized loss of $7.0 million on the contribution
of Intermec common stock. (See Note 17, "Pension Benefits" to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

(b) BUSINESS SEGMENT FINANCIAL DATA

Financial information about Kemper’s business segments for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is contained
in the following sections of this 2011 Annual Report and is incorporated herein by reference: (i) Note 19, “Business Segments,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements; and (ii) MD&A.



(c) DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and small businesses. The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property
and casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses. The Company conducts its continuing operations through four
operating segments: Kemper Preferred ("Preferred"), Unitrin Specialty ("Specialty"), Unitrin Direct ("Direct") and Life and
Health Insurance. Fireside Bank, reported in discontinued operations, is in the final stages of voluntary liquidation. The
Company’s operations are conducted solely in the United States.

Kemper’s subsidiaries employ approximately 6,700 full-time associates supporting its operations, of which approximately 800
are employed in the Preferred segment, 650 are employed in the Specialty segment, 450 are employed in the Direct segment,
450 are shared by the Preferred, Specialty and Direct segments, 3,950 are employed in the Life and Health Insurance segment,
200 are employed at Fireside Bank and the remainder are employed in various corporate and other staff functions.

Property and Casualty Insurance Business
General

The Company’s property and casualty insurance business operations are conducted primarily through the Preferred, Specialty,
and Direct segments. In addition, the Life and Health Insurance segment’s career agents also sell property insurance to its
customers. Collectively, these segments provide automobile, homeowners, renters, fire, and other types of property and casualty
insurance to individuals and commercial automobile insurance to businesses.

Automobile insurance in these segments accounted for 54%, 56% and 59% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums
earned from continuing operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Automobile insurance in these segments accounted for
47%, 49% and 53% of Kemper’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Homeowners insurance in these segments accounted for 14%, 13% and 12% of the Company’s consolidated insurance
premiums eamned from continuing operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Homeowners insurance in these segments
accounted for 12%, 11% and 11% of the Company’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Property insurance indemnifies an insured with an interest in physical property for loss of, or damage to, such property or the
loss of its income-producing abilities. Casualty insurance primarily covers liability for damage to property of, or injury to, a
person or entity other than the insured. In most cases casualty insurance also obligates the insurance company to provide a
defense for the insured in litigation arising out of events covered by the policy.

Preferred and Specialty distribute their products through independent agents who are paid commissions for their services.
Direct distributes its products directly to consumers and through employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other
affinity relationships.

Preferred

Preferred, based in Jacksonville, Florida, conducts business in 38 states and the District of Columbia. In 2011, the following
states provided over half of the premium revenues in this segment: New York (19%), North Carolina (13%), California
(12%) and Texas (10%).

Preferred primarily sells preferred and standard risk automobile and homeowners insurance. Preferred’s insurance products
accounted for 53% of the aggregate insurance premium revenues of the Company’s property and casualty insurance business in
2011. Its insurance products are marketed by approximately 2,700 independent insurance agents to individuals who have
demonstrated favorable risk characteristics and loss history.

Specialty

Specialty, based in Dallas, Texas, conducts business in 21 states, principally in the southwest and western United States. In
2011, the following states provided more than three-fourths of the premium revenues in this segment: California (42%), Texas
(18%), Washington (8%), Louisiana (4%) and Oregon (3%).

Specialty provides personal and commercial automobile insurance to value-minded consumers who have had difficulty
obtaining standard or preferred risk insurance, usually because of their driving records, claims experience or premium payment
history. Specialty’s insurance products accounted for 28% of the aggregate insurance premium revenues of the Company’s



property and casualty insurance business in 2011. Specialty’s products are marketed through approximately 8,000 independent
agents and brokers.

Direct

Direct, based in Chicago, Illinois, markets personal automobile, homeowners and renters insurance through a variety of direct-
to-consumer websites, including its own websites, marketing partners, employer and other affinity-sponsored relationships. The
Direct segment’s automobile insurance products are available in 48 states and the District of Columbia. In 2011, the following
states provided approximately two-thirds of the premium revenues in this segment: New York (15%), Florida (12%), California
(10%), Michigan (8%), Texas (5%), Connecticut (5%), Pennsylvania (5%) and Georgia (5%). Direct’s insurance products
accounted for 14% of the aggregate insurance premium revenues of the Company’s property and casualty insurance business in
2011.

Direct writes a broad spectrum of personal automobile insurance risks ranging from preferred to non-standard personal
automobile insurance risks and competes with companies that sell insurance directly to the consumer and employer-sponsored
voluntary benefit programs, as well as companies that sell through agents. Direct also offers homeowners and renters insurance
across 47 states and the District of Columbia, complementing its direct automobile insurance business.

Property and Casualty Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The Company’s reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) for property and casualty insurance (“Property and
Casualty Insurance Reserves™) are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability for losses and LAE for claims
that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves by business segment at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Business Segments:
PILELEITE ....v sttt ettt et ekt s ees et tss et bk et et e e bbb e s saaas s e s anar s ssensees $ 4162 $ 4205
SPECIALLY ..ttt ettt ettt et ekttt ket ae b e st e s e e et e baebeeaenbenee 225.9 250.8
DHIECE ..ttt ettt be e e n e a bbbt e e a R e e e n et bne 223.9 235.6
Life and Health INSULANCE .......c.oviviiirieirieiciiiiieee ettt set st sttt sb et ebe st abe e ennsreanseneas 83 20.8
Total BUSINESS SEEIMENTS. ...c.cueitirerieieiiriereeterteteeeestaracrstestese s seesbartesnessessssessessestansesaassassessessessersesessenes 874.3 927.7
DiSCONINUEA OPETALIOIIS ....c.ccrevveuiereiieiesctrerereesereet st seeteresesessenestsaebesensstressesesesnsesasesesestesessssnsnsnsasesans 133.0 163.9
UBALIOCAIEA RESEIVES ...o.eveeieenieriitiiitet ettt sttt et b sttt st ae st st s st saac st e b ebentebenteressasaransens 21.8 27.1
Total Property and Casualty InSurance RESEIVES .........cocecrmeiriiniiriienrmeccrneceeeteeieieseese st st e s seseaes $1,029.1 § 1,118.7

Certain reserves acquired in connection with a business acquisition from SCOR Reinsurance Company (“SCOR”) in 2002 (the
“Unallocated Reserves™) are reinsured 100% by an insurance subsidiary of SCOR (see Note 6, “Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The Company does not allocate these reserves to its business
segments.

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed
exposures that may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s Discontinued Operations are predominantly long-tailed exposures, of which $52.6
million was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at December 31, 2011. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 57 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.



The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while minimizing variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and LAE are
fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE, also referred to as “development,” will occur
over time and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements
when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase in net income in the
period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements when the
Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net income. The Company
recognized total favorable development of $33.1 million, $24.9 million and $80.9 million before tax in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Development for each of the Company’s continuing business segments and Unitrin Business Insurance in 2011,
2010 and 2009 was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Continuing Operations:
PIEferTed ....c.eeiieeeieiiie ittt et st sttt a et nene $ 191 § 238 $§ 605
SPECIALLY .ttt et et b ettt b e n e sne b ae b ene 9.4 “.1) 7.9
DILECE 1.ttt sttt ettt st et sttt ee 3.9 6.8 12.1
Life and Health InSUrance............cooeeeveveeereererreeeeecineeeseesveeennes verreerreraeeaentearereennens 2.6 4.5) (2.6)
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net.......co.cceveevevrreereccnnreneneee 35.0 22.0 71.9
Discontinued Operations:
Unitrin BUSINESS INSUIANCE .....c.voveeiiicierricreereeteeeenreeneeteeseesesersesteesessseessessesssesseeseensessenns (1.9) 2.9 3.0
Total Favorable Development, Net..........couivierieeeiiiieieieniisiirceeeeeesresie e ssessese e stessesvens $ 331 $§ 249 $ 809

Development in the Preferred segment comprised a substantial portion of the Company’s development reported in continuing
operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009. See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses—Preferred Development” for additional information. Adverse
development in the Life and Health Insurance segment in 2010 is due primarily to adverse development on certain hurricanes.
See MD&A, “Catastrophes” and “Life and Health Insurance,” for additional information on the impact of catastrophes on the
development reported for the Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment. See MD&A, “Catastrophes,” “Preferred,”
“Specialty,” “Direct,” and “Life and Health Insurance” for the impact of development on the results reported by the Company’s
business segments.

Development in Unitrin Business Insurance comprised all of the Company’s development reported in discontinued operations.
In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to June 1, 2008, the effective date of the sale.

See Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a tabular reconciliation
for the three most recent annual periods setting forth the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves as of the
beginning of each year, incurred losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, changes in incurred losses and LAE for
insured events of prior years, payments of losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, payments of losses and LAE
for insured events of prior years and the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves at the end of the year and
additional information regarding the nature of adjustments to incurred losses and LAE for insured events of prior years.

Ten Year Loss Development History

The following table illustrates the changes over time in the Company’s estimate of reserves for losses and LAE. The first
section shows the amount of reserves reported in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as originally reported at the
end of each calendar year. The second section, reading down, shows the cumulative amount of payments made through the end
of each successive year with respect to that reserve liability. The third section, reading down, shows a re-estimation of the
original reserve shown in the first section. In the third section, the original reserve is re-estimated using information that has
become known in subsequent years and as trends become more apparent. The last section compares the latest re-estimate with
the original estimate. Conditions and trends that affected development in the past may not necessarily repeat in the future.
Accordingly, it may not be appropriate to extrapolate reserve deficiencies or redundancies based on this table.



Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve Development

December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Gross Reserve for Unpaid Losses
and LAE ... $ 700 $ 975 $ 1426 $ 1511 $ 1,531 $ 1433 $ 1323 $ 1269 $ 1,211 $ 1,119 § 1,029
Deduct Reinsurance Recoverables ... 62 92 325 229 209 138 85 85 77 78 74
Net Reserve for Unpaid Losses and
LAE ..o seeeiene $ 638 $ 883 $ 1,101 $ 128 $ 1,322 $ 1295 $ 1238 $ 1,184 § 1,134 $ 1,041 $ 955
Cumulative Amount Paid, Net of
Reinsurance as of: ...................
One Year Later..........coooeveeeennenn. $ 341 $ 402 $ 407 $ 487 $ 508 $ 511 0§ 518 $ 541 0§ 553 0§ 502
Two Years Later......ccoeevevveennnne 483 531 623 707 742 724 738 757 771
Three Years Later............cccce...... 521 635 741 830 854 834 854 872
Four Years Later........ccccccuennneee. 570 684 803 891 906 890 916
Five Years Later........c...ccceeuenen. 600 715 835 918 943 921
Six Years Later........ccccoveveecinenne 619 734 850 940 963
Seven Years Later............c........ 632 745 864 951
Eight Years Later..........c.coccceee. 640 754 873
Nine Years Later........cccoveruernnns 646 764
Ten Years Later.........ccceeeeveenneene 655
Reestimate of Net Reserve for
Unpaid Losses and LAE as of: .
End of Year....c.ocoeevevevvrvennnnn $ 638 $ 883 $ 1,101 $ 1,282 $ 1322 $ 1295 $ 1238 $ 1,184 $ 1,134 $ 1,041 $ 955
One Year Later............cccceveenenne 720 886 1,062 1,190 1,230 1,195 1,159 1,103 1,109 1,008
Two Years Later......c..cooovvereenne 722 879 1,026 1,131 1,158 1,106 1,088 1,086 1,087
Three Years Later........c.ccvvruenne 724 872 1,006 1,088 1,106 1,054 1,073 1,075
Four Years Later...........c.ccoceeene 725 857 980 1,049 1,068 1,044 1,071
Five Years Later.......cccccevueveennene 719 840 951 1,033 1,068 1,041
Six Years Later......ccoceevvenennnne 709 819 947 1,040 1,063
Seven Years Later.........cccoeevvnee 693 820 950 1,037
Eight Years Later.........cccocceeue. 694 824 946
Nine Years Later.........c.c.cceueneen. 701 821

Ten Years Later...........ccvveeeennnen. 694



DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Initial Net Reserve for Unpaid
Losses and LAE in Excess Of
(Less Than) Reestimated Net
Reserve for Unpaid Losses and
LAE: .....ccooviiinininineneniereniens

Amount of Reestimate ............

Reestimate as a Percentage of
Initial Net Reserve for
Unpaid Losses and LAE ...

Latest Reestimate of:

Gross Reserve for Unpaid Losses
and LAE.....cccooiinnn,

Recoverable fo
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Net Reserve for Unpaid Losses

Cumulative (Increase) Decrease
to Reestimation of Gross
Reserve for Unpaid Losses
and LAE: ..o

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve Development

December 31,

$ 174

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
$ (56) $ 62 $ 155 $ 245 § 259 $ 254 $ 167 $ 109 $ 47 $ 33
(8.8)% 7.0%  141%  19.1%  19.6%  19.6%  13.5% 9.2% 4.1% 3.2%
$ 794 $ 917 $ 1272 $ 1279 $ 1303 $ 1,180 $ 1,149 $ 1,142 $ 1,162 $ 1,072
100 96 326 242 240 148 78 67 75 64
$ 694 $ 821 $ 946 $ 1,037 $ 1,063 $ 1,041 $ 1,071 $ 1,075 $ 1,087 $ 1,008
$ (949 $ 58 $ 154 § 232 $ 228 $ 244 $ 127 $ 49 0§ 47



The Company acquired Valley Group Inc. and its subsidiaries (“VGI”) in 1999. Under the agreement governing the acquisition
of VGI, the Company was entitled to recover from the seller 90% of the unfavorable development of VGI’s pre-acquisition loss
and LAE reserves, subject to a maximum recovery of $50 million. Reserve development shown in the preceding table for the
years 2001 to 2004 is net of changes in the Company’s estimated recovery, which was received in 2004. Reserves increased in
2002 and 2003 partly due to the Company’s acquisition of the personal lines business of Lumbermens Mutual Casualty
Company. At the end of 2002, the Company also acquired two insurance companies from SCOR. Reinsurance recoverable in
2003 and forward includes a recoverable from a subsidiary of SCOR under an indemnity reinsurance agreement whereby the
subsidiary assumed the pre-acquisition liabilities of the two insurance companies acquired by the Company. In 2005, three
major hurricanes that significantly impacted the Company (Katrina, Rita and Wilma) made landfall in the United States.
Accordingly, reserves at December 31, 2005 increased as claims from these hurricanes were established for adjudication and
declined in subsequent years as claims were paid. The Company acquired Merastar Insurance Company in 2007. Accordingly,
reserves for this business are included in the table for 2007 and forward. In 2008, three major hurricanes that significantly
impacted the Company (Dolly, Gustav and Ike) made landfall in the United States. Accordingly, reserves at December 31, 2008
increased as claims from these hurricanes were established for adjudication and declined in subsequent years as claims were
paid. The Company acquired Direct Response Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Direct Response™) in 2009. Accordingly,
reserves for this business are included in the table for 2009 and forward. Under the agreement governing the acquisition of
Direct Response, a portion of the purchase price was set aside in an escrow account. The Company was entitled to recover 75%
of the unfavorable development of Direct Response’s pre-acquisition loss and LAE reserves from such escrow account. Reserve
development shown in the preceding table for the years 2010 to 2011 is net of changes in the Company’s estimated recovery,
which was received in 2011.

Reserve estimates increase or decrease as more information becomes known about individual claims and as changes in
conditions and claims trends become more apparent. In 2011, the Company reduced Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves
by $33.1 million to recognize favorable development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance
losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $29.3 million and commercial lines, including discontinued operations,
insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.8 million. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE developed
favorably in 2011 due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss trends for the 2010, 2009 and 2008 accident years and
favorable development on certain catastrophes.

In 2010, the Company reduced Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by $24.9 million to recognize favorable development
of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $21.6
million and commerecial lines, including discontinued operations, insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by
$3.3 million. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE developed favorably in 2010 due primarily to the emergence of more
favorable loss trends for the 2009, 2007 and 2006 accident years, partially offset by adverse development on certain hurricanes.

In 2009, the Company reduced Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by $80.9 million to recognize favorable development
of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $72.3
million and commercial lines, including discontinued operations, insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by
$8.6 million in 2009. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably in 2009 due primarily to the
emergence of more favorable loss trends than expected for the 2007, 2006 and 2005 accident years due to the improvements in
the Company’s claims handling procedures and favorable development on catastrophes.

In 2008, the Company reduced Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by $79.3 million to recognize favorable development
of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $45.8
million and commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $33.5 million in 2008. Personal lines
insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably in 2008 due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss trends
than expected for the 2006 and 2005 accident years due to the improvements in the Company’s claims handling procedures,
partially offset by adverse development of $8.9 million related to certain re-opened claims from Hurricane Rita, which occurred
in the 2005 accident year. Commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably in 2008 primarily in the
Company’s discontinued operations. During the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company’s actuaries conducted their regular reserve
review of the Unitrin Business Insurance run-off business for all traditional as well as more recent industry studies to re-
estimate asbestos, environmental and construction defect liabilities. These updated analyses, along with the actuaries’ regular
reserve reviews during 2008, resulted in favorable reserve development of $29.7 million in 2008.

In 2007, the Company reduced Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by $101.1 million to record favorable development of
losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE and commercial lines insurance losses and
LAE developed favorably by $44.4 million and $56.7 million, respectively, in 2007. The reserve reductions were primarily due
to the emergence of more favorable loss trends than expected for the 2006, 2005 and 2004 accident years, partially due to the



improvements in the Company’s claims handling procedures.

In 2006, the Company reduced Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by $91.6 million to record favorable development of
losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE and commercial lines insurance losses and
LAE developed favorably by $63.6 million and $28.0 million, respectively, in 2006. The reserve reductions were primarily due
to the emergence of more favorable loss trends than expected for the 2005 and 2004 accident years, partially due to the
improvements in the Company’s claims handling procedures.

In 2005, the Company reduced Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by $92.1 million to record favorable development of
losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE and commercial lines insurance losses and
LAE developed favorably by $73.1 million and $19.0 million, respectively, in 2005. The reserve reductions were primarily due
to the emergence of more favorable loss trends than expected for the 2004 and 2003 accident years, partially due to
improvements in the Company’s claims handling procedures.

In 2004, the Company reduced Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by $39.0 million to record favorable development of
losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE and commercial lines insurance losses and
LAE developed favorably by $29.7 million and $9.3 million, respectively, in 2004. The reserve reductions were primarily due
to favorable development of the 2003 accident year.

During 2001 and 2002, the Company increased Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves to record adverse development due
to developing loss trends primarily related to construction defect, mold, automobile liability and product liability loss exposures
in its commercial lines of business as well as personal automobile liability.

The Company does not discount property and casualty insurance reserves. There are no significant differences between the
Company’s property and casualty reserves carried on a statutory basis and those computed in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, except that such reserves for statutory reporting purposes are
reported net of reinsurance in the statutory financial statements.

Catastrophe Losses

Catastrophes and storms are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events and
natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and winter
storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations and
financial position of Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of insured losses that
could occur in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses contribute to material year-to-year fluctuations in the
results of the operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more likely to
occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty insurance
claims. The occurrence and severity of catastrophic events are difficult to accurately predict in any year. However, some
geographic locations are more susceptible to these events than others. The Company has endeavored to manage its direct
insurance exposures in certain regions that are prone to naturally occurring catastrophic events through a combination of
geographic diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, and reinsurance.
The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events promulgated by Insurance
Services Office, Inc. (“ISO”) to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when
the event causes $25 million or more in direct losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
throughout this 2011 Annual Report utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. See Note 20, “Catastrophe
Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the factors that influence the process of estimating
and establishing reserves for catastrophes.

Reinsurance

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions, and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various primary catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property
and casualty insurance businesses. Coverage for each primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in various layers. In
addition to these programs, the Preferred segment purchases reinsurance for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions
lower than the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs. The Company also purchases reinsurance from the
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Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund (the “FHCF”) for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described below
for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for information pertaining to the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs for 2011, 2010 and
2009. The Company’s catastrophe reinsurance programs for 2012 are described below.

Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2012 is provided in various layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses

and LAE Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Preferred, Direct and Specialty Segments

RELAINEA ..ottt se et st s n s nssanes $ — 3 50.0 —%

1st Layer of Coverage 50.0 100.0 65.0

2nd Layer of COVEIAgE .......ovcrevemireermrerreirinieinii et esns st ansne 100.0 200.0 95.0

3rd Layer of COVEIAZE ......c.ccciiiiiiiiiiiireeiccrrmeietereee e eeras et seesnsses st esenesens 200.0 350.0 90.0

4th Layer of Coverage 350.0 450.0 50.0
Life and Health Insurance Segment—Property Insurance Operations

RELAINEA ...c.iiiirecieeiiicicer ettt bbbt bbb een $ — 3 8.0 —%

18t Layer Of COVETAZE......v.coueveeeecmicniveeieinice ettt an e aee et saseas e sssenes 8.0 15.0 70.0

20d Layer Of COVEIAZE ....cucevvrereeireeiririeeeeiseceininssisseessosesesssssnssesssesessssanasesessssans 15.0 40.0 70.0

The estimated aggregate annual premiums in 2012 for the programs presented in the preceding table are $23.0 million for the
Preferred, Direct and Specialty catastrophe reinsurance program and $1.9 million for the Life and Health Insurance catastrophe
reinsurance program.

In the event that the Company’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by any of its catastrophe reinsurance programs
exceed the retention for a particular layer, each of the aforementioned programs requires one reinstatement of such coverage. In
such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers to reinstate the full amount of
reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium is a percentage of the original premium based on the ratio of
the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit.

In addition to the catastrophe loss exposures caused by natural events described above, Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies are exposed to losses from catastrophic events that are not the result of acts of nature, such as acts of
terrorism, the nature and level of which in any period are very difficult to predict. While there were no reported losses
experienced by Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies in relation to the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001,
the companies have reinsurance coverage to address certain exposures to potential future terrorist attacks. The reinsurance
coverage for certified events, as designated by the federal government, is from the Terrorist Risk Insurance Act and the
coverage for non-certified events is available in the catastrophe reinsurance program for Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies. However, certain perils, such as biological, chemical, nuclear pollution or contamination, are excluded
from the Company’s reinsurance coverage for non-certified events.

In addition to the catastrophe reinsurance programs described above, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies
utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize

exposures on larger risks.

Under the various reinsurance arrangements, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies are indemnified by
reinsurers for certain losses incurred under insurance policies issued by the reinsurers. As indemnity reinsurance does not
discharge an insurer from its direct obligations to policyholders on risks insured, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance
companies remain directly liable. However, so long as the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s
property and casualty insurance companies is limited to the amount of risk that they retain. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies purchase their reinsurance only from reinsurers rated “A-” or better by A. M. Best at the time of purchase.

For further discussion of the reinsurance programs, see Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” Note 20,
“Catastrophe Reinsurance,” and Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Pricing

Pricing levels for property and casualty insurance are influenced by many factors, including the frequency and severity of
claims, state regulation and legislation, competition, general business and economic conditions, including market rates of
interest, inflation, expense levels, and judicial decisions. In addition, many state regulators require consideration of investment
income when approving or setting rates, which reduces underwriting margins. See MD&A under the captions “Preferred,”
“Specialty” and “Direct.”

Competition

Based on the most recent annual data published by A.M. Best, as of the end of 2010, there were 1,036 property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States. Kemper’s property and casualty group is among the top 10% largest property and
casualty insurance groups in the United States as measured by net written premiums, policyholders’ surplus and admitted assets.
Among all personal lines automobile insurance writers, Kemper's property and casualty group is the 19th largest writer as
measured by net written premiums.

In 2010, the property and casualty insurance industry’s estimated net premiums written were $430 billion, of which nearly 80%
were accounted for by the top 50 groups of property and casualty insurance companies. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies wrote less than 1% of the industry’s estimated 2010 premium volume.

Property and casualty insurance is a highly competitive business, particularly with respect to personal automobile insurance.
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies compete on the basis of, among other measures, (i) using suitable pricing
segmentation, (ii) maintaining underwriting discipline, (iii) selling to selected markets, (iv) utilizing technological innovations
for the marketing and sale of insurance, (v) controlling expenses, (vi) maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and other
ratings agencies and (vii) providing quality services to agents and policyholders.

Life and Health Insurance Business

The Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment consists of Kemper’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, United Insurance
Company of America (“United Insurance”), The Reliable Life Insurance Company (“Reliable”), Union National Life Insurance
Company (“Union National Life”), Mutual Savings Life Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Life”), United Casualty
Insurance Company of America (“United Casualty”), Union National Fire Insurance Company (“Union National Fire”), Mutual
Savings Fire Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Fire”) and Reserve National Insurance Company (“Reserve National”). As
discussed below, United Insurance, Reliable, Union National Life, Mutual Savings Life, United Casualty, Union National Fire
and Mutual Savings Fire (the “Kemper Home Service Companies”) distribute their products through a network of employee, or
“career,” agents. Reserve National distributes its products through a network of exclusive independent agents. These career
agents and independent agents are paid commissions for their services.

In 2011, the following states provided approximately two-thirds of the premium revenues in this segment: Texas (21%),
Louisiana (11%), Alabama (7%), Mississippi (6%), Illinois (4%), Florida (4%), Georgia (4%), North Carolina (4%) and
Missouri (4%). Life insurance accounted for 18%, 17%, and 16% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums earned
from continuing operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Life insurance accounted for 16%, 15% and 15% of the
Company’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Kemper Home Service Companies

The Kemper Home Service Companies, based in St. Louis, Missouri, focus on providing individual life and health insurance
products to customers of modest incomes who desire basic protection for themselves and their families. Their leading product is
ordinary life insurance, including permanent and term insurance. Face amounts of these policies are lower than those of policies
typically sold to higher income customers by other companies in the life insurance industry. Premiums average about $16 per
policy per month. Permanent policies are offered primarily on a non-participating, guaranteed-cost basis. Approximately 79%
of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s premium revenues are generated by the Kemper Home Service Companies.

The Kemper Home Service Companies employ nearly 2,600 career agents to distribute their products in 25 states and the
District of Columbia. These career agents are full-time employees who call on customers in their homes to sell insurance
products, provide services related to policies in force and collect premiums, typically monthly. These career agents also
distribute certain property insurance products for the Kemper Home Service Companies.
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Customers of the Kemper Home Service Companies generally are families with annual incomes of less than $25,000.
According to the U.S. Bureau of the Census, in 2010, there were approximately 29 million households in the United States with
less than $25,000 of annual income, representing approximately 24.9% of all U.S. households.

Reserve National

Reserve National, based in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, is licensed in 35 states throughout the south, southwest and midwest,
and specializes in the sale of Medicare Supplement insurance and limited health insurance coverages such as fixed indemnity,
dental and vision, and accident-only plans, primarily to individuals in rural areas who often do not have access to a broad array
of accident and health insurance products and services tailored to meet their individual and family needs. See MD&A, “Life
and Health Insurance,” Note 5, “Goodwill,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Regulation” under this Item 1 beginning
on page 14 and Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “The adaption of Reserve National’s business model in response to
American health care reform may be unsuccessful,” for a discussion of the impact of American health care reform on Reserve
National.

Reserve National has approximately 275 independent agents appointed to market and distribute its products. These agents
typically represent only Reserve National.

Reinsurance

Consistent with insurance industry practice, the Company’s life and health insurance companies utilize reinsurance
arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize exposures on larger risks.
Included among the segment’s reinsurance arrangements is excess of loss reinsurance coverage specifically designed to protect
against losses arising from catastrophic events under the property insurance policies distributed by the Kemper Home Service
Companies’ agents and written by Kemper’s subsidiaries, United Casualty, Union National Fire and Mutual Savings Fire, and
reinsured by Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity Universal Insurance Company (“Trinity”), or written by Capitol County Mutual Fire
Insurance Company (“Capitol”), a mutual insurance company owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, Old Reliable
Casualty Company (“ORCC”), and reinsured by Trinity. The annual catastrophe reinsurance program for the Kemper Home
Service Companies, Capitol and ORCC is described above in the discussion of “Reinsurance” under “Property and Casualty
Insurance Business” of this Item 1 beginning on page 10. Also see MD&A “Catastrophes” and Note 20, “Catastrophe
Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information pertaining to the segment’s catastrophe
reinsurance program.

Lapse Ratio

The lapse ratio is a measure of a life insurer’s loss of existing business. For a given year, this ratio is commonly computed as
the total face amount of individual life insurance policies lapsed, surrendered, expired and decreased during such year, less
policies increased and revived during such year, divided by the total face amount of policies at the beginning of the year plus
the face amount of policies issued and reinsurance assumed in the prior year. The Life and Health Insurance segment’s lapse
ratio for individual life insurance was 9%, 8% and 9% in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The customer base served by the Kemper Home Service Companies and competing life insurance companies tends to have a
higher incidence of lapse than other demographic segments of the population. Thus, to maintain or increase the level of its
business, the Kemper Home Service Companies must write a high volume of new policies.

Pricing

Premiums for life and health insurance products are based on assumptions with respect to mortality, morbidity, investment
yields, expenses, and lapses and are also affected by state laws and regulations, as well as competition. Pricing assumptions are
based on the experience of Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries, as well as the industry in general, depending on the
factor being considered. The actual profit or loss produced by a product will vary from the anticipated profit if the actual
experience differs from the assumptions used in pricing the product.

Premiums for policies sold by the Kemper Home Service Companies are set at levels designed to cover the relatively high cost
of “in home” servicing of such policies. As a result of such higher expenses, incurred claims as a percentage of earned
premiums tend to be lower for companies utilizing this method of distribution than the life insurance industry average.

Premiums for Medicare supplement and other accident and health policies must take into account the rising costs of medical
care. The annual rate of medical cost inflation has historically been higher than the general rate of inflation, necessitating
frequent rate increases, most of which are subject to approval by state regulatory agencies.
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Competition

Based on the most recent data published by A.M. Best as of the end 0f 2010, there were 421 life and health insurance company
groups in the United States. The Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment ranked in the top 25% of life and health
insurance company groups, as measured by admitted assets (82nd), net premiums written (91st) and capital and surplus (90th).

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries generally compete by using appropriate pricing, selling to selected markets,
controlling expenses, maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and providing competitive services to agents and
policyholders.

Investments

The quality, nature, and amount of the various types of investments that can be made by insurance companies are regulated by
state laws. Depending on the state, these laws permit investments in qualified assets, including, but not limited to, municipal,
state and federal government obligations, corporate bonds, real estate, preferred and common stocks, investment partnerships,
limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships and mortgages where the value of the underlying real estate
exceeds the amount of the loan.

The Company employs a total return investment strategy, with an emphasis on yield, while maintaining liquidity to meet both
its short and long-term insurance obligations primarily through the combination of investment-grade fixed maturity investments
and, to a lesser extent, equity securities with the potential for long-term price appreciation. See the discussions of the
Company’s investments under the headings “Investment Results,” “Investment Quality and Concentrations,” “Investments in
Limited Liability Investment Companies and Limited Partnerships,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Critical
Accounting Estimates,” in the MD&A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk,” in Item 7A and Note 4,
“Investments,” Note 14, “Income from Investments,” and Note 22, “Fair Value Measurements,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Regulation
Insurance Regulation

Kemper is subject to the insurance holding company laws of a number of states. Certain dividends and distributions by an
insurance subsidiary are subject to approval by the insurance regulators of the state of incorporation of such subsidiary. Other
significant transactions between an insurance subsidiary and its holding company or other subsidiaries of the holding company
may require approval by insurance regulators in the state of incorporation of each of the insurance subsidiaries participating in
such transactions.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation in the states in which they do business. Such regulation
pertains to a variety of matters, including, but not limited to, policy forms, premium rate plans, licensing of agents, licenses to
transact business, trade practices, claims practices, investments and solvency. The majority of Kemper’s insurance operations
are in states requiring prior approval by regulators before proposed rates for property, casualty, or health insurance policies may
be implemented. However, rates proposed for life insurance generally become effective immediately upon filing with a state,
even though the same state may require prior rate approval for other types of insurance. Insurance regulatory authorities
perform periodic examinations of an insurer’s market conduct and other affairs. Kemper’s health insurance subsidiaries are also
subject to certain regulation by the federal government. For example, the Health Care Acts, and the regulations promulgated
thereunder, have already established or will establish minimum loss ratios, rating restrictions, mandates for essential health
benefit coverages, and restrictions or prohibitions on pre-existing condition exclusions and annual and lifetime policy limits for
health insurance policies.

Insurance companies are required to report their financial condition and results of operation in accordance with statutory
accounting principles prescribed or permitted by state insurance regulators in conjunction with the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC”). State insurance regulators also prescribe the form and content of statutory financial
statements, perform periodic financial examinations of insurers, set minimum reserve and loss ratio requirements, establish
standards for the types and amounts of investments and require minimum capital and surplus levels. Such statutory capital and
surplus requirements include risk-based capital (“RBC”) rules promulgated by the NAIC. These RBC standards are intended to
assess the level of risk inherent in an insurance company’s business and consider items such as asset risk, credit risk,
underwriting risk and other business risks relevant to its operations. In accordance with RBC formulas, a company’s RBC
requirements are calculated and compared to its total adjusted capital to determine whether regulatory intervention is warranted.
At December 31, 2011, the total adjusted capital of each of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimum levels
required under RBC rules.
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Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required under the guaranty fund laws of most states in which they transact business to pay
assessments up to prescribed limits to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of insolvent insurance companies. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries also are required to participate in various involuntary pools or assigned risk pools, principally involving
windstorms and high risk drivers. In most states, the involuntary pool participation of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is in
proportion to their voluntary writings of related lines of business in such states.

In addition to the regulatory requirements described above, a number of legislative and regulatory measures pending or recently
approved may significantly affect the insurance business in a variety of ways. In particular, the NAIC adopted extensive
modifications to its Model Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Act and related regulation in December 2010. At
least three states have already adopted legislation that incorporates the principal aspects of the NAIC’s proposed revisions, and
it is reasonable to assume that the various other state legislatures and regulators will enact conforming revisions into law to
maintain their accredited status with the NAIC. These modifications will, among other things, substantially expand the
oversight and examination powers of state insurance regulators not only with respect to licensed insurance companies, but also
with respect to their presently unregulated non-insurance affiliates, and impose new reporting requirements on the ultimate
controlling persons of such insurance companies in respect of, among other things, enterprise risk to the organization as a
whole, affiliated transactions, and any divestiture of controlling interests in an insurer. Other significant measures enacted in
recent years include, among other things, tort reform, the Health Care Acts, the Dodd-Frank Act, consumer privacy
requirements, credit score regulation, producer compensation regulations, corporate governance requirements and financial
services deregulation initiatives.

State insurance laws intended primarily for the protection of policyholders contain certain requirements that must be met prior
to any change of control of an insurance company or insurance holding company that is domiciled or, in some cases, an
insurance company having such substantial business that it is deemed commercially domiciled, in that state. These requirements
may include the advance filing of specific information with the state insurance regulators, a public hearing on the matter, and
the review and approval of the change of control by such regulators. The Company has insurance subsidiaries domiciled in
either Alabama, California, Illinois, Louisiana, Missouri, New York, Oklahoma, Oregon, Texas or Wisconsin. In these states,
except Alabama, “control” generally is presumed to exist through the direct or indirect ownership of 10% or more of the voting
securities of an insurance company. Control is presumed to exist in Alabama with a 5% or more ownership interest in such
securities. Any purchase of Kemper’s shares that would result in the purchaser owning Kemper’s voting securities in the
foregoing percentages for the states indicated would be presumed to result in the acquisition of control of Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries in those states. Therefore, acquisitions subject to the 10% threshold generally would require the prior approval of
the insurance regulatory authorities in each state in which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are domiciled or deemed to be
commercially domiciled, including those in Alabama, while acquisitions subject to the 5% threshold generally would require
the prior approval of only Alabama regulatory authorities. In addition, many states require pre-acquisition notification to the
state insurance regulators of a change of control of an insurance company licensed in that state if specific market concentration
thresholds would be triggered by the acquisition. While those pre-acquisition notification statutes generally do not authorize the
state insurance regulators to disapprove the change of control, they do authorize the issuance of a cease and desist order with
respect to the insurance company if certain conditions, such as undue market concentration, would result from the acquisition.
These insurance regulatory requirements may deter, delay or prevent transactions effecting control of the Company or the
ownership of Kemper’s voting securities, including transactions that could be advantageous to Kemper’s shareholders.

Dodd-Frank Act

In July 2010, the Dodd-Frank Act (the “DFA”) was enacted into law. The DFA effects a profound increase in the regulation of
the financial services industry. Among other things, the DFA forms within the Treasury Department a Federal Insurance Office
that is charged with monitoring all aspects of the insurance industry, gathering data, and conducting a study on methods to
modernize and improve the insurance regulatory system in the United States. A report on this study is required to be delivered
to Congress within 18 months after enactment of the DFA and could be influential in reshaping the current state-based
insurance regulatory system and/or introducing a direct federal role in such regulation.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Most issuers, including Kemper, are exposed to numerous risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
recent results or anticipated future results. The following discussion details the significant risk factors that are more specific to
the Company. In addition to those described below, the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operation could
be materially affected by other factors not presently known by, or considered material to, the Company. Readers are advised to
consider these factors along with the other information included in this 2011 Annual Report, and to consult any further
disclosures Kemper makes on related subjects in its filings with the SEC.

Catastrophe losses, whether resulting from natural disasters, terrorism or other man-made events, and reinsurance risks
could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are subject to claims arising out of catastrophes that may have a
significant effect on their results of operations, liquidity and financial condition. Catastrophes can be caused by various events,
including, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, windstorms, earthquakes, hail storms, explosions, severe winter weather
and wildfires and may include man-made events, such as terrorist attacks and hazardous material spills. The incidence,
frequency and severity of catastrophes are inherently unpredictable, and may be impacted by the uncertain effects of climate
change. The extent of the Company’s losses from a catastrophe is a function of both the total amount of insured exposure in the
area affected by the event and the severity of the event.

Kemper’s Life and Health Insurance subsidiaries are particularly exposed to risks of catastrophic mortality, such as pandemic or
other events that result in large numbers of deaths. In addition, the occurrence of such an event in a concentrated geographic
area could have a severe disruptive effect on the Company’s workforce and business operations. The likelihood and severity of
such events can not be predicted and are difficult to estimate.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries seek to reduce their exposure to catastrophe losses through underwriting strategies and the
purchase of catastrophe reinsurance. Reinsurance does not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their direct liability to
their policyholders. As long as the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is
limited to the amount of risk that they retain. While the Company’s principal reinsurers are each rated “A-" or better by A.M.
Best at the time reinsurance is purchased, the Company cannct be certain that reinsurers will pay the amounts due from them
either now, in the future, or on a timely basis. A reinsurer’s insolvency or inability to make payments under the terms of its
reinsurance agreement with Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations and liquidity.

In addition, market conditions beyond the Company’s control determine the availability and cost of the reinsurance protection
that Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may purchase. A decrease in the amount of reinsurance protection that Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries purchase generally should decrease their cost of reinsurance, but increase their risk of loss. An increase
in the amount of reinsurance protection that Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries purchase generally should increase their cost of
reinsurance, but decrease their risk of loss. However, if the amount of available reinsurance is reduced, Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries could pay more for the same level, or a lower level, of reinsurance coverage. Accordingly, the Company may be
forced to incur additional expenses for reinsurance or may not be able to obtain sufficient reinsurance on acceptable terms,
which could adversely affect the ability of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to write future insurance policies or result in their
retaining more risk with respect to such insurance policies.

Estimating losses and LAE for determining property and casualty insurance reserves, or determining premium rates, is
inherently uncertain, and the Company'’s results of operations may be materially impacted if the Company’s insurance
reserves or premium rates are insufficient.

The Company establishes loss and LAE reserves to cover estimated liabilities, which remain unpaid as of the end of each
accounting period, and to investigate and settle all claims incurred under the property and casualty insurance policies that it has
issued. Loss and LAE reserves are established for claims that have been reported to the Company as of the end of the
accounting period, as well as for claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to the Company. The estimates of
loss and LAE reserves are based on the Company’s assessment of the facts and circumstances known to it at the time, as well as
estimates of the impact of future trends in the severity of claims, the frequency of claims and other factors. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 57 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.
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As the process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves is inherently uncertain, the reserves established by the
Company are not precise estimates of liability and could prove to be inadequate to cover its ultimate losses and expenses for
insured events that have occurred. The process of estimating loss reserves is complex and imprecise. The estimate of the
ultimate cost of claims for insured events that have occurred must take into consideration many factors that are dependent on
the outcome of future events associated with the reporting, investigation and settlement of claims. The impacts on the
Company’s estimates of property and casualty insurance reserves from these factors are difficult to assess accurately. A change
in any one or more of the factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate loss that is different than the previous projected
ultimate loss, and may have a material impact on the Company’s estimate of the projected ultimate loss. Increases in the
estimates of ultimate losses and LAE will decrease earnings, while decreases in such estimates will increase earnings, as
reported by the Company in the results of its operations for the periods in which the changes to the estimates are made by the
Company.

The Company’s actuaries also consider trends in the severity and frequency of claims and other factors, when determining the
premium rates to charge for its property and casualty insurance products. An unanticipated change in any one or more of these
factors or trends, as well as a change in competitive conditions, may also result in inadequate premium rates charged for
insurance policies issued by Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries in the future. Such pricing inadequacies
could have a material impact on the Company’s operating results.

The Direct segment may not reach profitability or an adequate rate of return.

The Direct segment reported significant operating losses in 2011 and 2009 and operated slightly below break-even in 2010. The
Company has taken a number of actions intended to improve Direct’s operating results including, but not limited to,
implementing premium rate increases in most states, non-renewing policies in certain states, subject to regulatory restrictions,
improving insurance risk selection and retention, reducing marketing spending, modifying its direct marketing program to
target a better response rate and introducing new products and a new brand. However, there is no assurance that Direct will be
profitable or reach an adequate rate of return in future years.

The adaption of Reserve National’s business model in response to American health care reform may be unsuccessful,
Ip. 4 Ly

Reserve National’s business model, which focuses on providing limited health insurance coverages to persons who lack access
to traditional private options, is likely to be adversely affected by the Health Care Acts. In response, Reserve National has
begun adapting its business model by placing emphasis on designing and selling supplemental health insurance products that
are not subject to the Health Care Acts and ceasing to issue health insurance products that are subject to the Health Care Acts.
In particular, Reserve National has ceased issuing health insurance products that are subject to certain provisions that establish
minimum loss ratios for health insurance policies significantly above the levels historically experienced by Reserve National.
While this action is likely to mitigate Reserve National’s risk, the minimum loss provisions could adversely impact its ability to
achieve an adequate return on its renewal book of such health insurance products. If Reserve National’s sales of supplemental
health insurance products that are not subject to the Health Care Acts are insufficient to offset the loss of business subject to the
Health Care Acts, a significant loss of business for Reserve National may result. A significant loss of business could have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition, the results of operations and the valuation of Reserve National.

Kemper is dependent on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service its debt and to pay dividends to its shareholders.

As a holding company with no business operations of its own, Kemper depends on the dividend income that it receives from its
subsidiaries as the primary source of funds to pay interest and principal on its outstanding debt obligations and to pay dividends
to its shareholders. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory restrictions under state insurance laws
and regulations which limit their ability to declare and pay dividends. These laws and regulations impose minimum solvency
and liquidity requirements on dividends between affiliated companies and require prior notice to, and may require approval
from, state insurance regulators before dividends can be paid. The inability of one or more of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries
to pay sufficient dividends to Kemper may materially affect Kemper’s ability to timely pay its debt obligations or to pay
dividends to its shareholders.

A significant downgrade in the ratings of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries could adversely affect the Company.

Third-party ratings agencies, such as A.M. Best, assess the financial strength and rate the claims-paying ability of insurance
companies based on criteria established by the ratings agencies. Third-party ratings are important competitive factors in the
insurance industry. Financial strength ratings are used to assess the financial strength and quality of insurers. A significant
downgrade by a recognized ratings agency in the ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, particularly those that market their
products through independent agents, affinity relationships or the internet or other direct marketing channels, could result in a
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substantial loss of business if agents or policyholders of such subsidiaries move to other companies with higher claims-paying
and financial strength ratings. Any substantial loss of business could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition
and results of operations of such subsidiaries. A downgrade in Kemper’s credit rating by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”’), Moody’s
Investors Services (“Moody’s”) or Fitch Ratings (“Fitch’) may reduce Kemper’s ability to access the capital markets for
general corporate purposes or refinance existing debt.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation by state insurance departments.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation in the states in which they do business. Current regulations
encompass a wide variety of matters, including policy forms, premium rates, licensing, trade practices, claims practices,
investment standards, statutory capital and surplus requirements, reserve and loss ratio requirements, restrictions on transactions
among affiliates and consumer privacy.

Insurance regulatory agencies conduct periodic examinations of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries and require the filing of
annual and other reports relating to financial condition, holding company issues and other matters. If an insurance company
fails to obtain required licenses or approvals, or if any of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries fail to comply with other regulatory
requirements, the regulatory agencies can suspend or delay their operations or licenses, require corrective action, and impose
penalties or other remedies available under the applicable laws and regulations.

These laws and regulations, and their interpretation by the various regulatory agencies and courts, are undergoing continual
revision and expansion. The regulatory structures in the financial services industry have come under intense scrutiny as a result
of the turmoil experienced by the financial markets. While it is not possible to predict how new legislation or regulations or
new interpretations of existing laws and regulations may impact the operations of Kemper’s subsidiaries, two recent
developments have the potential to significantly impact such operations.

In July 2010, the DFA was enacted into law. For more information about the potential impact of the DFA on the Company’s
operations, see “Dodd-Frank Act” under “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 15.

In addition, the NAIC adopted extensive modifications to its Model Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Act and
related regulation in December 2010. At least three states have already adopted legislation that incorporates the principal
aspects of the NAIC’s proposed revisions, and it is reasonable to assume that the various other state legislatures and regulators
will enact conforming revisions into law to maintain their accredited status with the NAIC. These modifications will, among
other things, substantially expand the oversight and examination powers of state insurance regulators, not only with respect to
licensed insurance companies, but also with respect to their presently unregulated non-insurance affiliates, and will impose new
reporting requirements on the ultimate controlling persons of such insurance companies with respect to, among other things,
enterprise risk to the organization as a whole, affiliated transactions, and any divestiture of controlling interests in an insurer.

These new developments (including regulations that have been or that are required to be promulgated under the DFA), as well
as significant changes in, or new interpretations of, existing laws and regulations could make it more expensive for Kemper’s
subsidiaries to conduct their businesses and could materially affect the profitability of their operations and the Company’s
financial results. See the discussion in the risk factor above entitled “The adaption of Reserve National’s business model in
response to American health care reform may be unsuccessful” regarding the potential effect of the Health Care Acts on
Reserve National’s business model. For a more detailed discussion of the regulations applicable to Kemper’s subsidiaries, see
“Insurance Regulation” under “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 14.

The Company is subject to interest rate risk and credit risk in its fixed maturity investment portfolio.

One of the Company’s primary market risk exposures is to changes in interest rates. A decline in market interest rates could
have an adverse effect on the Company’s investment income as it invests cash in new investments that may yield less than the
portfolio’s average rate. In a declining interest rate environment, borrowers may seek to refinance their borrowings at lower
rates and, accordingly, prepay or redeem securities the Company holds as investments more quickly than the Company initially
expected. Such prepayment or redemption action may cause the Company to reinvest the redeemed proceeds in lower yielding
investments. An increase in market interest rates could also have an adverse effect on the value of the Company’s investment
portfolio, for example, by decreasing the fair values of the fixed income securities that comprise a substantial majority of its
investment portfolio.
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The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio is subject to credit risk from the issuers of the securities in the portfolio.
Deterioration in the financial conditions of the issuers could result in a decline in the fair value of the Company’s fixed maturity
investment portfolio. Deterioration in the financial conditions of the issuers could also result in issuer defaults and impact the
Company’s ability to recover the reported value of its fixed maturity investment portfolio. Accordingly, deterioration in the
credit quality of the Company’s investment portfolio could adversely affect the Company’s operating results and financial
position.

The Company’s investments in limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships are concentrated in
companies and partnerships that invest in distressed and mezzanine debt and secondary transactions.

At December 31, 2011, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries had $306.3 million invested in limited liability investment companies
and limited partnerships accounted for under the equity method of accounting (“Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments”), that invest in distressed and mezzanine debt of other companies and secondary transactions. In addition,
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries had unfunded commitments to invest an additional $132.2 million at December 31, 2011,
including $78.8 million of unfunded commitments related to investments reported as Other Equity Interests and included in
Equity Securities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet, in limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships. Such
unfunded commitments generally may be used to fund additional investments made, or losses incurred, by such limited liability
investment companies and limited partnerships. The underlying investments of such limited liability investment companies and
limited partnerships generally provide opportunities for higher returns, but at a higher risk than investment-grade investments.
General economic swings influence the performance of the underlying investments in distressed and mezzanine debt and
secondary transactions. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries have also made direct investments in the same or similar distressed
and mezzanine debt securities of certain issuers in which such limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships
have made investments, which could exacerbate any losses attributable to poor performance of any such investments. A severe
and continued downturn in the economy may result in deterioration in the business prospects of the issuers of the underlying
investments that could adversely affect the Company’s operating results and financial position.

The insurance industry is highly competitive.

The Company’s insurance businesses face significant competition, and its ability to compete is affected by a variety of issues
relative to others in the industry, such as product pricing, service quality, financial strength and name recognition. Competitive
success is based on many factors, including, but not limited to, the following:

»  Competitiveness of prices charged for insurance policies;
+  Selection of agents, web portals and other business partners;
+  Compensation paid to agents;

»  Underwriting discipline;

«  Selectiveness of sales markets;

+  Effectiveness of marketing materials;

*  Product and technological innovation;

«  Ability to detect and prevent fraudulent insurance claims;
*  Ability to control operating expenses;

* Adequacy of ratings from A.M. Best; and

*  Quality of services provided to agents and policyholders.

The inability to compete effectively in any of the Company’s insurance businesses could materially reduce the Company’s
customer base and revenues, and could adversely affect the future results and financial condition of the Company.

The Company is in the process of re-branding its operations under the Kemper name. While the Company believes that the
Kemper name has more name recognition than the names used in some of its operations, there can be no assurance that such re-
branding efforts will be successful. See “Change in Name of Company and Re-branding” in Item 1 of Part I beginning on page
3.

See “Competition” in Item 1 of Part I beginning on page 12 and page 14, for more information on the competitive rankings in
the property and casualty insurance markets and the life and health insurance markets, respectively, in the United States.
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The effects of an evolving legal and regulatory landscape on Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are uncertain.

The legal and regulatory landscape within which the Company and its subsidiaries conduct their businesses is often
unpredictable. As industry practices and regulatory, judicial, political, social and other conditions change, unexpected and
unintended issues may emerge. These emerging practices, conditions and issues could adversely affect Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries in a variety of ways, including by expansion of coverages beyond their underwriting intent, by increasing the
number or size of claims or accelerating the payment of claims. Industry practices that were considered legally-compliant and
reasonable for years may suddenly be deemed unacceptable by virtue of an unexpected court or regulatory ruling or changes in
regulatory enforcement policies and practices. Anticipating such shifts in the law and the impact they may have on the
Company and its operations is a difficult task and there can be no assurances that the Company will not encounter such shifts in
the future. The effects of such changes are hard to predict, but could materially affect the financial results of the Company.

Legal and regulatory proceedings are unpredictable.

Kemper and its subsidiaries are from time to time involved in lawsuits, regulatory inquiries, and other legal proceedings arising
out of the ordinary course of their businesses. Some of these proceedings may involve matters particular to the Company or one
or more of its subsidiaries, while others may pertain to business practices in the industry in which the Company and its
subsidiaries operate. Some lawsuits may seek class action status that, if granted, could expose the Company to potentially
significant liability by virtue of the size of the putative classes. These matters raise difficult factual and legal issues and are
subject to uncertainties and complexities, and the outcomes of these matters are difficult to predict, and the amounts or ranges
of potential loss at particular stages in the proceedings are in most cases difficult or impossible to ascertain. A further
complication is that even where the possibility of an adverse outcome is deemed to be remote using traditional legal analysis,
juries sometimes can and do substitute their subjective views in place of facts and established legal principles. Given the
unpredictability of the legal and regulatory landscape in which the Company operates, there can be no assurance that one or
more of these matters will not produce a result which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial results for any given period.

For information about the Company’s pending litigation, see Item 3, “Legal Proceedings,” beginning on page 21.

Managing technology initiatives to address business developments and increasing data security regulations and risks present
significant challenges to the Company.

While technological developments can streamline many business processes and ultimately reduce the cost of operations,
technology initiatives can present short-term cost and implementation risks. In addition, projections of expenses,
implementation schedules and utility of results may be inaccurate and can escalate over time. The financial services industry is
highly regulated, and the Company faces rising costs and competing time constraints in meeting compliance requirements of
new and proposed regulations. Companies operating in the financial services industry obtain and store vast amounts of personal
data. The expanding volume and sophistication of computer viruses, hackers and other external hazards may increase the
vulnerability of the Company’s data systems, including, but not limited to, the personal data used in and stored on such systems,
to security breaches. These increased risks and expanding regulatory requirements, including requirements related to personal
data security, expose the Company to potential data loss and damages and significant increases in compliance and litigation
costs.

In addition, non-compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, an information security standard for
organizations that handle cardholder information for the major debit, credit, prepaid, e-purse, ATM and point-of-sale cards,
could result in fines from such organizations or the inability to transact business with customers using these cards.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.

Owned Properties

The Company owns the 41-story office building at One East Wacker Drive, Chicago, Illinois, that houses the executive offices
of Kemper and the home office of its Direct operations, which together occupy approximately 52,000 square feet of the 527,000
rentable square feet in the building. In addition, Kemper’s subsidiaries together own and occupy 13 buildings located in 7 states
consisting of approximately 42,000 square feet in the aggregate. Kemper’s subsidiaries hold additional properties solely for
investment purposes that are not utilized by Kemper or its subsidiaries.
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Leased Facilities

Preferred leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 195,000 at 9 locations in 9 states. The latest
expiration date of the existing leases is in September of 2018.

Specialty leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 107,000 at 3 locations in 3 states. The latest
expiration date of the existing leases is in September of 2018.

Direct leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 199,000 at 6 locations in 5 states. The latest
expiration date of the existing leases is in October of 2016.

Preferred, Specialty and Direct share leased facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 138,000 at 15
locations in 8 states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in September of 2018.

Kemper’s Life and Health Insurance segment leases facilities with aggregate square footage of approximately 508,000 at 125
locations in 26 states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in October of 2019.

Kemper’s corporate data processing operation leases facilities with aggregate square footage of approximately 36,000 square
feet at 2 locations in 2 states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in September of 2018.

Fireside Bank leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 63,000 at 2 locations in 2 states. The latest
expiration date of the existing leases is in August of 2014.

The properties described above are in good condition. The properties utilized in the Company’s operations consist of facilities
suitable for general office space, call centers and data processing operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Proceedings

In the ordinary course of its businesses, the Company is involved in legal proceedings, including lawsuits, regulatory
examinations and inquiries. Based on currently available information, the Company does not believe that it is reasonably
possible that any of its pending legal proceedings will have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved)
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PART II

Item S. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Information

Kemper’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol of “KMPR.” Quarterly
information pertaining to market prices of Kemper common stock in 2011 and 2010 is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
Common Stock Market Prices:
Higheeoiieee ettt e $ 3111 $ 31.69 $ 30.11 $ 29711 $ 31.69
LOW ettt ne b e 30.68 27.80 22.25 22.07 22.07
CLOSE..cveeurireereeieeeeerteresreecvesre e sressesraeetsenere s 30.88 29.67 23.96 29.21 29.21
Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
Common Stock Market Prices:
Higheoooeece e $ 28.71 $ 31.12  § 2823 $ 2603 §$ 31.12
LOW et s 21.63 24.39 22.70 22.81 21.63
CLOSE..euurerieeeeenrereeitetenreetectesae s eseaessesassaeevesanenes 28.05 25.60 24.39 24.54 24.54
Holders

As of January 19, 2012, the number of record holders of Kemper’s common stock was approximately 4,950.
Dividends

Quareterly information pertaining to payment of dividends on Kemper's common stock is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)...... $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 0.96

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)....... $ 022 $ 022 $ 022 $ 022 $ 0.88

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various state insurance laws that restrict the ability of these insurance
subsidiaries to pay dividends without prior regulatory approval. In addition, Kemper’s automobile finance subsidiary, Fireside
Bank, is subject to certain risk-based capital regulations having the effect of limiting the amount of dividends that may be paid
by Fireside Bank. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 9, “Shareholders’ Equity,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for information on Kemper’s ability and intent to pay dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Information pertaining to purchases of Kemper common stock for the three months ended December 31, 2011 follows.

Total Maximum

Number of Shares  Dollar Value of Shares

Average Purchased as Part that May Yet Be

Total Price of Publicly Purchased Under
Number of Shares Paid per Announced Plans the Plans or Programs

Period Purchased (1) Share or Programs (1) (Dollars in Millions)

October 1 - October 31, 2011 ....ccccoveveieincnnennne — N/A — § 278.3
November 1 - November 30, 2011........ccoveevvevenennne — N/A — 3 278.3
December 1 - December 31, 2011......ccccvveerennenn. 203,545 § 27.67 203,545 § 272.7

(1) On February 2, 2011, Kemper’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300 million of Kemper’s common

stock. The repurchase program does not have an expiration date.

The preceding table does not include shares withheld or surrendered, either actually or constructively, to satisfy the exercise price
and/or tax withholding obligations relating to the exercise of stock options or stock appreciation rights under Kemper’s long-term
equity-based compensation plans or shares withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations on the vesting of restricted stock awards
under Kemper’s long-term equity-based compensation plans. There were 921 shares withheld or surrendered, either actually or
constructively, to satisfy the exercise price and/or tax withholding obligations relating to the exercise of stock options or stock
appreciation rights under Kemper’s long-term equity-based compensation plans during the quarter ended December 31, 2011. No
restricted stock awards vested under Kemper’s long-term equity-based compensation plans during the quarter ended December 31,

2011.

Kemper Common Stock Performance Graph

The following graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2006 in (i) Kemper common stock, (ii) the S&P MidCap 400
Index and (iii) the S&P Composite 1500 Insurance Index, in each case with dividends reinvested. Kemper is a constituent of

each of these two indices.

The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future

performance of Kemper common stock.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
FOR THE YEAR
Earned Premiums ...........o...... ettt ae $ 2,173.6 $ 22894 § 24555 $ 23766 $ 2,286.9
Net Investment [NCOME ......ocvvveeerriinieriieriiiecreeereeeieee 298.0 325.7 319.9 208.5 284.9
Other INCOME......ccvvvevieiirierereireeseeressterisiesesesese e aserenesesees 1.0 1.3 2.5 4.1 3.5
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments.........c.............. 33.7 42.6 24.6 59.2 95.5
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ................. (11.3) (16.5) (50.4) (152.9) (33.0)
Total REVENUES ....ccvevviiriii ettt $ 2,495.0 $ 2,6425 $ 27521 $ 24955 $ 2,637.8
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations .........cc............ $ 709 $ 169.1 $ 1675 $ (157) $ 2169
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations...................... 12.8 15.5 (2.8) (13.9) (11.5)
Net Income (L0SS) ..ceeerverireenierieeienenerveseeseeseeeasaeaseennes $ 83.7 $ 1846 $& 1647 $ (29.6) $ 2054
Per Unrestricted Share:

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations.................... $ 1.17 § 273 S 269 § (025 $ 3.30

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations ................ 0.21 0.25 (0.05) (0.22) (0.17)

Net Income (LOSS) c.vvveeveierrereeeenieieesesrssseeeeeerenesesaes $ 138 $ 298 $ 264 $ 047) $ 3.13
Per Unrestricted Share Assuming Dilution:

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations.................... $ 117 § 273§ 269 § (025 $ 3.28

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations................. 0.21 0.25 (0.05) (0.22) 0.17)

Net Income (LOSS) ..vvveireeiriieninienineeerceererceeesresee e $ 138 S 298 $ 264 $ 047) $ 3.11
Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share) .......cccccooceee. $ .96 m W m m
AT YEAR END -
TOtAl ASSELS.....eovireiiiiiiiiire ettt $ 8,0859 $ 83585 $ 85735 $ 88188 $ 93944
INSUrance RESEIVES .....c..ccveiiieviiiciniriiniiieieee e m $ 4,1824 $ 42393 m _$—3,85—5—9_
Unearned Premiums .......ccueverrevieniieniinenoneineeineenrennens 666.2 678.6 724.9 733.5 722.2
Certificates 0f DEPOSILS ...ovvveeererieeriereiiirereeeseeeereeeeainnas — 3214 682.4 1,110.8 1,274.3
Notes Payable.......cccviiniiieiierriieeesreiseee e 610.6 609.8 561.4 560.8 560.1
A1l Other Liabilities ....c.oovveviieveiereeeniicrererierees s 461.2 452.9 447.9 523.8 690.9
Total Liabilities......ceevrriieerriierrrirenirireeiereseereseereeeeeae e 5,869.8 6,245.1 6,655.9 7,170.2 7,103.4
Shareholders’ EQUILY .....c.ocviveeeierieeiteeicrceieiee e 2,216.1 2,113.4 1,917.6 1,648.6 2,291.0
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” Equity.........ccocverevennnene $ 8,0859 $ 83585 $ 8,573.5 $ 88188 $ 9,3944
Book Value Per Share..............coo.ovveeeeeeereereeesseesreeeeseeeenens S 3678 S 3461 $ 3075 S 2646 $ 3565
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Index to
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

Net Income was $83.7 million ($1.38 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$184.6 million ($2.98 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2010. Income from Continuing
Operations was $70.9 million ($1.17 per unrestricted common share) in 2011, compared to $169.1 million ($2.73 per
unrestricted common share) in 2010.

Catastrophe losses and LAE from continuing operations (excluding loss and LLAE reserve development from prior accident
years) were $163.8 million before tax for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $79.3 million for 2010, an increase
of $84.5 million. Preferred contributed $74.1 million to the increase in catastrophe losses and LAE before tax, with the Direct
and Life Health Insurance segments contributing $4.9 million and $4.6 million, respectively, to the increase. The Company
reported Income from Discontinued Operations of $12.8 million and $15.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

A reconciliation of Total Segment Net Operating Income to Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
is presented below:

2011 2010
Increase Increase

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 (Decrease) 2009 (Decrease)
Segment Net Operating Income (Loss):

Preferred ..ot $ (16.6) $ 506 $ (672) $ 637 $§ (13.1)

SPECIALLY ... 18.3 20.2 1.9 23.5 (3.3)

DHLECE c.vieccttiie ettt taer e (27.1) (1.1) (26.0) (5.3) 4.2

Life and Health InsSurance ............cocoeevueeieiereecrerererenenns 108.5 94.9 13.6 112.1 (17.2)
Total Segment Net Operating Income..........coecevveenrnrrinnene, 83.1 164.6 (81.5) 194.0 (29.4)
Unallocated Net Operating Loss .........ccoeeeeeveeeieriecrenreeennas (26.8) (12.7) (14.1) 9.7 (3.0)
Consolidated Net Operating Income .........ccceeveevvinrevnrnennne 56.3 151.9 (95.6) 184.3 (32.4)
Net Income (Loss) From:

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments................... 21.9 279 (6.0) 16.0 11.9

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............. (7.3) (10.7) 34 (32.8) 22.1
Income from Continuing Operations.............occoereeevvereerennns 70.9 169.1 (98.2) 167.5 1.6
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations..................... 12.8 15.5 2.7) 2.8) 18.3
NEt INCOMIE ...ttt $ 837 $§ 1846 $ (1009) § 1647 $ 19.9

Earned Premiums were $2,173.6 million in 2011, compared to $2,289.4 million in 2010, a decrease of $115.8 million. Earned
Premiums decreased by $59.7 million, $29.7 million and $28.2 million in the Direct, Specialty and Preferred segments,
respectively.

Net Investment Income decreased by $27.7 million in 2011 due primarily to $39.2 million of lower net investment income from
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, partially offset by $9.2 million of higher dividends from Investments in Equity
Securities and $2.8 million of higher interest from Investments in Fixed Maturities.

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments, reported in the Consolidated Statement of Income, were $33.7 million in 2011,
compared to $42.6 million in 2010. Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 were $11.3 million and $16.5 million, respectively. The Company cannot predict when or if similar investment gains or
losses may occur in the future. Other Comprehensive Investment Gains, which are not reported in the Consolidated Statement
of Income, but rather are reported in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, were $201.6 million in 2011,
compared to $179.4 million in 2010. The net comprehensive investment gain for the year ended December 31, 2011 was largely
due to lower overall interest rates, partially offset by a decrease in the fair value of equity securities. The net comprehensive
investment gain for the year ended December 31, 2010 was largely due to lower overall interest rates and an appreciation in the
fair value of equity securities.

CATASTROPHES

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various primary catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES (Continued)

and casualty insurance businesses. Coverage for each primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in various layers
(see Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of these programs). In
addition to these programs, the Preferred segment purchases reinsurance for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions
lower than the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs (“the Preferred NC Program™). The Company purchases
reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than the Company’s primary catastrophe
reinsurance programs.

Catastrophe reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary reinsurance programs, the Preferred NC Program and the FHCF
reduced earned premiums for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009

PIEfEITEA ...oveeeeeveeeecee ettt ettt ettt et e e s et b s a b beae s er b ebabese s s tetsan s s ne $ 200 $ 219 § 224
SPECIALLY ..ottt st ettt skt b et e 0.1 0.3 0.3
DIHIBCL ..ttt ettt ettt et bbbt et e b e et e et st e n e e st esesra s srentanaes 0.8 0.8 1.5
Life and Health INSUTANCE .......ccovvvuiiririeniiiiiiinieictit ittt seese e sae s saeneen 2.3 3.6 4.3
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiltims.. ... .cevieveiereeeieeieriereereeereeseeseesessessersesees $ 232 § 266 $ 285

Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiums for the Life and Health Insurance segment for the year ended December 31, 2011 in
the preceding table includes a reduction of $0.2 million in the Company’s estimate for reinsurance reinstatement premiums for
certain hurricanes that occurred in prior years. Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiums for the Life and Health Insurance
segment in the preceding table includes reinsurance reinstatement premiums of $0.6 million and $0.7 million for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 to reinstate coverage following certain hurricanes.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident years) from continuing
operations were $163.8 million, $79.3 million and $61.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development) by business segment for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009

PIOFEITEA ..ottt ettt ettt et s s e s et esesabeae b ebet et aans b st eannnaen $ 1442 $ 701 $ 476
SPECIALLY ..ttt e ettt she et e s eba e s e baetesbensennens 3.8 2.9 4.1
DIHFECE .. vttt sttt st e a et e e s e e s r e e e e e s e e ne e e e er e era ke ssenbaaanbans 6.7 1.8 3.2
Life and Health INSUTANCE ......c.coveveirreieiiiniecieneneterei et srereesess st etes s eassone 9.1 4.5 6.7
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........cccocccviiiiinnininninnineeneneninnseesessessssessessssssensanes $ 1638 $ 793 $ 616

Total Catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $6.4 million, $1.2 million
and $18.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Preferred segment reported
favorable catastrophe reserve development of $5.5 million, $4.9 million and $18.3 million for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Life and Health Insurance segment reported favorable catastrophe reserve development
of $1.5 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2009, respectively, and adverse catastrophe reserve
development of $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

In the second quarter of 2011, the United States experienced a high volume of spring storms, including a record level of
tornadoes in April. These storms contributed significantly to the increase in the Company’s catastrophe losses and LAE in 2011,
compared to 2010. In the third quarter of 2011, the Company also incurred claims related to Hurricane Irene. Catastrophe losses
and LAE for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes $22.1 million related to Hurricane Irene, of which $21.2 million is
included in the Preferred segment. No major hurricanes that significantly impacted the Company made landfall in the United
States during 2010.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, the Preferred segment experienced a higher severity of catastrophe
losses, excluding development, due in part to a catastrophe loss of $12.9 million resulting from damage caused by hail in the
state of Arizona in the fourth quarter of 2010. No major hurricanes that significantly impacted the Company made landfall in
the United States during 2010 or 2009.

Insurance Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 includes a reduction of expense of $2.8 million due to a decrease in
the Company’s estimate of its share of assessments from the Texas Windstorm Insurance Association (“TWIA”).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

Loss and LAE Reserve Development

Increases (decreases) in the Company’s property and casualty loss and LAE reserves for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 to recognize adverse (favorable) loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident years, hereinafter also
referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Preferred:
NON-CALASITOPRE ... ..v.veveee ettt rae e s ettt st et et et e aes et tenes et enns s snnseananes $ (13.6) § (189) § (42.2)

(5.5) 49)  (18.3)
(19.1) (238)  (60.5)

Specialty:
NON-CALASIIOPNE ...ttt cte et erecaeeeve e cte s sa et esse e essereeneberessassessennereenaes 9.5) 4.0 8.0)
CAASIIOPRE ..ottt st e et sbe b e et et e anere e s e ese st et e banaeneenane 0.1 0.1 0.1
TOtAL...ociiierercreecieete ettt e rerreeaeteateeeseate b e teteaere et reeae s rensaseneenes 9.4) 4.1 (7.9)
Direct:
NOD-CALASTIOPNE ...ttt ettt et st ese e beeas v eebesbessareesnesecrenenas “4.4) (7.0) (12.3)
CAtASIIOPRE ...ttt ettt st ettt r e et en st ranneeeen 0.5 0.2 0.2
TOTAL ..ttt ettt ettt es et es s et besbesr e s e s e R et easeaebsseebeseesenbetnasesanras 3.9) (6.8) 12.1)
Life and Health Insurance:
INOTI-CAEASIIOPNE .....vevi et ite et eie e e ee e e e et eb e te e teeteesteesssenbsetsessesnsesbasesessanseessenssensseres a.n 1.1 2.7
CAtASIIOPNE L. oottt et et eete et e s et e s e ers et s ettebe s reenteersebeenrerneeteeateteens a.5) 34 0.1
TOALL. vttt ettt ettt ettt et et et e s e s e e rene et sasassbes b eene et easberssbesasreseenetaneas (2.6) 4.5 2.6
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years:
NOD-CALASIIOPNE ...ttt ettt vttt et ene sttt eneeteeranbaeeesrensenean (28.6) (20.8) (59.8)
CatASIIOPRE ..ottt st bt s et re s banaesrens 6.4) 1.2) (18.1)
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserve Related to Prior Years.......c.oc.cvevevvevevneeseecrnenns $ (350 %8 (2200 8 (779

See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” of this 2011 Annual Report for additional information pertaining to the
Company’s process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, development of property and
casualty insurance losses and LAE, estimated variability of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and a
discussion of some of the variables that may impact development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE and the
estimated variability of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES
Underlying Combined Ratio

The following discussions for the Preferred, Specialty and Direct segments use the non-GAAP financial measures of

(i) Underlying Losses and LAE and (ii) Underlying Combined Ratio. Underlying Losses and LAE (also referred to in the
discussion as “Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE”) exclude the impact of catastrophe losses, and loss and LAE
reserve development from the Company’s Incurred Losses and LAE, which is the most directly comparable GAAP financial
measure. The Underlying Combined Ratio is computed by adding the Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio
with the Incurred Expense Ratio. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is the combined ratio, which uses total
incurred losses and LAE, including the impact of catastrophe losses, and loss and LAE reserve development. The Company
believes Underlying Losses and LAE and the Underlying Combined Ratio is useful to investors and is used by management to
reveal the trends in the Company’s Property and Casualty insurance businesses that may be obscured by catastrophe losses and
prior year reserve development. These catastrophe losses may cause the Company’s loss trends to vary significantly between
periods as a result of their incidence of occurrence and magnitude, and can have a significant impact on incurred losses and
LAE and the combined ratio. Prior year reserve developments are caused by unexpected loss development on historical
reserves. Because reserve development relates to the re-estimation of losses from earlier periods, it has no bearing on the
performance of the Company’s insurance products in the current period. The Company believes it is useful for investors to
evaluate these components separately and in the aggregate when reviewing the Company’s underwriting performance.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES (Continued)
Consolidated Net Operating Income

Consolidated Net Operating Income is an after-tax, non-GAAP measure and is computed by excluding from Income from
Continuing Operations the after-tax impact of 1) Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments, 2) Net Impairment Losses
Recognized in Earnings related to investments and 3) other significant non-recurring or infrequent items that may not be
indicative of ongoing operations. Significant non-recurring items are excluded when (a) the nature of the charge or gain is such
that it is reasonably unlikely to recur within two years, and (b) there has been no similar charge or gain within the prior two
years. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is Income from Continuing Operations.

The Company believes that Consolidated Net Operating Income provides investors with a valuable measure of its ongoing
performance because it reveals underlying operational performance trends that otherwise might be less apparent if the items
were not excluded. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings related to
investments included in the Company’s results may vary significantly between periods and are generally driven by business
decisions and external economic developments such as capital market conditions that impact the values of the Company’s
investments, the timing of which is unrelated to the insurance underwriting process. Significant non-recurring items are
excluded because, by their nature, they are not indicative of the Company’s business or economic trends.

These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered a substitute for the comparable GAAP financial measures, as
they do not fully recognize the overall underwriting profitability of our business.

A reconciliation of Consolidated Net Operating Income to Income from Continuing Operations for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME ....coccovereriiirieiinieniiiteicrenerereeeee et $ 563 $ 1519 $ 1843
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENES ..........ceceiririrreriinieinrieecee e 21.9 27.9 16.0
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........coecevveevevereerienieieeeeeeeeereeeesreesennens (7.3) (10.7) (32.8)
Income from Continuing OPETatiONS........cecervrruererrierierrierienieeireneesersresssersasssessessesssessessases $ 709 § 169.1 $ 167.5

There were no applicable significant non-recurring items that the Company excluded from the calculation of Consolidated Net
Operating Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.
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PREFERRED

Selected financial information for the Preferred segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
NEt Premitms WITEEI .. ..ecoiiiiieriiceeeerneiciee st s tieteereeestbeesssereessssseesssasssssessessnsesssssessnsesns

Earned Premiums:
AUtomObIIE ..c.vvvieeeeicec e etertereeeeiiebrereeeear—aaeeeeatrrreeerarrraeeeeaaaee

Net Investment INCOME......c.ovueuivririrciiiiicinee et
Other INCOMME .....vveeeiiiiiiit ettt ettt b e s e enaas
TOtAl REVENMUES ...ttt sttt e r et ta et e e saesesaebesessentasas
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE.........cccocccniriininnnnneneereerie e
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ...ttt asasse e
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE.........c.cccooriinnineineeerieneie e sesseesesennns
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........ccccouviinviinnienieiinineieresenseeseesessesestevessesessssessesesenns
Total Incurred Losses and LAE.........cccocoiviiriiierernieneieeiireeseesessereeessesseveseseanesesssssessesesssens
INSUTANCE EXPEIISES ....veuvveirieieieiineetiteett et seese et sr e sttt sassesbebe s e e s sesseseasetesassesnssssesseses
Operating Profit (LOSS).....cceuiviirierereinerieecteeest sttt et ete et eers st be e e e ebessesse s ensessessassesens
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE).....ccocvuerireverieceirierniiieiesenieeeresreinressetaseesesessensesssassesessesasens
Segment Net Operating InCome (LOSS) .......ccevurrerrerriieiereeetereeseeeesreseeeeeeseeveesessessee s saees

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......ccooeecveiiiieverieevneeceeceieeeerenane.
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........ccccevvverereiriieereeieeeseeee s
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccoccveeveriveeiiiceneeeeeeseeese e
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......cc.ocovvvereeieeeienreieniieeiee e
Total Incurred Loss and LAE RaAtiO......ccccocveerirerirrerieeeeeietiieereteetere e ves st seeeness
Incurred EXPense RAtIO ......ccccoveiiiietiriniinicnieenieie e saseas e sasasasessessssssenssssesesesennas
CombINEd RALIO......c.cucuererireeririirccetiee ettt st s et e sas et se st ennes
Underlying Combined Ratio

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio......c.coovoeveviirnirernencieeeeriese .
Incurred EXPense RAtIO ......c.ocieueiieeuciieiieeiieieteinsiscis e ssse et tsesssess e se s sesessens
Underlying Combined RaAtiO..........oeevveerieieiiieieceectecreee et es s s
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation

Underlying Combined RAtiO. .......c.cccieeieriiiriniiiiiereeiec et teee e
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cooeveueemiovieiiieeeiiereeceeeeeeeeeev e
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........c.cccevevorerecereeeeeeeeeieeceeveveeeeeeeen.
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio......cc.cccevevcreeereieeriieereeeeseecieeeeeeeaeesennas
Combined Ratio as RePOILEd..........cooeeriiimiiircririiiiicierer et senenene
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2011 2010 2009
$ 8688 § 8722 § 9183
$5109 § 5447 § 5846
294.9 290.0 294.0
54.0 533 532
859.8 888.0 9318
49.6 52.8 42.1
0.3 0.4 0.4
909.7 9412 9743
584.6 587.3 640.7
144.2 70.1 47.6
(13.6) (18.9)  (42.2)
(5.5) 49)  (183)
709.7 633.6 6278
239.4 2437 260.3
(39.9) 63.9 86.2
228 (133) (2.5
$ (166) $ 506 $ 637
67.9%  662%  68.8%
16.8 7.9 5.1
(1.6) @.1) (4.5)
(0.6) (0.6) (2.0)
825 714 674
27.8 274 27.9
1103%  988%  95.3%
67.9%  662%  63.8%
27.8 274 27.9
957%  93.6%  96.7%
957%  93.6%  96.7%
16.8 7.9 5.1
(1.6) @.1) (4.5)
(0.6) (0.6) (2.0)
1103%  988%  953%
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PREFERRED (Continued)
INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Insurance Reserves:
AULOINODIIE ... ettt et e e e eee e e e e e e e e tsteeasesbesetbeebeesbesntesbeeesreeseansaeasns $ 2747 $§ 2862
HOIMEOWIIETS. ......eieeeeeee ettt et ce e ettt et ettt ettt et e s sbeesae sar e e eabneeesanteesenaessamneesmrsesennneenneees 106.2 97.6
Other Personal ..........coooviciiiieeiiieiereeeere et see e re s eteeteereeereitertreaeteenneaerraenranes 35.3 36.7
TNISUTANICE RESEIVES ..nvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerteesetesinsessonsessissaassseassssessateesesessnseessrseeasrssossressnstessssssensssanenns $ 4162 $ 4205
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
S et et e e e e e s et eesetaeesaeaeesatnee s et eesrt e e sttt e eaar s e s ettt e ae s rneesarbtesenteenanneeeasteeesreeennreeennes $ 259.0 $§ 2615
Incurred but NOt REPOTLEd. .....cccoviiuiiiieieieiiiciiietiteent e ettt 92.9 88.0
TOLAl LLOSS RESEIVES. ...uviieeieiuiieeieeeiieteeetresiteett et e e e bt eseasaeeeab e eemeesbeeabeesabesaesesmeesobesabaeasbeennesaas 351.9 349.5
LLAE RESEIVES...uuveiiieeeeiieeeiteeeereeeeeeeeesteeettsestaaesssseeseteeessssseassesaessansesaasaessasbessansessansesensssesnssesanss 64.3 71.0
Insurance Reserves...........; ................................................................................................................ $ 4162 $ 4205

2011 Compared with 2010

Earned Premiums in the Preferred segment decreased by $28.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to
2010, due to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates. Volume decreased due, in part, to Preferred’s
decision to maintain its underwriting discipline and increase premium rates while facing increased competition in a soft
personal lines insurance market. Also contributing to the decrease in volume was Preferred’s ongoing strategy to reduce its mix
of non-package and non-target market business. Earned premiums from package policies (a package policy provides both
automobile and homeowners insurance coverages in a single policy) comprised 55% of earned premiums in the Preferred
segment in 2011, compared to 52% in 2010. Earned premiums on automobile insurance decreased by $33.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due to lower volume, and, to a lesser extent, lower average premium rates. The
weighted-average number of automobile insurance policies in force decreased by 7.2% for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010. Earned premiums on homeowners insurance increased by $4.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher average premium rates, partially offset by lower volume. The weighted-
average number of homeowners insurance policies in force decreased by 2.5% for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010. Earned premiums on other personal insurance increased by $0.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher average premium rates, partially offset by lower volume.

Net Investment Income in the Preferred segment decreased by $3.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
2010, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, partially offset by
higher dividends on equity securities. The Preferred segment reported net investment income from Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments of $8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $15.5 million for 2010.

Operating results in the Preferred segment decreased by $103.3 million before taxes for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development), higher homeowners
insurance underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, the impact of lower favorable loss and LAE reserve
development (including catastrophe development), higher insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums and lower
net investment income. Underlying incurred losses and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes, and loss and LAE reserve
development.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $144.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$70.1 million for 2010, an increase of $74.1 million. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including catastrophe

development) was $19.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $23.8 million for 2010. Underlying losses
and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 67.9% for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 66.2% for 2010.
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Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE were $389.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to

$399.1 million for 2010. Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE decreased by $9.6 million due primarily to lower claim
volume resulting principally from fewer automobile insurance policies in force and lower underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums, partially offset by higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
development) and the impact of lower favorable loss and LAE reserve development (excluding catastrophe development).
Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums were 73.8% for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to 74.1% for the same period in 2010. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile
insurance earned premiums decreased due primarily to lower average frequency of losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE
(excluding development) were $14.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $7.2 million in 2010.
Favorable Loss and LAE reserve development (excluding catastrophe development) was $1.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to favorable development of $11.6 million for the same period in 2010.

Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE were $293.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$210.0 million for 2010. Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE increased by $83.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) and
higher underlying losses and LAE, partially offset by the impact of higher favorable loss and LAE reserve development
(excluding catastrophe development). Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) on homeowners insurance were
$124.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $61.4 million in 2010. The catastrophe losses and LAE in
2011 included losses from Hurricane Irene and several severe tornadoes and other storms throughout the United States.
Underlying losses and LAE were $181.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $156.9 million for the
same period in 2010. Underlying losses and LAE increased due primarily to higher average estimated frequency and severity of
losses. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (excluding catastrophe development) was $7.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to $3.6 million for the same period in 2010.

Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE were $26.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$24.5 million for 2010. Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE increased by $2.2 million due primarily to higher
catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding developmert), partially offset by the impact of higher favorable loss and LAE reserve
development (excluding catastrophe development). Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) on other personal
insurance were $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $1.5 million for the same period in 2010.
Favorable loss and LAE reserve development {excluding catastrophe development) was $5.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to $3.7 million for the same period in 2010.

Insurance Expenses decreased by $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower
acquisition expenses, partially offset by higher underwriting expenses, largely due to information technology expenses related
to several new systems initiatives.

The Preferred segment reported Segment Net Operating Loss of $16.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
to Segment Net Operating Income of $50.6 million for the same period in 2010. The Preferred segment’s effective income tax
rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received
deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $25.0 million for the year ended

December 31, 2011, compared to $24.7 million for the same period in 2010.

2010 Compared with 2009

Earned Premiums in the Preferred segment decreased by $43.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
2009, due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates. Volume decreased due, in part, to
Preferred’s decision to maintain its underwriting discipline and increase premium rates while facing increased competition in a
soft personal lines insurance market, as well as planned decreases related to certain initiatives implemented in 2009 to improve
profitability and the return on required capital. Earned premiums on automobile insurance decreased by $39.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates. The
weighted-average number of automobile insurance policies in force decreased by approximately 9% for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to 2009. Earned premiums on homeowners insurance decreased by $4.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates.
The weighted-average number of homeowners insurance policies in force decreased by approximately 6% for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to 2009. Earned premiums on other personal insurance increased by $0.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due primarily to higher average premium rates, partially offset by lower volume.
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Net Investment Income in the Preferred segment increased by $10.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared
to 2009, due primarily to higher net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. The Preferred
segment reported net investment income of $15.5 million from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to $7.0 million for 2009.

Operating Profit in the Preferred segment decreased by $22.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009,
due primarily to the impact of lower favorable loss and LAE reserve development and higher incurred catastrophe losses and
LAE (excluding development), partially offset by lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, higher
net investment income and lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums. Favorable loss and LAE reserve
development was $23.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to $60.5 million for 2009. Catastrophe losses
and LAE were $70.1 million (excluding favorable development of $4.9 million), compared to $47.6 million (excluding
favorable development of $18.3 million) for 2009. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 66.2%
for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 68.8% for 2009.

Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE were $399.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
$409.6 million for 2009. Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE decreased by $10.5 million due primarily to lower
claim volume resulting principally from fewer automobile insurance policies in force, partially offset by the impact of lower
favorable loss and LAE reserve development. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $11.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, compared to $32.5 million for 2009. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned
premiums on automobile insurance were 74.1% for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 74.5% for 2009.

Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE were $210.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
$188.8 million for 2009. Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE increased by $21.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due primarily to higher catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) and the
impact of lower favorable loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by lower underlying losses and LAE. Catastrophe
losses and LAE (excluding development) on homeowners insurance were $61.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to $38.8 million for 2009. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $8.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to favorable development of $25.9 million for 2009. Underlying losses and LAE decreased by
$19.0 million due primarily to lower average, estimated frequency and severity of losses. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums on homeowners insurance were 54.1% for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
59.8% for 2009.

Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE were $24.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
$29.4 million for 2009. Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE decreased by $4.9 million due primarily to lower
levels of underlying losses and LAE and the impact of higher favorable loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying losses
and LAE decreased by $2.7 million due to lower average, estimated severity of umbrella liability insurance losses. Favorable
loss and LAE reserve development was $3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to favorable
development of $2.1 million for 2009.

Insurance Expenses decreased by $16.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009. Insurance Expenses
for the year ended December 31, 2009 included a reduction in expense of $2.8 million due to a change in the Preferred
segment’s estimated TWIA assessment for Hurricane Ike. Insurance Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 included a
charge of $3.3 million to write off the Preferred segment’s equity in the North Carolina Beach Plan (the “NC Beach Plan”)
underwriting pool due to a change in the law enacted in the third quarter of 2009. Excluding the impact of the TWIA
assessment and NC Beach Plan write-off, Insurance Expenses decreased $16.1 million due primarily to lower acquisition
expenses, largely due to lower earned premiums, and the favorable impact of expense savings initiatives begun in 2009.

The Preferred segment reported Segment Net Operating Income of $50.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to Segment Net Operating Income of $63.7 million for the same period in 2009. The Preferred segment’s effective
income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends
received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $24.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to $23.4 million for 2009.
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SPECIALTY

Selected financial information for the Specialty segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
NeEt Premitims WITHEIN .....cveveeirieeiericeeeeeceeteseeseseessesessessasaseeasetessesboseentrssesesmsssessossossssess $ 4382 $ 4572 $ 5123
Earned Premiums: -
PerSOnal AULOMODILE.......o.vveeiieeeieeieiieteeeeeeteeeeteee e eeessebe e e sesesaeae e sbesebesea b s eaereessenees $ 4052 § 4313 $ 4715
Commercial AUOMODILE. .......cocooiiiiiiieeieeeeeete et ves e ssaa e st esabs saesenseens 40.0 43.6 56.0
Total EArned PremMiUIMS ... ...coiviiiiieieiieeieereesieesteesetssieeesrenenrsssesssssessnessnsssnsssstsonssssreesnasernans 445.2 474.9 527.5
Net INVEStMENt INCOME.......c.veveerrireeeeire et seetereenreieere e sascabis bt sres b s se b ereebs s resreas 21.1 24.8 20.8
Oher INCOIMIE .....oovvivieeeeecete ettt eve et et e e e aesnte s heebaessas b es et ereeebesanesresanssnesassnassresnnssreenes 0.5 0.6 0.4
TOLAL REVEIIUES ..vvivvieeeeeeeeeceiereeteeeteeeesveesaeeesesteestesbtessesneessessseeaes sheessesbassnessesssessinnssneennanes 466.8 500.3 548.7

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE........cccoooiiviiiniessisenne 358.4 376.0 422.6
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..o 3.8 2.9 4.1
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE........c.coocoriuiimennininciinenesssess e 9.5) 4.0 (8.0)

Catastrophe L058eS and LAE .........c.ovueieremreeiresieieeseierenesesiesssessesasssssssssssssissnes 0.1 0.1 0.1
Total Incurred Losses and LAE.......cooceiieeiiineniniiinincniis it esss et 352.8 383.0 418.8
INSUIANCE EXPEISES ...vcurveuerriucnietinteriietiieeei ittt e sne s st ss b ba et st eses bt 91.5 92.7 99.4
Operating Profit........cccccccervivininiinnieinen, eeereerbenreeeresetesheesbesbeetesree it enbe b e aesreeneaas 22.5 24.6 30.5
INCOME TAX EXPEISE....ceiiiuiiiieteieieiice ettt st b e ens s ba s sreseenees “4.2) 4.4 (7.0)
Segment Net Operating INCOME ........covvcevereuemiiccricceinieriinsess sttt sssesaens $ 183 § 202 $ 235

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio......c.cccccoviiiiiinininiiiienicns 80.4% 79.2% 80.1%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio......ccocooeiciviiiniiininiicccieiisiieneans 0.9 0.6 0.8
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio......c...ccccocciiiiiiiniininicieiiens 2.1) 0.8 (L.5)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio — — —_
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio........cc.cccccveuiuns ettt ettt st sae e s se st ene 79.2 80.6 79.4
Incurred EXPense RALO ......coeceiiiiriiieieinieenieeinisente sttt eveen s b es 20.6 19.5 18.8
Combined Ratio.......ccocevveveeiereninienenreeeieninienenes e ereeteeerteeesrete et e bt r e ettt sae e anan 99.8% 100.1% 98.2%
Underlying Combined Ratio -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio......ccccccociviiiiniiniiiniiininien, 80.4% 79.2% 80.1%
Incurred EXPense RALIO .......cccoieeiiiniiiniiiiieincicienesienis st s s sae s 20.6 19.5 18.8
Underlying Combined RatO.....c.c.ovveeieriiniiiniiiniiciec i e 101.0% 98.7% 98.9%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation -
Underlying Combined Rat10..........coevveeririireiiircieet ettt 101.0% 98.7% 98.9%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......ccceccevviriiiiiniiininiiiincecenens 0.9 0.6 0.8
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cc.ccoccoviiniiiiniincecee, 2.1) 0.8 (1.5)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........ccccoeeceiiciiniiiinincnnniiceeencnene — — —
Combined Ratio a8 REPOTLEd........ccoouruirireririeiiccrcctnrceeieei et 99.8% 100.1% 98.2%
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SPECIALTY (Continued)
INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Insurance Reserves:
Personal AULOMODILE .......coiviviiiriireeeeieeeiee ettt etesiseraeste st e esbessasssesssestentesnsessaessessessnsnsesseenses $ 1666 $ 1819
Commercial AUtOMODILE ...........ociiiiiiiieitieceie et e reeere et e s e ese e eeteeeseesseesse e neaeseeanssesnsaenssensenansann 51.5 61.7
OBRET ...c.eeeiteeeet ettt ettt ettt te e s e et e s s e aesses s sassassessessassasessass sesseasensansssans e sesseaseaseataneeseemaesessenean 7.8 7.2
INSULANCE RESEIVES....cuvivierierirereriereeteeeeeteseeseeteesestaseesseseesessassessassasssasassensessansessessessenssseesessessessessenses $ 2259 § 2508
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
CASE c.tieeviteetesetetest et est et es et e s e s et e s e e te s s et aae b e b e et e b s b ebe st ke R et ea e s e R se R e Re R e st R e s e e st s e R e s e R et e R e s enenne $ 1351 $ 1519
Incurred but NOt Reported........c.ooecviiiiiinininiiiiiiieiiie ittt 47.7 63.4
TOtAl LOSS RESEIVES. ...ccveverieieeieiientenieteeriestt sttt sttt et sbe bt e s st et ettt sbe b e sbeabeneesaeneonas 182.8 215.3
LLAE RESEIVES .. ccovvieuvrerreereeiseeeianeseesseessessnssssessseessaesssaesseensassssnesstasessesssasseesssesaseesasesssessseeranesases 43.1 35.5
INSUIANCE RESEIVES....viuveviriivirierieeteteeseteseeseseesss et esessesessabessasessssessesesesassessasessssesensessrsesersasersesessesanes $ 2259 §$§ 2508

2011 Compared with 2010

Earned Premiums in the Specialty segment decreased by $29.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
2010, due to lower earned premiums for both personal and commercial automobile insurance. Personal automobile insurance
earned premiums decreased by $26.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower
volume and, to a lesser extent, lower average earned premium per policy. Throughout 2010 and 2011, Specialty’s personal
automobile insurance policies in force decreased due to economic conditions, increased competition and higher premium rates,
particularly in California. Personal automobile insurance policies in force were approximately 302,000 at December 31, 2011,
compared to 329,000 at the beginning of 2011 and approximately 351,000 at the beginning of 2010. Specialty expects that
personal automobile insurance policies in force will be marginally down in 2012. Commercial automobile insurance earned
premiums decreased by $3.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower volume.
Commercial automobile insurance volume has decreased due primarily to a smaller renewal book of business, partially offset
by higher retention rates and increased new business production. In the fourth quarter of 2011, Specialty reorganized the
product management and sales structure to better align management with the current product mix and improve focus for all
sales initiatives.

Net Investment Income in the Specialty segment decreased by $3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
2010, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. The Specialty segment
reported net investment income of $3.5 million from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to $7.3 million for 2010.

Operating Profit in the Specialty segment decreased by $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010,
due primarily to lower operating profit in personal automobile insurance, offset by higher operating profit in commercial
automobile insurance and other insurance.

Personal automobile insurance operating profit decreased by $6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
2010, due primarily to higher underlying incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned
premiums, higher insurance expenses as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums and lower net
investment income, partially offset by the favorable effects of loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying incurred losses
and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes and loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying incurred losses and LAE as a
percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums increased due primarily to higher frequency of losses and, to a
lesser extent, higher severity of losses for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010. Loss and LAE reserve
development on personal automobile insurance had a favorable effect of $3.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to an adverse effect of $3.7 million in 2010. Insurance expenses as a percentage of personal automobile insurance
earned premiums increased due primarily to investment in policy and billing systems.
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Commercial automobile insurance operating profit increased by $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
to 2010, due primarily to the favorable effects of loss and LAE reserve development and lower underlying incurred losses and
LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums. Favorable Loss and LAE reserve development on
commercial automobile insurance was $6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $1.1 million in 2010.
Underlying incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums decreased for the
year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower severity, partially offset by higher frequency of
losses.

Other insurance consists of certain reinsurance pools in run-off and other personal insurance in run-off. Other insurance
operating loss was $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $0.6 million for 2010. Adverse loss and
LAE reserve development on certain reinsurance pools in run-off was $0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to $0.7 million in 2010. Excluding development from these reinsurance pools, loss and LAE reserve development on
other personal insurance had an adverse effect of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 and was almost entirely
related to two liability claims, one from 2003 and the other from 2005. Insurance expenses for the year ended December 31,
2010 included a reduction of expense of $0.8 million related to a change in estimate for uncollectible reinsurance.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Specialty segment was $18.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$20.2 million for 2010. The Specialty segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends
received deductions were $10.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $11.5 million in 2010.

2010 Compared with 2009

Earned Premiums in the Specialty segment decreased by $52.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
2009, due to lower earned premiums for both personal and commercial automobile insurance. Personal automobile insurance
earned premiums decreased by $40.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due to lower volume,
slightly offset by higher average premium rates. Economic conditions, increased competition and higher premium rates,
particularly in California, all contributed to a decline in the number of personal automobile insurance policies in force in the
Specialty segment. There were approximately 360,000 personal automobile insurance policies in force at the beginning of 2009,
rising to a peak of approximately 380,000 policies at the end of the first quarter of 2009. Policies in force declined to
approximately 351,000 policies at December 31, 2009 and then further declined to approximately 329,000 policies at the end of
2010. Commercial automobile insurance earned premiums decreased by $12.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to 2009, due to lower volume and, to a lesser extent, lower average earned premium per policy. Commercial
automobile insurance volume declined due, in part, to increased competition and a contraction of the commercial automobile
insurance market resulting from the continued effects of the economy. Average earned premium per policy on commercial
automobile insurance declined due, in part, to the continued shift in the mix of Specialty’s commercial automobile insurance
business towards light commercial vehicle insurance products, which carry a lower premium rate per policy than other classes
of commercial vehicles.

Net Investment Income in the Specialty segment increased by $4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
2009, due primarily to higher net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. The Specialty
segment reported net investment income of $7.3 million from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to $3.5 million for 2009.

Operating Profit in the Specialty segment decreased by $5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009,
due to lower operating profit in commercial automobile insurance and other insurance, partially offset by higher operating profit
in personal automobile insurance.
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Personal automobile insurance operating profit increased by $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
2009, due primarily to higher net investment income and lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of personal
automobile insurance earned premiums, partially offset by the impact of adverse loss and LAE reserve development and higher
insurance expenses as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums. Net investment income allocated to
personal automobile insurance increased by $4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due
primarily to higher investment returns on Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of personal automobile earned premiums improved due primarily to lower frequency, partially offset by higher
severity. Loss and LAE reserve development on personal automobile insurance had an adverse effect of $3.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010, compared to a favorable effect of $2.3 million for 2009. Personal automobile insurance
catastrophe losses and LAE were $3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to $4.2 million for 2009.
Insurance expenses as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums increased due primarily to increased
investment in technology and reduced economies of scale.

Commercial automobile insurance operating profit decreased by $7.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared
to 2009, due primarily to lower favorable reserve development and higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of
commercial automobile insurance earned premiums and higher insurance expenses as a percentage of commercial automobile
insurance earned premiums. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development on commercial automobile insurance was $1.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to $5.4 million for 2009. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage
of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums increased for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due
primarily to higher frequency, partially offset by lower severity of losses. Net investment income allocated to commercial
automobile insurance was flat for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, as lower levels of investments
allocated to commercial automobile insurance were offset by higher investment returns on Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments. Insurance expenses as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums increased due primarily
to increased investment in technology and reduced economies of scale.

Operating results in other insurance decreased by $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due
primarily to the impact of adverse loss and LAE reserve development. Loss and LAE reserve development on certain
reinsurance pools in run-off had an adverse effect of $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to a
favorable development of $0.2 million for 2009. Excluding development on these reinsurance pools, loss and LAE reserve
development on other personal insurance had an adverse effect of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, and was
almost entirely related to two liability claims that had been previously reported, one from 2003 and the other from 2005. Loss
and LAE reserve development on other personal insurance was not significant for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Specialty segment was $20.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
$23.5 million for 2009. Specialty’s effective tax rate differs from the statutory tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment
income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $11.5
million for both the year ended December 31, 2010, and the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Selected financial information for the Direct segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Net Premiums WIIEEI.......cvevivieeeiiecetieecee vt re e ee e ese e sreeenesssressssssesssssneoseseensnsens $2090 $ 2693 $ 3203
Earned Premiums:
AULOTIODILE ...ttt s e s s bt b seeb et bt st ebss s eressebasnebetnanetees $ 2133 § 2735 $ 338.0
HOIMEOWIELS ... .cueiiiiieeei ettt ettt atssreese st e ebe b assessesseseeteesesrensennns 9.2 8.7 7.1
Other PETSONAL .......cveiieeeieieieiceeteeeteet ettt ettt e e e e eeer e s s s enenenns 0.2 0.2 0.5
Total Earned PIEmMIUMS ........cccccuvuerierieinieeriitereiteeteteeeereereseevees e sseeteeresseenesressessennesesnssennns 222.7 282.4 345.6
Net InVestment INCOMIE.......cc.vviiiiriiiieririereee et e ses s eb et e b e e s esseesseraesseesnsssens 17.9 214 18.5
OLheT INCOME ...ttt et ste e es e ebe st e e saasse s eseeseesssbessaseessasnas 0.1 0.1 0.9
TOtAl REVENUES ...ttt ettt bevs st ess b e et eseebessebe s ereenenans 240.7 303.9 365.0
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE..........ccccccoviverieninineenieeeiseeseee s snssssesens 194.8 228.9 278.0
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccccoeiviiveniiieennieeceenesees et eesteveneereseessseesensesesens 6.7 1.8 3.2
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE............cccocvviviiiiiiiiecieeesiereeie e resesreonssneenes “4.4) (7.0) (12.3)
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........oooceiieeiiiiinieee e cvesieere et reee e eneveeseereenens 0.5 0.2 0.2
Total Incurred Losses and LAE...........ocooovviuiioiciececeeeeeeee ettt saenes 197.6 2239 269.1
INSUTANCE EXPEIISES -..uvinvevreiieiitiieeieeee ettt ettt sttt ea et e ene e ebeere s eseessereenseteeseerenneseen 76.3 87.1 107.0
Write-off of Intangible Assets from Direct Response AcquiSition............covevvveveievereveennnn. 13.5 — 1.5
OPEIAtING LLOSS.....eeuinieeeieteieiciee e e et a e v et et et e b vt b ebe b esessetesesensenensesensenens (46.7) (7.1) (12.6)
Income Tax BENETit ..........cccoiiririieeiirieesee ettt ettt ne s e s enenes 19.6 6.0 7.3
Segment Net Operating LOSS......c.cveiviieeeiiveeiiieericeetee et seeeseeees e ereoresssseessessesssnssssssens $ 271y § (1.1) $ (5.3)
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccovvevviverivevenriririnecereeenenenans 87.5% 81.1% 80.5%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccoevveviiveirieeciinreireeresiceeeeensenennan 3.0 0.6 0.9
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccocovveeeiieveveiieeeineeeeeeeereeeereenes (2.0) 2.5) (3.6)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........cccocecerieierirecerieeiieinieencerese e 0.2 0.1 0.1
Total Incurred Loss and LAE RAtIO........ccceioiiuiieeeeeceeeteeeeceee ettt 88.7 79.3 77.9
Incurred Expense Ratio, Including Write-off of Intangible Assets...........cccocevvvvevreeereennn. 40.3 30.8 314
Combined RAtIO......cocoviirieiiiieietece ettt ettt et ettt sttt n s as 129.0% 110.1% 109.3%
Underlying Combined Ratio -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccccceeeveieieieiecccceeeerceeen, 87.5% 81.1% 80.5%
Incurred Expense Ratio, Including Write-off of Intangible ASSets..........c.oooevvivevririiiinnnne. 40.3 30.8 314
Underlying Combined Ratio.......ccccvvvuiuiieeiiieieiiicceieeectc et 127.8% 111.9% 111.9%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation - T
Underlying Combined RatO..........ccviveeiviriiririicrieiieiee ettt ees e eeeenenens 127.8% 111.9% 111.9%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE RatiO..........ccovvreeeeeeiereieeeeieeseseeseees e 3.0 0.6 0.9
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.............cccoeoveveieveveeieiieiiveseeeeennns 2.0 2.5) (3.6)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio............coceevevvereeeiceeeeeeeoreeeseesenenseeeeees 0.2 0.1 0.1
Combined Ratio as REPOILEd.........c.coeeioiuierrivieieieetereeecreeeee et et eree st s s st s seeees s eeneseenes 129.0% 110.1% 109.3%
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INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Insurance Reserves:
AULOMMIODIIE .. vttt ettt st sae st e st e e e b esaeseess e esassessansaseesseanesesbassarsessensarsenseseesessensensens $ 2165 $§ 2295
HOMIEOWIIETS. ....ecuvieieeieeeteritesitest et et eetessee b e e st e saaee s bt esnt e ameeeasesabeeentasasreasbesastessaasseanssesaseessaans - 4.8 3.7
OHRET ...ttt ettt et e et a st s ket e et s e e b e e e st e Rn et e beea e s ba s s h et e st enaesa et e esaareasenee 2.6 24
TOtal INSUTANCE RESEIVES....c.civevririirrieieriitesrereeeaerirsessessesessessestessassessessassessensessessesessssssessssessersessessonsesseses $ 2239 $ 2356
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
CSE cuvnveieivieerereeeseteease et e ss st ebest s e a et e ba st et e s e e s e Re et e sa et e s e s e s et e an st A et ek eSS s et s e s b eatebe st neneshenrebes e terenrerees $ 1409 § 1449
Incurred but Not REPOITEd.......coiviiriirieiiieiiiiinecererictet sttt tee s see et sae e e e st esaesaessannens 54.0 56.8
TOtal LSS RESEIVES.....ocuiiiieitiriieciiiiitieeees ettt ettt ettt et e bt st sre e s st e besesatesseanaansnane 194.9 201.7
LAE RESEIVES......ccveieveeeriaiensetsutesessestasessesessessessensastssessessensensassersessessessessassesessansessansessessessesessansessanes 29.0 33.9
INSUTANCE RESEIVES....ourveereiuerirereretsiieiietsiasensesesetesesesesesssssssssasesas s sasassasssssssnsssasasssssasesesasasesssosssssssnsssasases $ 2239 § 2356

2011 Compared with 2010

Earned Premiums in the Direct segment decreased by $59.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010,
due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates.

The Direct segment continues to roll out a newly designed product and align its marketing program to target better response and
conversion rates from customers with more favorable risk characteristics. The newly designed product includes increased
pricing sophistication to improve premium rate accuracy by customer segment. Actions to improve premium rate adequacy
continue for all programs in line with rate level indications. The Direct segment has implemented and continues to implement
rate increases across its book of business. These actions have led to a decrease in the overall premium volume, with the number
of policies in force at December 31, 2011 decreasing by approximately 20% from the level at December 31, 2010.

Along with the above mentioned actions, Direct intends to withdraw its direct automobile insurance business in the state of
Michigan and terminate broker relationships comprising approximately 20% of Direct Response’s business in the state of New
York. Accordingly, the Direct segment expects that earned premiums will continue to decline in the next several quarters.

Net Investment Income in the Direct segment decreased by $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
2010, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. Net investment income
from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments was $3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $6.3
million for 2010.

The Direct segment reported Operating Loss of $46.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to Operating
Loss of $7.1 million for 2010. Operating results declined in the Direct segment for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to the partial write-off of an intangible asset acquired in the Direct Response acquisition,
higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, higher insurance expenses as a percentage of earned
premiums, higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) and lower net investment income. Underlying
losses and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes, and loss and LAE reserve development.

Incurred Losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums was 88.7% for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
79.3% for 2010. Incurred Losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased for the year ended December 31, 2011
due primarily to higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, higher incurred catastrophe losses and
LAE (excluding development) and the impact of lower favorable loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying losses and
LAE as a percentage of earned premiums was 87.5% for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 81.1% for the same
period in 2010. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to increased severity on automobile insurance. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
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development) was $6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $1.8 million for 2010. Favorable loss and
LAE reserve development was $3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $6.8 million for 2010.

Insurance Expenses in the Direct segment were 34.3% of earned premiums for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
30.8% of earned premiums for 2010. Insurance Expenses as a percentage of earned premiums increased for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher amortization expense related to the acquisition of Direct
Response, higher restructuring costs and higher consulting expenses.

While Direct has taken various rate actions on the Direct Response book of business over the past several years, the actions
taken thus far have not improved the book of business at the rate that Direct had initially expected. Accordingly, as part of its
strategic planning process, Direct has developed additional initiatives to improve the profitability of the Direct Response book
of business including terminating certain unprofitable broker relationships in the state of New York and converting the book of
business to Direct’s product, which has better pricing sophistication. As a result, Direct determined that the customer
relationships intangible asset related to the Direct Response acquisition was impaired at December 31, 2011 and recognized a
charge of $13.5 million in 2011 to write down the asset to its estimated fair value.

Direct reported a Segment Net Operating Loss of $27.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to a Segment
Net Operating Loss of $1.1 million for the same period in 2010. The Direct segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the
federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income, dividends received deductions and changes in
certain recoverables that are not taxable for tax purposes. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions
were $8.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $10.0 million for the same period in 2010.

2010 Compared with 2009

On February 13, 2009, the Company completed its acquisition of Direct Response in a cash transaction. Direct Response
specializes in the sale of personal automobile insurance through direct mail and the internet through web insurance portals and
its own websites, response.com and teachers.com. The results for Direct Response are included in the Direct segment from the
date of acquisition. Direct Response products had earned premiums of $106.8 million for year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to $115.2 million from the date of acquisition through December 31, 2009.

Earned Premiums in the Direct segment decreased by $63.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009,
due primarily to lower volume.

The Direct segment has implemented rate increases across its book of business. These actions have led to a decrease in the
overall premium volume, with the number of policies in force at December 31, 2010 decreasing by 19% from the level at
December 31, 2009. While premium rate increases have been implemented over much of the Direct segment’s book of
business, average earned premiums per policy have remained relatively flat. In the third quarter of 2010, one of Direct’s web
insurance portal partners was purchased and the acquiring company ceased marketing for the portal. The number of new
policies written through this portal has declined substantially. The web insurance portal partner represented 8% and 9% of
Direct’s policies in force at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.

Net Investment Income in the Direct segment increased by $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
2009, due primarily to higher net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. The Direct segment
reported net investment income of $6.3 million from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to $3.7 million for 2009.
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Direct reported Operating Loss of $7.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to Operating Loss of $12.6
million for 2009. Operating results improved in the Direct segment for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009,
due primarily to higher Net investment income and lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums, partially
offset by higher incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums.

Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 79.3% for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
77.9% for 2009. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due primarily to higher underlying
losses and LAE and the impact of lower favorable loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by lower catastrophe
losses and LAE (excluding development).

Insurance Expenses in the Direct segment were $87.1 million, or 30.8% of earned premiums, for the year ended December 31,
2010, compared to $107.0 million, or 31.0% of earned premiums, for 2009. Insurance Expenses decreased for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due primarily to lower restructuring costs, lower salary and benefits expenses due, in
part, to certain restructuring actions taken in 2009 and lower bad debt expense, partially offset by higher amortization expense
related to the acquisition of Direct Response. Restructuring costs were $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to $7.2 million for 2009.

Direct reported Segment Net Operating Loss of $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to Segment Net
Operating Loss of $5.3 million for 2009. Direct’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends
received deductions were $10.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to $9.9 million for 2009.
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LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE

Selected financial information for the Life and Health Insurance segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Earmned Premiums:
5 T O SRRSO $ 3951 $ 3967 $§ 399.7
Accident and HEalth ..........c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeceeee ettt eve e ae e 166.3 161.9 159.2
PrOPETLY . ...tiiiteeieeterie et etesee e e et e st e et e s ea e st eaaebesasesbesatesbasssessasatesbnesbesasenbenssessensessasnsenseaes 84.5 85.5 91.7
Total Earned PremilmS ......c.coveeeirieceeiiieeciieieieieeseeseseessessesseesesessessessesaessesessssssnsessensesees 645.9 644.1 650.6
Net INVESTMENT INCOMIC...c..ivieriiieeriiieciiseeieseete et eteetsne et ssiesiaeeestessbessaessessssraessessasssens 201.9 214.3 2253
Oher INCOME ....ovieeiiriieeeieeeee ettt ete et s e et sae s beesbesaaesbeesaesraebessaesbansessnansesssensen 0.1 0.2 0.7
TOtAl REVEIUES ...c.veviieniiiiiiiiieetieiiete sttt sese e et st e e ssn e basssaesesbesabesbsenbensasssassessnensessaense 847.9 858.6 876.6
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE.........ccocvviviiieeiinieniinenicneneeseneenne 385.6 406.8 423.8
INSUIANCE EXPENSES ..covvirveeriiiiriiriirienieiereetiere sttt st e e stean sttt sbessbesrasresonsebeenseseeenns 294.7 283.0 284.3
WIite-01F Of GOOAWILL......couiiieiiiiieietecccec ettt s b et bs s beseaenas — 14.8 —
OPETAtING PTOIt ... iviieriiietiieieiiceeie ettt sttt sbe e be st aesbennesassnsbasaens 167.6 154.0 168.5
INCOME TAX EXPENSE...ccueiuriereriiriinieiienieninteee ettt st eetesste st s bt besaessbebtsssesbesseestenne 59.1) (59.1) (56.4)
Segment Net Operating INCOME ......cc.eiuierieiirieereiieteieeteeeeste ettt svsetesaesan e sesenessenveas $ 1085 $ 949 §$§ 112.1
INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Insurance Reserves:
Future Policyholder Benefits........ccvvveviiiiiniiieieiieireer ettt see e e s e et eenesnneseseaessenes $ 3,046.8 $ 3,004.8
Incurred Losses and LAE Reserves:
L8 ettt et e e b e b g e r e e Rtk a e b et b e st e Rt s et e s e esesaenteseaenee 33.8 353
Accident and Health ...t st basae 22.1 23.6
PLOPEILY vttt ettt sttt st s bt sbe e b s a e s e e st b be b ba et e aeenes 8.3 20.8
Total Incurred Losses and LAE RESEIVES ....c..icvericiriiiriirirenietetirteesresenaestessessesessassesaessesssssssessenes 64.2 79.7
TNISUTANCE RESEIVES ....cuviuiieeeeticeieiecte ettt ettt et ettt eeteere e ebeesbenb s ertestesteensestee st essesnsssseaeessesnsesseanens $ 3,111.0 $ 3,084.5

2011 Compared with 2010

Earned Premiums in the Life and Health Insurance segment increased by $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to higher accident and health insurance earned premiums. Earned premiums on accident and
health insurance increased by $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same period in 2010, due
primarily to higher average premium rates, partially offset by lower volume of insurance. Net Investment Income decreased by
$12.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same period in 2010, due primarily to lower net
investment income on Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, partially offset by higher levels of investments.

Kemper believes that some of the health insurance products sold by its subsidiary, Reserve National, could be adversely
impacted by some provisions of the Health Care Acts that were signed into law in the first quarter of 2010. In particular, a
provision which sets minimum loss ratios for health insurance policies could adversely impact Reserve National’s business
prospects. Such affected health insurance products accounted for $72.1 million, or 43%, of the Life and Health Insurance
segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums for the year ended December 31, 2011. Reserve National has been
adapting its business model in response and in 2011 began transitioning its sales to other health insurance products that are not
expected to be as severely impacted by the Health Care Acts. In connection with the transition, Reserve National suspended
sales of such affected health insurance products at the end of 2011. The Life and Health Insurance segment expects earned
premiums from these affected health insurance products to decrease by approximately 15% in 2012 due to such suspension of
sales. There can be no assurance that the transition will fully offset the impact from suspending sales of the affected health
insurance products.
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In prior years, the Life and Health Insurance segment has taken several actions to reduce its exposure to catastrophe risks.
These actions have included non-renewing dwelling policies in coastal areas and areas further inland and the halting of new
sales of dwelling coverage in all markets. The non-renewals were substantially completed in the second quarter of 2009. As the
remaining insurance policies providing dwelling coverage run off over the next several years, the Life and Health Insurance
segment expects that its exposure to catastrophe risks will continue to decline along with the related earned premiums. Earned
premiums from dwelling coverage comprised 30%, 32% and 36% of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s earned premiums
on property insurance for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Operating Profit in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $167.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
to $154.0 million for 2010. Operating Profit increased for the year ended December 31, 2011 due primarily to lower
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE and the impact of a charge to write off goodwill in 2010, partially offset
by the lower net investment income and higher insurance expenses. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE
decreased by $21.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower policyholders’
benefits on life insurance, lower accident and health insurance losses as a percentage of accident and health earned premiums
and the favorable impact of Loss and LAE reserve development on property insurance, partially offset by higher catastrophe
losses and LAE (excluding development) on property insurance. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $253.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $263.0 million in 2010, a decrease of $9.8 million. Policyholder benefits
on life insurance decreased due primarily to reserve adjustments in 2011 associated with correcting expiry dates for certain
extended term life insurance policies and better mortality experience, partially offset by higher reserve additions for persisting
policies. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $88.9 million, or 53.5% of accident and health insurance earned
premiums, for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $95.7 million, or 59.1% of accident and health insurance earned
premiums, in 2010. Incurred accident and health insurance losses as a percentage of accident and health insurance earned
premiums decreased due primarily to lower frequency and severity of health claims. Incurred Losses and LAE on property
insurance were $43.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $48.1 million in 2010. Favorable loss reserve
development on property insurance was $2.6 million (including favorable development of $1.5 million on catastrophes) for the
year ended December 31, 2011, compared to adverse development of $4.5 million (including adverse development of $3.4
million on catastrophes) in 2010. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $9.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to $4.5 million in 2010. Insurance Expenses in the Life and Health Insurance segment increased
by $11.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher commission and fringe
benefit expenses, partially attributable to an increase in the number of career agents employed, and higher amortization of
deferred policy acquisition costs. The Company wrote off $14.8 million of goodwill in 2010 related to Reserve National.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $108.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to $94.9 million for the same period in 2010.

2010 Compared with 2009

Earned Premiums in the Life and Health Insurance segment decreased by $6.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to 2009. Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to 2009, due to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates. Earned premiums on accident and
health insurance increased by $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due to higher average
premium rates, partially offset by lower volume. Earned premiums on property insurance decreased by $6.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due primarily to lower volume resulting from a strategy to reduce the segment’s
catastrophe exposure through the non-renewal of dwelling policies in certain coastal areas and the continued run-off of dwelling
policies in all other markets, slightly offset by lower catastrophe reinsurance premiums and higher average premium rates on
dwelling coverage in Texas.
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Net Investment Income in the Life and Health Insurance segment decreased by $11.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2010, compared to 2009, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments,
partially offset by higher net investment income from investments in fixed maturities. The Life and Health Insurance segment
reported net investment income of $15.8 million from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to net investment income of $31.6 million for 2009.

Operating Profit in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $154.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared
to $168.5 million for 2009. The Life and Health Insurance segment wrote off $14.8 million of goodwill at the Company’s health
insurance subsidiary, Reserve National, in the third quarter of 2010. Excluding the write-off of goodwill, Operating Profit in the
Life and Health Insurance segment increased $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE decreased by $17.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to 2009, due primarily to lower policyholders’ benefits on life insurance and lower losses and LAE on property
insurance. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $263.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
$272.1 million for 2009, and decreased due primarily to better mortality experience on life insurance. Policyholders’ benefits
and incurred losses and LAE on accident and health insurance were $95.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to $98.0 million for 2009. Incurred accident and health losses as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due
primarily to lower Medicare supplement claims as a percentage of earned premiums, partially offset by higher first time cancer
related incurred accident and health insurance claims as a percentage of accident and health insurance earned premiums.
Incurred Losses and LAE, net of reinsurance, on property insurance were $48.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to $53.7 million for 2009, and decreased due primarily to lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development)
and lower non-catastrophe losses and LAE, partially offset by higher adverse loss and LAE reserve development. Catastrophe
losses and LAE, net of reinsurance (excluding development), were $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to $6.7 million for 2009. Adverse loss reserve development on property insurance was $4.5 million (including
adverse development of $3.3 million on catastrophes) for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to adverse development
of $2.6 million (including favorable development of $0.1 million on catastrophes) for 2009.

Based on the continuing uncertainty about the impact of the Health Care Acts on Reserve National’s operations and the
increased likelihood that the minimum loss ratio provisions of the Health Care Acts would apply to some of Reserve National’s
non-comprehensive health insurance coverages, the Company determined that goodwill associated with Reserve National was
impaired and not recoverable at September 30, 2010 and wrote off $14.8 million of goodwill in the third quarter of 2010. See
Note 5, “Goodwill,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $94.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2010, compared to $112.1 million for 2009.
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Net Investment Income

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Investment Income:
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturiti€s.......cc.ocevrreeereerrenieerneeeeecciessiesicsne e .. $ 2466 $ 2438 §$§ 241.0
Dividends on EQUItY SECUITLIES ....c..cvvuiiirmeiiiniiiiinninirieie st 252 16.0 13.2
ShOTt-termm INVESHMEIES. ....cveeveveeeeeeiieetiereseeiesee e eeersten b eseessercenesseearesesesasesssbsesssnsetssaesaens 0.1 0.3 0.8
Loans t0 POLCYROIAETS ......ccoiiiiiiciiicciiiiiii ettt 17.7 16.5 15.4
REAL ESTALE ..ovveeeeceeeeieteee ettt et eee et r et sr ettt sbessa s n e ae s sr e b sas st aenssrnseaeenneenean 26.0 27.1 28.4
Equity Method Limited Liability INVeStMENts .........cocoieviverininerinennniesssieneees 9.6 48.8 47.7
10131 15) Sp VU OO OSSO P PO PO UOPRRTPRO 0.3 — 0.3
Total INveStMENt INCOMIE ......ieveiiieeiieieeteeitet et cee ettt eane e b e e ens 3255 352.5 346.8
Investment Expenses:
REALESLALE ...vevveeeeeeeriereeteeereeestesrestesteressesbeeess et st orestssbesaesbesa st ess s saesas e e s s ebeesb et esaseresbaeneas 25.9 25.7 26.4
Other INVEStMENE EXPENSES ....cucveuerieriineirieieiireciiitiisieesterise et s s es s ansae s 1.6 1.1 0.5
Total INVEStMENt EXPENSES...c.cevueetiriereiieriirieiiieeri it sreeisre e et etssaesre e ersesnsaseens 275 26.8 26.9

Net TNVESEMENT TNCOMIE. ......eeveereeeeeeeeeeeeireeeeeseterssseeseseesestersesseressssssensssesssssesensessasnesessassessanss $ 2980 $ 3257 $ 3199

2011 Compared with 2010

Net Investment Income decreased by $27.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010. Investment
income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments decreased by $39.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to a lower total rate of return. Dividends on equity securities increased by $9.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher levels of income producing equity securities.
Interest and dividends on fixed maturities and policyholder loans increased by $2.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively for
the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010.

2010 Compared with 2009

Net Investment Income increased by $5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009. Interest and
dividends on fixed maturities increased by $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due
primarily to a higher level of fixed maturities due, in part, to the Company reinvesting a portion of its short-term investments in
fixed maturities. Dividends on equity securities increased by $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
2009, due primarily to higher yields on equity securities. Investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments
increased by $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, due primarily to a higher investment base
in 2010, partially offset by a lower total rate of return. Investment income from policyholder loans increased by $1.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to the same period in 2009, due primarily to higher levels of policyholder loans
outstanding.
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Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments

The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS ON SALES. ... iveveviieriieeteieteetetest et st etessesereesessesasteresaansesansesaseesessssasessessssssessssesensnns $ 142 § 215 $ 128

LLOSSES 01 SALES ...iuvieiiieeetieteeiei ettt ettt ettt et be st e st esaeseaebe b essessesassssbantesbenseseeranseranen 0.1) 0.1) 2.7
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES....coveetiieetirteertiiteereciee it etesteetestesteetestressesbaessbessesstesesssssbasssessaesssssessanssense 34.0 11.7 13.6

LLOSSES Ol SALES .....eviiivieeeiieeerieeeee ettt e ettt e sstresestreaeseesbeseensassenreeesssseessrseensseeesnren (13.5) — —
Investee — Intermec:

GAINS ON SALES......veuviieetirieeieieeeetiee et e e s e rteete e testesatestaesstesbestaentesbnersessaessassnsnnessesasente —_ 0.8 —
Real Estate:

GAINS O SALES.....c..eouiiiieeiciietiiet ettt sre bttt be st st see st et eateat st eeeabestessent et esneneenenne 0.1 8.2 —
Other Investments:

GAINS ON SALES. ... coneeiireieieceieste st ettt et e st es e e s e teesse e e e teassesaeesbesaeesbeeneeseeseensanseeneasteenns — 0.1 —

LOSSES 0N SAIES .....veeeiieeieceeieteeit sttt ettt s e s bt ettt es e sse et e se bt e e e sreebennens 0.1) 0.1 0.1

Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES) ..cvecveveiriiervirieiriestersreeesererrasrersessessessesanseesassessens 0.9 0.5 1.0
Net Realized Gains on Sales Of INVESLMENTS ......ceevieviiririiieseieereerietesessesresseeesesesssssnssesaens $ 337 § 426 $ 246

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009

FIX@A MALUTITIES .. ..ttt ettt sttt ebe et eaa et e st s eseseete st eseas et eaeeteneese e esnneaee $ (22)%$ (44 $ 4l.6)
EQUILY SECUTTLIES. ... eoveetiiterientieiestieieete sttt st e ste e e eaceeresrt e bt stee s aesbeeatestesstessaentansessnansessnensense 1.9 2.1 (8.8)
REAL ESLAL ....c.uviieiiiieiiiccee ettt cnr e careeeeabeeceare st s e saraaesabeassaresesrranenn eeeeernrrees (7.2) — —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............eecevvereeieniirieneeneereennnnenenieseneceeens $ (113) § (16.5 $ (504)

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an
investment is other than temporary. Losses arising from other-than-temporary declines in fair value are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the declines are determined to be other than temporary. Net Impairment
Losses recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 include
other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) losses of $11.3 million, $16.5 million and $50.4 million, respectively. OTTI losses
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2011 included pre-tax losses of $7.2
million to write down real estate investments. OTTI losses recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year
ended December 31, 2010 included pre-tax losses of $11.9 million due to the deterioration of the business prospects of a single
issuer in the waste management business. OTTI losses recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended
December 31, 2010 included pre-tax foreign currency losses of $2.1 million. OTTI losses from write-downs of fixed maturities
for the year ended December 31, 2009 included a pretax loss of $24.4 million related to credit losses recognized for a single
issuer in the manufacturing industry due to a continued deterioration in the issuer’s business prospects.
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Total Comprehensive Investment Gains

Total Comprehensive Investment Gains are comprised of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net Impairment
Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income and unrealized investment gains and losses
that are not reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income, but rather are reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income. The components of Total Comprehensive Investment Gains for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Fixed Maturities:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SAIES....c.eeeertieecuiieieieieieret sttt ettt et be bbbt seb st s s s s s snnesasaenes $ 146 § 215 $ 128
LOSSES 01 SALES ...ttt ettt bbb ©.1 (0.1) 2.7
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........ccceeeevevncecernrenriencninenccnnennen. 2.2) (14.4) (41.6)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME ......ccveevrieeeiveesricenriieneererenene 12.3 7.0 (31.5)
Recognized in Other Comprehensive INcome (LOSS)....cccoeerreererriererivenienrienieresesieenne 272.8 86.4 191.1
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) on Fixed Maturities...........ccccccervernrnnen. 285.1 934 159.6

Equity Securities:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:

GAINS ON SAIES...ueeeiiieiiiieeie ettt e e st st e e e sre e e saee e s e sstesasesssesessenssesnsannns 34.0 11.7 13.6
L0SSES ON SALES ....eovveeiiiiiriieeieete ettt seesste et et e e e e sane e ssae et e e st assteesaeersaesssaasaans 13.5) — —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........cccoeeeevveeevesvenenenreereeeveereenenes (1.9 2.1 (8.8)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME...........ccevivveerieeneeriieieicienieen, 18.6 9.6 4.8
Recognized in Other Comprehensive INCome (L0SS) .....veerieriericeenienreriveneniaerneeseseeeeeenns (71.2) 90.2 44.8
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) on Equity Securities........ccoeeverriereieerennnns (52.6) 99.8 49.6
Investee:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS O SALES..euveeuieeeriitentistieire e tereeetrsaesbesbeebesseest e tasseassaesbenseesseeseassensasssensasssannes — 0.8 —
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (LoSS)....ccovereiiniieniieencneneeeeee e — 2.9 2.2)
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) on INVestee........coveeerieieinienneeenieecneen — 3.7 (2.2)
Real Estate:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SALES....vieeiiiietiitett ettt cteste st seesr et e et abessbesbaestesee s s etnnasessasasessansnes 0.1 8.2 —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........occeeeeeeeeiereseeseseneccneeeeeeeeneenes (1.2) — —
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME........ccoevevecerecrenrcnriirieerereeenes 7.1 8.2 —

Other Investments:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:

GaINS ON SISttt et as — 0.1 ——
LOSSES OI SAIES ....oouiiiiiieiriceieeit ettt e st 0.1) 0.1) 0.1

Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES)......vveverrerrerrerrriienerieenienenieereseesarseseseenenessenne (0.9) 0.5 1.0

Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOmMe..........ooevevvecineerinecenieerneene, 1.0) 0.5 0.9

Total Comprehensive Investment GaillS.........ooeveirerrirenieeeiirereeceesrestesrenreee e eesesee s $ 2244 $ 2056 $ 2079
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME .......ccoovivvviiiniicocericniiceiceeceeeeane $ 228 § 261 § (25.8)

Recognized in Other Comprehensive INCOME ........c.ociiiiiiiiiiiniineicieecccene e ececeenene 201.6 179.5 233.7

Total Comprehensive Investment Gains..........eccvviveeineiciiriiirieecinreent et esseseeerenenanens $ 2244 § 2056 $ 2079

As aresult of a decrease in the Company’s ownership percentage and other qualitative factors, the Company determined that its
investment in the common stock of Intermec no longer qualified for the equity method of accounting in the third quarter of
2010. Accordingly, beginning with the Company’s September 30, 2010 interim consolidated financial statements, the
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Company’s investment in Intermec common stock was included in Investments in Equity Securities and was reported at its fair
value. See Note 4, “Investments,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Investment gains recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income increased for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower overall
interest rates resulting from lower risk-free interest rates, partially offset by an other comprehensive loss of $50.6 million from
disposing of all of the Company’s holding of Intermec common stock and other comprehensive losses from declines in the fair
values of equity securities. The gains on Equity Securities recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended
December 31, 2010 include other comprehensive gains of $50.6 million related to the Company’s investment in the common
stock of Intermec.

INVESTMENT QUALITY AND CONCENTRATIONS

The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio is comprised primarily of high-grade municipal, corporate and agency
bonds. At December 31, 2011, nearly 93% of the Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio was rated investment grade,
which is defined as a security having a rating of AAA, AA, A or BBB from S&P; a rating of Aaa, Aa, A or Baa from Moody’s; a
rating of AAA, AA, A or BBB from Fitch; or a rating from the NAIC of 1 or 2. The Company has not made significant
investments in securities that are directly or indirectly related to sub-prime mortgage loans, including, but not limited to,
collateralized debt obligations and structured investrnent vehicles. The following table summarizes the credit quality of the fixed
maturity investment portfolio at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Dec 31, 2011 Dec 31, 2010
NAIC Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage
Rating S&P Equivalent Rating in Millions of Total in Millions of Total
1 AAAAA Attt $ 3,591.8 75.2% $ 3,493.7 78.1%
2 BBB .. e e 839.4 17.6 733.1 16.4
3 BB et e e st e 108.6 2.3 105.3 23
4 B ettt et e e 89.1 1.9 523 1.2
5 GG ettt e et 127.8 2.7 76.6 1.7
6 In or Near Default .......ccooooiniiiiinincnenceccerccecncreieneee 16.7 0.3 14.3 0.3

Total Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s ......coveeeveerivieriinereenirreriesreeeereeennns $ 4,773.4 100.0% $ 44753 100.0%

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in below-investment-grade fixed maturities were $5.4 million and $4.1
million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had $275.2 million of bonds issued by states and political subdivisions that had been pre-
refunded with U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities obligations held in trust for the full payment of
principal and interest. At December 31, 2011, the Company had $1,577.4 million of investments in bonds issued by states and
political subdivisions, commonly referred to as “municipal bonds,” that had not been pre-refunded, of which $286.2 million
were enhanced with insurance from monoline bond insurers. The Company’s municipal bond investment credit-risk strategy is
to focus on the underlying credit rating of the issuer and not to rely on the credit enhancement provided by the monoline bond
insurer when making investment decisions. To that end, the underlying rating of nearly 94% of the Company’s entire municipal
bond portfolio that has not been pre-refunded is AA or higher, the majority of which are direct obligations of states.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in governmental fixed maturities at December 31,
2011 and 2010:

Dec 31, 2011 Dec 31, 2010
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.................. $ 4917 79% $ 5369 8.6%
Pre-refunded with U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
Authorities Held in TTUSE..........ooovieiiiiiiiriiecce et e e s e 275.2 4.4 449.0 7.2
D) ¥ 1 <1 OO OO OO RO P OO PSR PRURRPPRO 937.8 15.1 808.4 12.9
Political SUDAIVISIONS .......ceecvuiiiiieeieeiieeireereeieeeee e esreeeneeseessseeebeesasesane 178.9 2.9 163.7 2.6
ReVENUE BONAS ...ocvvvieiieeeeiecticteee ettt eetae e e s s e saee e 460.7 7.4 371.7 6.0
Total Investments in Governmental Fixed Maturities ..........ccccoceeeuvreirnnnnne $ 2,344.3 37.7% $ 2,329.7 37.3%

The Company’s short-term investments at December 31, 2011 include $212.8 million invested in money market funds which
primarily invest in U.S. Treasury securities. The Company does not have any investments in sovereign debt securities issued by
foreign governments. The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in non-governmental fixed
maturities by industry at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Dec 31, 2011 Dec 31, 2010
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
MANUTACTUTING ......eeveevevereiereeereeresirseseeseeeee e se e seeneesteecesesbeaseseesessresaennens $ 1,153.1 18.5% $ 1,023.6 16.4%
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 590.4 9.5 566.4 9.1
Transportation, Communication and Utlities..........ccccvvverniniininiinnnnn 252.2 4.1 229.7 3.7
SEIVICES ...vicviiiieieerieeeterreereeeesaessesaesseessasseesesstenseeseensentesbaessesnsennennanennenseen 233.8 3.8 186.3 3.0
MDD ...ttt ettt ee et sb e bbbt b b e sn e sme e 89.6 14 52.0 0.8
Retail Trade.....ccoviiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeee et st s 50.1 0.8 335 0.5
Wholesale Trade.......ouevverieenriireriniireciee ettt s 41.5 0.7 36.5 0.6
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing.........ccecvvveririeecnennicnnnecne e 17.8 0.3 17.0 0.3
OTRET .ttt ettt et r e e e e se ettt st e st esae et e saesasesanssreeane 0.6 — 0.6 —
Total Investments in Non-governmental Fixed Maturities............cccccvvveen. $ 2,429.1 391% $ 2,145.6 34.4%

Sixty-four companies comprised over 75% of the Company’s fixed maturity exposure to the Manufacturing industry at
December 31, 2011, with the largest single exposure, Caterpillar, Inc., comprising 2.5%, or $28.8 million, of the Company’s
fixed maturity exposure to such industry. Thirty-two companies comprised over 75% of the Company’s exposure to the
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate industry at December 31, 2011, with the largest single exposure, Massachusetts Mutual Life
Insurance Company, comprising 5.8%, or $34.4 million, of the Company’s exposure to such industry.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s ten largest investment exposures, excluding investments in
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities, at December 31, 2011:

Percentage
Fair of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Investments
Fixed Maturities:
States and Political Subdivisions:
TEXAS . v eueevieteerereceereeteeseeeese e esee s e sesseseessasaesanssasessanserserteR e et e s ea b e e eseese s bt e bt Rt Ao ee e s eaceae st shssbe s et asns $ 105.6 1.7%
WASHIIZLON ..ottt et ee et e s ssa e e e e s b e assbe b sassas e e s nanae s e b eanenee 93.2 15
LLOUISIANA. ..oeeevetereteent ettt et eteete et et esaeteeseebestesrassesbessess areesenseseestente st et esseebennesaemsescraesassaesssssenssas 76.8 1.2
GROTEIA 1.veuvevereerenrereecrie et st et et e st eatebeesaebesresreae s e st s s e sas s heat s b e s e s eRe s b s e R e s b et e b en b e abeRe e b e n e s eenesnasas 75.6 1.2
INEW YOTKueoueitiirerreeeeirieteeeeeseereesestesestesaesesnaestsresteseesaeseestassssbenseeesaeseenesaseaeabasassbansesssasenansennessens 64.1 1.0
L0703 163 =1« [« JUUUU OO OO PO SO OO PP STRRRRRO 59.9 1.0
Equity Securities:
iShares® iBoxx $ Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund ... 66.6 1.1
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:
Tennenbaum Opportunities Fund V, LLC......cccccovviiiniiiiniiiiiecneeensnereess e 75.6 1.2
Special Value Opportunity Fund, LLC.......cccceiiiriiiniiiniiiiiiieincsienrc et 67.8 1.1
Goldman Sachs Vintage FUnd IV, L.P......cccccoeiiiniiiniiniic i essnens 64.2 1.0
TOtAL vttt et ettt et st e et v ess e st e s et es e s e e e sE et et st b e e stk e b sR e s et eaE R e st se st b e b s R et st st reeae s $ 7494 12.0%
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INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED LIABILITY INVESTMENT COMPANIES AND LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

The Company owns investments in various limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest
in distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. The Company’s investments in these limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships are reported either as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, or Other Equity
Interests and included in Equity Securities depending on the accounting method used to report the investment. See Note 2,
“Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Additional information
pertaining to these investments at December 31, 2011 and 2010 is presented below:

Carrying Value

Unfunded Stated
Commitment Dec 31, Dec 31, Fund End
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Asset Class Dec 31, 2011 2011 2010 Date
Reported as Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments at Cost Plus
Cumulative Undistributed Earnings:
Tennenbaum Opportunities Fund V, LLC...... Distressed Debt 3 — $ 756 $ 914 10/10/2016
Special Value Opportunity Fund, LLC.......... Distressed Debt — 67.8 86.8  7/13/2014
Goldman Sachs Vintage Fund IV, L.P........... Secondary Transactions 224 64.2 58.9 12/31/2016
Special Value Continuation Fund, LLC......... Distressed Debt — 224 26.8  6/30/2016
NY Life Investment Management
Mezzanine Partners IL, LP..cooovvvvvinvneennins Mezzanine Debt 4.1 13.5 20.5 7/31/2016
BNY Mezzanine Partners L.P........c...cccceenen. Mezzanine Debt 1.5 12.9 14.1 4/17/2016
Ziegler Meditech Equity Partners, LP............ Growth Equity 1.8 13.3 10.4 1/31/2016
BNY-Alcentra Mezzanine Partners III, L.P... Mezzanine Debt 21.1 22.7 4.5 2021-2022
Other Funds......c.cocovmmiceneieneicncninnecnenees 2.5 13.9 14.6 Various
Total for Equity Method Limited Liability
INVEStMENLS ..cooveveriiiiiinii e 534 306.3 328.0
Reported as Other Equity Interests and
Reported at Fair Value:
Highbridge Principal Strategies Fund L.P...... Mezzanine Debt 4.7 20.8 11.4 1/23/2018
Goldman Sachs Vintage Fund V, L.P............ Secondary Transactions 8.1 13.9 8.7 12/31/2018
Goldman Sachs Mezzanine Partners V, L.P.. Mezzanine Debt 14.4 8.2 8.4 12/312021
OthEr .ot 51.6 50.2 46.7 Various
Total Reported as Other Equity Interests and
Reported at Fair Value........c.coceereiececncnnnne, 78.8 93.1 75.2
TOAL ettt $ 1322 $ 3994 § 4032

The Company does not directly participate, as either a lender or borrower of securities, in any securities lending program, The
Company does not participate directly in credit default swaps. The Company does not engage directly in hedging activities,
including, but not limited to, activities involving interest rate swaps, forward foreign currency contracts, commodities contracts,
exchange traded and over-the-counter options or warrants. The Company has limited exposure to such programs and activities
by virtue of an investment of $1.3 million at December 31, 2011 included in Other under the heading “Reported as Other
Equity Interests and Reported at Fair Value” in the preceding table. Such investment consists solely of restricted assets that are
being redeemed over several periods.

INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSES

Interest and Other Expenses was $83.9 million, $68.3 million and $61.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively. Interest expense, excluding interest on a mortgage note payable included in real estate investment
expense, was $36.9 million, $32.2 million and $32.5 miilion for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Other Corporate Expenses were $47.0 million, $36.1 million and $29.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses increased by $10.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to the same period in 2010, due primarily to higher postretirement benefit costs, costs incurred with changing
the Company’s name and other corporate initiatives. Other Corporate Expenses increased by $6.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to the same period in 2009, due primarily to higher postretirement benefit costs.
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INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective income tax rate from continuing operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to the effects of tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions, the effects of the write-off of
goodwill in 2010, and the net effects of state income taxes. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions
were $50.6 million, $54.4 million and $54.9 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company wrote off $14.8
million of goodwill in 2010 that is not deductible for income taxes. State income tax expense, net of federal benefit, from
continuing operations was $1.2 million, $1.0 million and $0.8 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company’s effective income tax rate from discontinued operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to the net effects of state income taxes. State income tax, net of federal taxes, from discontinued operations was $0.3
million of benefit, $1.1 million of expense, and $6.3 million of expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. State income tax includes changes in the state deferred tax asset valuation allowance related to Fireside Bank and
is net of a $2.3 million benefit, $0.5 million benefit, and $6.0 million expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Kemper has a three-year, $245 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement, expiring October 30, 2012, with a group of
financial institutions (the “2012 Credit Agreement”). The 2012 Credit Agreement provides for fixed and floating rate advances
for periods up to six months at various interest rates. The 2012 Credit Agreement contains various financial covenants,
including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios for Kemper’s
largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity. Proceeds from advances under the 2012 Credit Agreement may be
used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of existing indebtedness.

During the third quarter of 2011, Kemper borrowed $95.0 million under the 2012 Credit Agreement. The proceeds from the
borrowing were used, in part, to make a voluntary contribution of $83.7 million to fund the Company’s defined benefit pension
plan. The contribution consisted of cash of $32.2 million and 7,309,764 shares of Intermec common stock purchased from
Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, with some of the proceeds (see Note 17, “Pension Benefits”). The Company does not expect that
it will be required to contribute to its defined benefit pension plan in 2012, but could make a voluntary contribution pursuant to
the maximum funding limits under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA™). Kemper’s
subsidiary, United Insurance, paid a cash dividend of $25.0 million to Kemper in September 2011, which was used along with
cash on hand to repay $30 million of the borrowings under the 2012 Credit Agreement during the third quarter of 2011. As
described below, during October 2011, the borrowings under the 2012 Credit Agreement were repaid in full. The 2012 Credit
Agreement was undrawn at both December 31, 2011 and 2010. Management estimates that it could borrow the full amount
under the 2012 Credit Agreement and still meet the financial covenants therein.

On November 24, 2010, Kemper issued $250 million of its 6.00% senior notes due November 30, 2015 (the “2015 Senior
Notes™). The 2015 Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at
Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper issued the 2015 Senior Notes for proceeds of $247.8 million, net of
transaction costs, for an effective yield of 6.21%. Kemper used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the 2015 Senior Notes
to repay borrowings of $140 million under the 2012 Credit Agreement and to make a capital contribution of $60.0 million to its
subsidiary, United Insurance. Interest expense under the 2015 Senior Notes was $15.4 million and $1.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

In 2007, Kemper issued $360 million of its 6.00% senior notes due May 15, 2017 (the “2017 Senior Notes”). The 2017 Senior
Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified
redemption prices. Kemper issued the 2017 Senior Notes for proceeds of $354.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an
effective yield of 6.19%. Kemper used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the 2017 Senior Notes to repay the $300
million aggregate principal amount of its 5.75% senior notes which matured on July 1, 2007. Interest expense under the 2017
Senior Notes was $22.0 million for each of the annual periods ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

In 2003, Kemper issued $200 million of its 4.875% senior notes due November 1, 2010 (the “2010 Senior Notes™) for an
effective yield of 5.04%. The 2010 Senior Notes were repaid and retired in 2010. Interest expense under the 2010 Senior Notes
was $8.4 million and $10.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Various state insurance laws restrict the ability of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends without regulatory
approval. Such insurance laws generally restrict the amount of dividends paid in an annual period to the greater of statutory net
income from the previous year or 10% of statutory capital and surplus. Kemper’s direct insurance subsidiaries paid dividends
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

consisting of $70.5 million in cash to Kemper during 2011. In 2012, Kemper estimates that its direct insurance subsidiaries
would be able to pay $175.0 million in dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval.

Kemper’s subsidiary, Fireside Bank, is chartered as an industrial bank and is regulated by the FDIC and the CDFI. Fireside
Bank had previously agreed not to pay dividends without the prior approval of the FDIC and the CDFL. Following approval
from its regulators, Fireside Bank distributed $250 million of its capital to its parent company, Fireside Securities Corporation
(“Fireside Securities”), in October 2011. Fireside Securities, then in turn, distributed the same amount to its parent company,
Kemper. In addition to the $250 million distribution in October 2011, Fireside Bank expects to return at least $15 million of
capital to Kemper. Kemper used a portion of the distribution to repay in full its borrowings under the 2012 Credit Agreement in
October 2011. On October 20, 2011, Fireside Bank requested that the FDIC terminate Fireside Bank’s FDIC insurance. Such
request was granted on December 8, 2011, effective March 31, 2012 at which time Fireside Bank will cease to be regulated by
the FDIC and CDFI, and accordingly, will be able to pay dividends and return capital to Kemper without prior regulatory
approval.

On February 2, 2011, the Board of Directors approved a new repurchase program under which Kemper is authorized to
repurchase up to $300 million worth of its common stock. During 2011, Kemper repurchased approximately 0.9 million shares
of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $27.4 million in open market transactions under the new repurchase program.
During 2010, Kemper repurchased approximately 1.4 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $34.4 million
in open market transactions.

Kemper paid a quarterly dividend to shareholders of $0.24 per common share in each quarter of 2011. Dividends paid were
$58.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Kemper directly held cash and investments totaling $217.0 million at December 31, 2011, compared to $60.5 million at
December 31, 2010. Sources available for the repayment of indebtedness, repurchases of common stock, future shareholder
dividend payments, and the payment of interest on Kemper’s senior notes include cash and investments directly held by
Kemper, receipt of dividends from Kemper’s subsidiaries and borrowings under the 2012 Credit Agreement.The primary
sources of funds for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are premiums, investment income and proceeds from the sales and
maturity of investments. The primary uses of funds are the payment of policyholder benefits under life insurance contracts,
claims under property and casualty insurance contracts and accident and health insurance contracts, the payment of
commissions and general expenses and the purchase of investments. Generally, there is a time lag between when premiums are
collected and when policyholder benefits and insurance claims are paid. Accordingly, during periods of growth, insurance
companies typically experience positive operating cash flows and are able to invest a portion of their operating cash flows to
fund future policyholder benefits and claims. During periods in which premium revenues decline, insurance companies may
experience negative cash flows from operations and may need to sell investments to fund payments to policyholders and
claimants. In addition, if the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries experience several significant
catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in advance of their maturity dates to
fund payments, which could either result in investment gains or losses. Management believes that its property and casualty
insurance subsidiaries maintain adequate levels of liquidity in the event that they experience several future catastrophic events
over a relatively short period of time. Prior to the sale of its active portfolio of automobile loan receivables, the primary sources
of funds for Fireside Bank also included the repayments of automobile loans, interest on automobile loans, investment income
and proceeds from the sales and maturity of investments. The primary uses of funds for Fireside Bank are general expenses and
purchase of investments. Prior to the redemption of its Certificates of Deposits, the primary uses of funds for Fireside Bank
also included the repayment of customer deposits and interest paid to depositors.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities decreased by $83.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
2010. Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities decreased by $105.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to 2009.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities increased by $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same
period in 2010. Net cash used by Repayments of Certificates of Deposits was $321.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to net cash used of $366.9 million for the same period in 2010. Kemper used $27.4 million of cash during
2011 to repurchase shares of its common stock, compared to $34.4 million of cash used to repurchase shares of its common
stock in the same period of 2010. Kemper used $58.2 million of cash to pay dividends for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to $54.6 million of cash used to pay dividends in the same period of 2010. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24 per
common share for each quarter of 2011, compared to $0.22 per common share for the same period in 2010.
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Net Cash Used by Financing Activities decreased by $87.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009.
In 2010, Kemper borrowed $140 million under the 2012 Credit Agreement and issued $250 million aggregate principal amount
of senior notes for proceeds of $247.8 million, compared to borrowing $220 million under its prior revolving credit agreement
during 2009. In 2010, Kemper repaid borrowings of $140 million under the 2012 Credit Agreement and retired the 2010 Senior
Notes for $200 million, compared to repaying $220 million under its prior revolving credit agreement during 2009. The
Company has funded its Automobile Loan Receivables through the Issuance of Certificates of Deposits. Net cash used by
Repayments of Certificates of Deposits, net of Proceeds from the issuance of Certificates of Deposits, was $366.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to net cash used of $428.5 million for 2009. Kemper did not repurchase shares of
its common stock during 2009, compared to using $34.4 million of cash during 2010 to repurchase shares of its common stock.
Kemper used $54.6 million of cash to pay dividends for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to $66.6 million of cash
used to pay dividends in 2009. The amount of cash used to pay dividends decreased in 2010, compared to 2009, due primarily
to differences in dividend rates. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.47 per common share in the first quarter of 2009. Beginning
with the second quarter of 2009, the quarterly dividend rate was lowered to $0.20 per common share. In the first quarter of
2010, the quarterly dividend rate was increased to $0.22 per common share and maintained at that level throughout 2010.

Cash available for investment activities in total is dependent on cash flow from Operating Activities and Financing Activities
and the level of cash the Company elects to maintain. Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities increased by $245.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to the same period of 2010. Purchases of Fixed Maturities exceeded Sales of
Fixed Maturities by $13.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Sales of Fixed Maturities exceeded Purchases of
Fixed Maturities by $174.6 million in the same period of 2010. Sales of Equity Securities exceeded Purchases of Equity
Securities by $49.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of Equity
Securities by $155.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Net cash provided by dispositions of short-term
investments was $155.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to net cash of $7.3 million used by
acquisitions of short-term investments in the same period of 2010. Net proceeds from the sale of Fireside Bank’s active
portfolio of automobile loan receivables provided $220.7 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2011. Receipts from
Automobile Loan Receivables provided $166.5 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $339.6
million of cash provided in the same period of 2010. Receipts from the sale of a business provided $4.1 million of cash for the
year ended December 31, 2010.

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities increased by $31.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to
2009. Sales of Fixed Maturities exceeded Purchases of Fixed Maturities by $174.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2010. Purchases of Fixed Maturities exceeded Sales of Fixed Maturities by $157.0 million in 2009. Purchases of Equity
Securities exceeded Sales of Equity Securities by $155.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Sales of Equity
Securities exceeded Purchases of Equity Securities by $104.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Net cash used by
acquisitions of short-term investments was $7.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to net cash of $222.2
million provided by dispositions of short-term investments in 2009. The Company did not use any cash to originate automobile
loans for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to using $77.0 million of cash to originate automobile loans in 2009.
The receipts from automobile loan receivables provided $339.6 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to $431.9 million of cash provided in 2009. Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities in 2009 includes $190.0
million of cash used to acquire Direct Response.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has no material obligations under a guarantee contract. The Company has no material retained or contingent
interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity. The Company has no material obligations, including contingent
obligations, under contracts that would be accounted for as derivative instruments. The Company has no obligations, including
contingent obligations, arising out of a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity held by, and material to, the Company,
where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing, hedging or research
and development services with the Company. Accordingly, the Company has no material off-balance sheet arrangements.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Estimated cash disbursements pertaining to the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Jan. 1,2012 Jan, 1, 2013 Jan. 1, 2015

To To To After

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31,2014 Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2016 Total
Long Term Debt Obligations.......cccceeerereevcrveeurneranne. $ 01 $ 55 % 250.0 $ 360.0 $ 615.6
Capital Lease Obligations ........ccccvveeinerenrievcennenncne. 2.1 14 e — 3.5
Operating Lease Obligations.........ccccveereerrvccvnvcneenne. 26.8 44.7 23.5 15.5 110.5
Purchase Obligations..........cccoevevrininineccniienninneenne 1.9 1.4 0.1 — 34
Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits................. 265.0 445.6 428.5 5,314.1 6,453.2
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves ................ 515.9 323.0 109.8 80.4 1,029.1
Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long

Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance

Sheet under GAAP.......ccoveriieiecreeeeeee 374 73.3 58.2 10.8 179.7
Total Contractual Obligations ........ccc.ocveeervevereennnnnns $ 849.2 $ 8949 § 8701 $ 57808 $ 8,395.0

Amounts included in Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits within the contractual obligations table above represent the
estimated cash payments to be made to policyholders and beneficiaries. Such cash outflows are based on the Company’s current
assumptions for mortality, morbidity and policy lapse, but are undiscounted with respect to interest. Policies must remain in
force for the policyholder or beneficiary to receive the benefit under the policy. Depending on the terms of a particular policy,
future premiums from the policyholder may be required for the policy to remain in force. The Company estimates that future
cash inflows would total $3.7 billion using the same assumptions used to estimate the cash outflows. The Company’s Life
Insurance Reserves in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet are generally based on the historical assumptions for
mortality and policy lapse rates and are on a discounted basis. Accordingly, the sum of the amounts presented above for Life
and Health Insurance Policy Benefits significantly exceeds the amount of Life and Health Insurance Reserves reported on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2011.

In addition to the purchase obligations included above, the Company had certain investment commitments totaling $143.8
million at December 31, 2011. The funding of such investment commitments is dependent upon a number of factors, the timing
of which is indeterminate. The contractual obligations reported above also exclude the Company’s liability of $6.2 million for
unrecognized tax benefits. The Company cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and period of related future
payments for such liability. Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet under GAAP primarily consist of interest obligations related to Long Term Debt Obligations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Kemper’s subsidiaries conduct their businesses in two industries: property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance.
Accordingly, the Company is subject to several industry-specific accounting principles under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires
the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. The process of estimation is inherently uncertain. Accordingly, actual results could ultimately differ materially from the
estimated amounts reported in a company’s financial statements. Different assumptions are likely to result in different estimates
of reported amounts. The Company’s critical accounting policies most sensitive to estimates include the valuation of
investments, the valuation of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, the assessment of recoverability of
goodwill and the valuation of pension benefit obligations.

Valuation of Investments

The reported value of the Company’s investments was $6,222.7 million at December 31, 2011, of which $5,175.1 million, or
83%, was reported at fair value, $306.3 million, or 5%, was reported under the equity method of accounting, $253.9 million, or
4%, was reported at unpaid principal balance and $487.4 million, or 8%, was reported at cost or depreciated cost. Investment
securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and overall market volatility risk.
Accordingly, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair values of the Company’s investments reported at fair value will
occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. Also, it is
reasonably possible that changes in the carrying values of the Company’s Equity Method Limited Liability Investments will
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occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements because these
issuers follow specialized industry accounting rules which require that they report all of their investments at fair value.

As more fully described under the heading, “Fair Value Measurements,” in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes
and ranks the market price observability used in fair value measurements.

The fair value of the Company’s investments measured and reported at fair value was $5,175.1 million at December 31, 2011,
of which $4,827.0 million, or 93%, was based on quoted market prices or significant value drivers that are observable and
$348.1 million, or 7%, was based on significant value drivers that are unobservable. Fair value measurements based on readily
available, active, quoted market prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally are
deemed to have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment, compared to fair value
measurements based on significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value. The prices that the Company might
realize from actual sales of investments are likely to vary from their respective estimated fair values at December 31, 2011 due
to limitations inherent in the estimation process and changing market conditions.

The classification of a company’s investment in a financial instrument may affect its reported results. For investments classified
as trading, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported. Both the reported
and fair value of the Company’s investments classified as trading were $4.4 million at December 31, 2011. For investments in
fixed maturities classified as held to maturity, a company is required to carry the investment at amortized cost, with only
amortization occurring during the period recognized into income. None of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities were
classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2011. Changes in the fair value of investments in fixed maturities classified as
available for sale, investments in equity securities classified as available for sale and an insurance entity’s investments in equity
securities without readily determinable fair values are not recognized to income during the period, but rather are recognized as a
separate component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income until realized. All of the Company’s investments in fixed
maturities were classified as available for sale at December 31, 2011. Except for investments accounted for under the equity
method of accounting or classified as trading, all of the Company’s investments in equity securities at December 31, 2011 were
required to be reported at fair value with changes in fair value reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income until
realized. The Company’s investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting consist of the Company’s
investments in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and are valued at cost plus cumulative undistributed
comprehensive earnings or losses, and not at fair value.

Under GAAP, a company may elect to use the fair value option for some or all of its investments in financial instruments.
Under the fair value option, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported.
The Company has not elected the fair value option for any of its investments in financial instruments. Had the Company elected
the fair value option for all of its investments in financial instruments, the Company’s reported net income for the year ended
December 31, 2011, would have increased by $129.9 million.

The Company regularly reviews its investments for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost or amortized cost is other than temporary. Such reviews are inherently uncertain in that the value of the
investment may not fully recover or may decline further in future periods. Some factors considered for fixed maturity and
equity securities in evaluating whether or not a decline in fair value is other than temporary include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Fixed Maturity Securities

+  The financial condition, credit rating and prospects of the issuer;

*  The extent to which the fair value has been less than cost;

»  The ability of the issuer to make scheduled principal and interest payments;

*  The volatility of the investment;

*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

»  The Company’s intentions to sell or not to sell the investment; and

*  The Company’s determination of whether or not it will be required to sell the investment before a full recovery in
value.
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Equity Securities

»  The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

«  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

*  The volatility of the investment;

»  Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

»  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

»  Market liquidity;

+  Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

»  The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

Changes in these factors from one evaluation date to the next evaluation date could result in the Company determining that a
temporary decline in the fair value of an investment at December 31, 2011 is no longer temporary at a subsequent evaluation
date. Such determination would result in an impairment loss recognized in earnings in the period such determination is made.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability
for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. The
Company had $1,029.1 million and $1,118.7 million of gross loss and LAE reserves at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for the Company’s business segments at December 31, 2011 and 2010
were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Business Segments:
PLETRITE™ ...ttt et ettt s s e et et b et sttt b et es e e s et e e ot e s e bt aea b e s et en ettt s e eaen e e s eneneaen $ 4162 $§ 4205
SPECIALLY ...ttt bbbt an 225.9 250.8
DHTECE . voveeeeeeteeetetet s et e e en s e e be e et e st ebene b et b bt se et ea et se e st et s RS ed e s b s h e bR bRt s E e sbe e s e s b e ae 223.9 235.6
Life and Health INSULANCE ......c.cocevveieieririectenieinice ettt et 8.3 20.8
Total BUSINESS SEZMENLS...c..euveureuieiiirirereiteneireeiirieie it sisste bbb er e bbb e s et e s ean s s eaeesn s s et ensereen 874.3 927.7
DiscontimUed OPEIALIONS.......ccoveueiereiiereiireerert et et sttt et e bt sas e s re s s rs et e s s eas s enssasasasrneas 133.0 163.9
UnAlloCated RESEIVES ...o..eviiiiiiiictiictctrcett ettt bbb et e b s ene e s et 21.8 27.1
Total Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves. ... $1,029.1 $1,118.7

The Unallocated Reserves were acquired in connection with a business acquisition from SCOR in 2002 and are reinsured by an
insurance subsidiary of SCOR (see Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements). The Company does not allocate these reserves to its business segments or Unitrin Business Insurance.

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed
exposures which may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Property and
Casualty Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s Discontinued Operations are predominantly long-tailed exposures, $52.6
million of which was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at December 31, 2011.
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The Company’s actuaries generally estimate reserves at least quarterly for most product lines and/or coverage levels using
accident quarters or accident months spanning 10 or more years, depending on the size of the product line and/or coverage level
or emerging issues relating to them. The Company’s actuaries use a variety of generally accepted actuarial loss reserving
estimation methodologies, including, but not limited to, the following:

» Incurred Loss Development Methodology;

»  Paid Loss Development Methodology;

«  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Incurred Loss Methodology;
*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss Methodology; and
»  Frequency and Severity Methodology.

The Company’s actuaries generally review the results of at least four of these estimation methodologies, two based on paid data
and two based on incurred data, to initially estimate the ultimate losses and LAE for the current accident quarter and re-estimate
the ultimate losses and LAE for previous accident quarters to determine if changes in the previous estimates of the ultimate
losses and LAE are indicated by the most recent data. In some cases, the methodologies produce a cluster of estimates with a
tight band of indicated possible outcomes. In other cases, however, the methodologies produce conflicting results and wider
bands of indicated possible outcomes, and the Company’s actuaries perform additional analyses before making their final
selections. However, such bands do not necessarily constitute a range of outcomes, nor does the Company’s management or the
Company’s actuaries calculate a range of outcomes.

At a minimum, the Company’s actuaries analyze 45 product and/or coverage levels for over 40 separate current and prior
accident quarters for both losses and LAE using many of the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified above as well
as other generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In all, there are over 10,000 combinations of accident quarters,
coverage levels, and generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies used to estimate the Company’s unpaid losses and
LAE. In some cases, the Company’s actuaries make adjustments to the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified
above or use additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies to estimate ultimate losses and LAE.

For each accident quarter, the point estimate selected by the Company’s actuaries is not necessarily one of the points produced
by any particular one of the methodologies utilized, but often is another point selected by the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, that takes into consideration each of the points produced by the several loss reserving estimation
methodologies used. In some cases, for a particular product, the current accident quarter may not have enough paid claims data
to rely upon, leading the Company’s actuaries to conclude that the incurred loss development methodology provides a better
estimate than the paid loss development methodology. Therefore, the Company’s actuaries may give more weight to the
incurred loss development methodology for that particular accident quarter. As an accident quarter ages for that same product,
the actuary may gain more confidence in the paid loss development methodology and begin to give more weight to the paid loss
development methodology. The Company’s actuaries’ quarterly selections are summed by product and/or coverage levels to
create the actuarial indication of the ultimate losses. More often than not, the actuarial indication for a particular product line
and accident quarter is most heavily weighted towards the incurred loss development methodology, particularly for short-tail
lines such as personal automobile insurance. Historically, the incurred loss development methodology has been more reliable in
predicting ultimate losses for short-tail lines, especially in the more recent accident quarters, compared with the paid loss
development methodology. However, in some circumstances changes can occur which impact numerous variables, including,
but not limited to, those variables identified below that are difficult to quantify and/or impact the predictive value of prior
development patterns relied upon in the incurred loss development methodology and paid loss development methodology. In
those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries must make adjustments to these loss reserving estimation methodologies or use
additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, may place more weight on the adjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies or other generally
accepted actuarial estimation methodologies until the newer development patterns fully emerge and the Company’s actuaries
can fully rely on the unadjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies. In the event of a wide variation among results
generated by the different projection methodologies, the Company’s actuaries further analyze the data using additional
techniques.
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In estimating reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many
variables that are difficult to quantify, such as:

»  Changes in the level of minimum case reserves, and the automatic aging of those minimum case reserves;

»  Changes to claims practices, including, but not limited to, changes in the reporting and impact of large losses, timing
of reported claims, adequacy of case reserves, implementation of new systems for handling claims, turnover of claims
department staffs, timing and depth of the audit review of claims handling procedures;

*  Changes in underwriting practices;

+  Changes in the mix of business by state, class and policy limit within product line;

»  Growth in new lines of business;

»  Changes in the attachment points of the Company’s reinsurance programs;

»  Medical costs, including, but not limited to, the ability to assess the extent of injuries and the impact of inflation;

»  Repair costs, including, but not limited to, the impact of inflation and the availability of labor and materials;

»  Changes in the judicial environment, including, but not limited to, the interpretation of policy provisions, the impact of
jury awards and changes in case law; and

»  Changes in state regulatory requirements.

A change in any one or more of the foregoing factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate net claim loss and LAE that is
different from the previously estimated reserve and/or previous frequency and severity trends. Such changes in estimates may
be material.

For example, the Company’s actuaries review frequency (number of claims per policy or exposure), severity (dollars of loss per
claim) and average premium (dollars of premium per exposure). Actual frequency and severity experienced will vary depending
on changes in mix by class of insured risk. Similarly, the actual frequency and rate of recovery from reinsurance will vary
depending on changes in the attachment point for reinsurance. In particular, in periods of high growth or expansion into new
markets, there may be additional uncertainty in estimating the ultimate losses and LAE. The contributing factors of this
potential risk are changes in the Company’s mix by policy limit and mix of business by state or jurisdiction.

Actuaries use historical experience and trends as predictors of how losses and LAE will emerge over time. However, historical
experience may not necessarily be indicative of how actual losses and LAE will emerge. Changes in case reserve adequacy,
changes in minimum case reserves and changes in internal claims handling procedures could impact the timing and recognition
of incurred claims and produce an estimate that is either too high or too low if not adjusted for by the actuary. For example, if,
due to changes in claims handling procedures, actual claims are settled more rapidly than they were settled historically, the
estimate produced by the paid loss development methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and
adjust for the impact of the changes in claims handling procedures. Similarly, if, due to changes in claims handling procedures,
actual claim reserves are set at levels higher than past experience, the estimate produced by the incurred loss development
methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and adjust for the impact of the changes in claims
handling procedures.

The final step in the quarterly loss and LAE reserving process involves a comprehensive review of the actuarial indications by
the Company’s senior actuary and senior management who apply their collective judgment and determine the appropriate
estimated level of reserves to record. Numerous factors are considered in this determination process, including, but not limited
to, the assessed reliability of key loss trends and assumptions that may be significantly influencing the current actuarial
indications, changes in claim handling practices or other changes that affect the timing of payment or development patterns,
changes in the mix of business, the maturity of the accident year, pertinent trends observed over the recent past, the level of
volatility within a particular line of business, the improvement or deterioration of actuarial indications in the current period as
compared to prior periods, and the amount of reserves related to third party pools for which the Company does not have access
to the underlying data and, accordingly, relies on calculations provided by such pools. Total recorded reserves for property and
casualty insurance losses and LAE were equal to the actuarial indication of reserves at December 31, 2011 and 0.5% and 0.9%
higher than the actuarial indication of reserves at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while sustaining minimal variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and
LAE are fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE over time, also referred to as
“development,” will occur and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the consolidated financial
statements when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase in net
income in the period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial
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Statements when the Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAF and results in a decrease in net
income. The Company reported total favorable development of $33.1 million, $24.9 million and $80.9 million before tax for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Development for each of the Company’s continuing business
segments and Unitrin Business Insurance for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Continuing Operations:
PIETEITEM ..ottt v e ettt st st s a e san s s s s e masessbabebebesesssasen $ 191 $ 238 § 605
SPECIALLY <.ttt et e 9.4 4.1 7.9
DITECE ..ttt ettt s e et e bt s er e e e et sebe e e e e b erasesree s 39 6.8 12.1
Life and Health INSUIANCE .......coooiviieiiiiieiiieieei ettt st ee e s eree e 2.6 4.5) (2.6)
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net...........ccccoiniininiinnn, 35.0 22.0 77.9
Discontinued Operations:
Unitrin Business INSUTANCE. ......covuiiiiiiiieiiieiieiii ettt sree e snn e sneeenes 1.9) 2.9 3.0
Total Favorable Development, Net........ccociviiiriiiiiieeiceire ettt $ 331 § 249 $ 809

Development in the Preferred segment comprised the largest portion of the Company’s development reported in continuing
operations in 2011, 2010 and 2009. Additional information regarding the Preferred development is discussed below.
Development in the Life and Health Insurance segment in 2011 and 2010 is due primarily to development on certain hurricanes.
See MD&A, “Life and Health Insurance.”

Development in Unitrin Business Insurance comprised all of the Company’s development reported in discontinued operations.
In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business [nsurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to June 1, 2008, the effective date of the sale.

Preferred Development

The Company’s actuaries use various generally accepted actuarial incurred and paid loss development methodologies to
estimate unpaid losses and LAE. The key assumption in these estimation methodologies is that patterns observed in prior
periods are indicative of how losses and LAE are expected to develop in the future and that such historical data can be used to
predict and estimate ultimate losses and LAE. However, changes in the Company’s business processes, by their very nature, are
likely to affect the development patterns, which generally results in the historical development factors becoming less reliable
over time in predicting how losses and LAE will ultimately develop. The ultimate impact of a single change in a business
process is difficult to quantify and detect, and even more difficult if several changes to business processes occur over several
years. Initially after a change is implemented, there are fewer data points, as compared to the historical data, for the Company’s
actuaries to analyze. With fewer data points to analyze, the Company’s actuaries cannot be certain that observed differences
from the historical data trends are a result of the change in business process or merely a random fluctuation in the data. As the
Company’s actuaries observe more data points following the change in business process, the Company’s actuaries can gain
more confidence in whether the change in business process is affecting the development pattern. The challenge for the
Company’s actuaries is how much weight to place on the development patterns based on the older historical data and how much
weight to place on the development patterns based on more recent data.

Over the last several years, Preferred has undergone several changes in its claims handling processes. In 2005, Preferred
changed its claims handling procedures, to emphasize greater case reserve adequacy earlier in the lifecycle of a claim. The
impact of these new claims handling procedures became visible in Preferred’s reserving data in late 2006 and early 2007 as
evidenced by a dramatic rise in individual case loss reserve changes in excess of $100,000 at early claims maturity valuation
points. These changes had the effect of producing higher average paid and incurred loss amounts than historical averages would
have otherwise indicated.

The Company’s actuaries typically use a variety of five generally accepted actuarial loss reserving estimation methodologies—
the incurred loss development methodology, the paid loss development methodology, the Bornhuetter-Ferguson incurred loss
development methodology, Bornhuetter-Ferguson paid loss development methodology and the frequency and severity
methodology. Preferred continues to experience various changes which impact numerous variables that are difficult to quantify
and/or impact the predictive value of prior development patterns. Accordingly, in some cases, the Company’s actuaries must
make adjustments to these loss reserving estimation methodologies or use additional generally accepted actuarial loss reserving
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estimation methodologies until the development patterns fully emerge and the Company’s actuaries can fully rely on the
unadjusted methodologies. These changes have occurred over several years and the impact of some changes is more fully
developed than it is for other changes. Accordingly, the Company’s actuaries in some cases have continued to place greater
weight on certain emerging loss development trends, while in other cases have placed greater weight on the adjusted loss
reserving estimation methodologies or additional generally accepted actuarial loss reserving estimation methodologies in their
actuarial indications. Beginning in 2007, the Company’s senior actuary and senior management began placing greater reliance
on the actuarial indications in determining the appropriate estimated level of reserves.

In 2005, the personal lines claims function of Unitrin’s Multi Lines Insurance (“MLI”) unit was combined into the Preferred
segment’s claims function. In September 2005, Kemper converted all open MLI personal lines claims to its claims system and
began including new claims from the MLI business in its claim system.

All of these changes have impacted the development patterns for Kemper’s loss reserving data. Although the Company’s
actuaries were aware of, and gave consideration to, the changes in the Company’s claims handling processes, including the
merging of the Preferred and MLI claims functions, it takes several years to ascertain whether such changes in claims handling
procedures will ultimately result in lower ultimate paid losses and LAE. Accordingly, the effects of the improvements and the
changes in the claims handling processes have emerged and have been recognized over several years as the Company’s
actuaries have become more convinced that lower losses and LAE have in fact been realized. However, the Company cannot
make any assurances that all such improvements and effects have fully emerged or will continue to emerge.

Estimated Variability of Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves

Although development will emerge in all of the Company’s personal lines’ product lines, development in Preferred segment’s
personal automobile insurance product line could have the most significant impact. To further illustrate the sensitivity of
Preferred segment’s reserves for automobile insurance losses and LAE to changes in the cumulative development factors, for
each quarterly evaluation point the Company’s actuaries calculated the variability of cumulative development factors observed
in the incurred loss development methodology using one standard deviation. The Company believes that one standard deviation
of variability is a reasonably likely scenario to measure variability for its loss and LAE reserves under the incurred development
method for automobile insurance. Assuming that the Preferred segment’s automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves were
based solely on the incurred loss development methodology and the variability in the cumulative development factors occurred
within one standard deviation, the Company estimates that Preferred’s automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves could have
varied by $35.0 million in either direction at December 31, 2011 for all accident years combined under this scenario. In addition
to the factors described above, other factors may also impact loss reserve development in future periods. These factors include
governmental actions, including court decisions interpreting existing laws, regulations or policy provisions, developments
related to insurance policy claims and coverage issues, adverse or favorable outcomes in pending claims litigation, the number
and severity of insurance claims, the impact of inflation on insurance claims and the impact of residual market assessments.
Although the Company’s actuaries do not make specific numerical assumptions about these factors, changes in these factors
from past patterns will impact historical loss development factors and, in turn, future loss reserve development. Significant
positive changes in one or more factors will lead to positive future loss reserve development, which could result in the actual
loss developing closer to, or even below, the lower end of the Company’s estimated reserve variability. Significant negative
changes in one or more factors will lead to negative loss reserve development, which could result in the actual loss developing
closer to, or even above, the higher end of the Company’s estimated reserve variability. Accordingly, due to these factors and
the other factors enumerated throughout the MD&A and the inherent limitations of the loss reserving estimation methodologies,
the estimated and illustrated reserve variability may not necessarily be indicative of the Company’s future reserve variability,
which could ultimately be greater than the estimated and illustrated variability. In addition, as previously noted, development
will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines over time. Accordingly, the Company’s future reserve variability could
ultimately be greater than the illustrated variability.

Unallocated Reserves are reinsured by an insurance subsidiary of SCOR (see Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The Company does not anticipate that any variability of these reserves
will have a financial impact on the Company’s reported results of operations or liquidity and, accordingly, has not estimated any
potential variability to these reserves. The Company does not allocate these reserves to its business segments.

Additional information pertaining to the estimation of and development of the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this 2011 Annual Report under the heading “Property and Casualty Loss and Loss
Adjustment Expense Reserves.”
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Gooawill Recoverability

While the Company believes that none of its reporting units with material goodwill are at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test, the process of determining whether or not an asset, such as Goodwill, is impaired or recoverable
relies on projections of future cash flows, operating results and market conditions. Such projections are inherently uncertain
and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ materially from projected cash flows. In evaluating the recoverability of
Goodwill, the Company performs a discounted cash flow analysis for each of the Company’s reporting units. The discounted
cash value may be different from the fair value that would result from an actual transaction between a willing buyer and a
willing seller. Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in discount rates and investment rates. Changes to these rates
might result in material changes in the valuation and determination of the recoverability of Goodwill. For example, an increase
in the rate used to discount cash flows will decrease the discounted cash value. There is likely to be a similar, but not
necessarily as large as, increase in the investment rate used to project the cash flows resulting from investment income earned
on the Company’s investments. Accordingly, an increase in the investment rate would increase the discounted cash value.

Pension Benefit Obligations

The process of estimating the Company’s pension benefit obligations and pension benefit costs is inherently uncertain and the
actual cost of benefits may vary materially from the estimates recorded. These liabilities are particularly volatile due to their
long-term nature and are based on several assumptions. The main assumptions used in the valuation of the Company’s pension
benefit obligations are:

»  Estimated mortality of the employees and retirees eligible for benefits;

»  Estimated expected long-term rates of returns on investments;

»  Estimated compensation increases;

»  Estimated employee turnover; and

»  Estimated rate used to discount the ultimate estimated liability to a present value.

A change in any one or more of these assumptions is likely to result in an ultimate liability different from the original actuarial
estimate. Such changes in estimates may be material. For example, a one—percentage point decrease in the Company’s
estimated discount rate would increase the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2011 by $75.1 million, while a one—
percentage point increase in the rate would decrease the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2011 by $60.5 million. A
one—percentage point decrease in the Company’s estimated long-term rate of return on plan assets would increase the pension
expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 by $3.5 million, while a one—percentage point increase in the rate would
decrease pension expense by $3.5 million for the same period.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Except for rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws and a limited number of
grandfathered standards, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is the sole source of authoritative GAAP
recognized by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and applicable to the Company. The FASB issues
Accounting Standards Updates (“ASUs”) to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There were twelve ASUs issued in 2011
that amend the original text of ASC.

Changes in accounting standards that are most critical or relevant to the Company are discussed in Note 2, “Summary of
Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements under the headings “Adoption of New
Accounting Standards” and “Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted.” The accounting changes discussed are as follows:

»  ASU 2010-26, Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts;

*  ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements; and
» ASU 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Quantitative Information About Market Risk

The Company’s consolidated balance sheet includes three types of financial instruments subject to the material market risk
disclosures required by the SEC:

1. Investments in Fixed Maturities;
2. Investments in Equity Securities and;
3. Notes Payable.

Investments in Fixed Maturities and Notes Payable are subject to material interest rate risk. The Company’s Investments in
Equity Securities include common and preferred stocks and, accordingly, are subject to material equity price risk and interest
rate risk, respectively.

For purposes of this disclosure, market risk sensitive financial instruments are divided into two categories: financial instruments
acquired for trading purposes and financial instruments acquired for purposes other than trading. The Company’s market risk
sensitive financial instruments are generally classified as held for purposes other than trading. The Company has no significant
holdings of financial instruments acquired for trading purposes. The Company has no significant holdings of derivatives.

The Company measures its sensitivity to market risk by evaluating the change in its financial assets and liabilities relative to
fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices. The evaluation is made using instantaneous changes in interest rates and equity
prices on a static balance sheet to determine the effect such changes would have on the Company’s market value at risk and the
resulting pre-tax effect on Shareholders” Equity. The changes chosen represent the Company’s view of adverse changes which
are reasonably possible over a one-year period. The selection of the changes chosen should not be construed as the Company’s
prediction of future market events, but rather an illustration of the impact of such events.

For the interest rate sensitivity analysis presented below, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100—
basis points in the yield curve at both December 31, 2011 and 2010 for Investments in Fixed Maturities. Such 100-basis point
increase in the yield curve may not necessarily result in a corresponding 100-basis point increase in the interest rate for all
investments in fixed maturities. For example, a 100-basis point increase in the yield curve for risk-free, taxable investments in
fixed maturities may not result in a 100-basis point increase for tax-exempt investments in fixed maturities. For Investments in
Fixed Maturities, the Company also anticipated changes in cash flows due to changes in the likelihood that investments would
be called or prepaid prior to their contractual maturity. All other variables were held constant. For preferred stock equity
securities the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100—basis points in market interest rates from their
levels at both December 31, 2011 and 2010. All other variables were held constant. For Notes Payable, the Company assumed
an adverse and instantaneous decrease of 100-basis points in market interest rates from their levels at December 31, 2011 and
2010. All other variables were held constant. The Company measured equity price sensitivity assuming an adverse and
instantaneous 30% decrease in the Standard and Poor’s Stock Index (the “S&P 500”) from its level at December 31, 2011 and
2010, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s investments in common stock equity securities were correlated
with the S&P 500 using the portfolio’s weighted-average beta of 0.92 and 0.96 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The portfolio’s weighted-average beta was calculated using each security’s beta for the five-year periods ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, and weighted on the fair value of such securities at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. For equity
securities without observable market inputs the Company assumed a beta of 1.00 at December 31, 2011 and 2010. Beta
measures a stock’s relative volatility in relation to the rest of the stock market, with the S&P 500 having a beta coefficient of
1.00.
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The estimated adverse effects on the market value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2011 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in FIxed Maturiti€s........ococeevvevrieieniiieeniiireenreeeeesreeseeveeneeneens $ 47734 $§ (3484) § — 8§ (348.4)
Investments in EQUItY SECUTILIES......ccooevvierieriiiiririirnenenieresreeseree e 3973 (10.4) (63.3) (73.7)
LIABILITIES
NOtES PAyable......c.cooieeiicieeeee ettt $ 6387 § 269 $ — 3 26.9

The estimated adverse effects on the market value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2010 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturities.........ccovueuerrenerineererenenineiereenreesnsessenenens $ 44753 $§ (3169) $ — § (316.9)
Investments in EQUIty SECUTTLIES.......corvevirerieriereinrieesrestesseseesseerssseesesnens 550.4 (6.9) (125.4) (132.3)
LIABILITIES
NOES PAYADIE......c.cuevieriieiereretceiet ettt ettt ettt e v et es e nene $ 6280 $ 316 $ — 31.6

The market risk sensitivity analysis assumes that the composition of the Company’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities,
including, but not limited to, credit quality, and the equity price sensitive assets existing at the beginning of the period remains
constant over the period being measured. It also assumes that a particular change in interest rates is uniform across the yield
curve regardless of the time to maturity. Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market rates. Also, any future
correlation, either in the near term or the long term, between the Company’s common stock equity securities portfolio and the
S&P 500 may differ from the historical correlation as represented by the weighted-average historical beta of the common stock
equity securities portfolio. Accordingly, the market risk sensitivity analysis may not be indicative of, is not intended to provide,
and does not provide, a precise forecast of the effect of changes of market rates on the Company’s income or shareholders’
equity. Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions the Company may undertake in response to changes in interest
rates or equity prices.

To the extent that any adverse 100-basis point change occurs in increments over a period of time instead of instantaneously, the
adverse impact on fair values would be partially mitigated because some of the underlying financial instruments would have
matured. For example, proceeds from any maturing assets could be reinvested and any new liabilities would be incurred at the
then current interest rates.

Qualitative Information About Market Risk

Market risk is a broad term related to economic losses due to adverse changes in the fair value of a financial instrument and is
inherent to all financial instruments. SEC disclosure rules focus on only one element of market risk—price risk. Price risk
relates to changes in the level of prices due to changes in interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates or other factors
that relate to market volatility of the rate, index, or price underlying the financial instrument. The Company’s primary market
risk exposures are to changes in interest rates and equity prices.

The Company manages its interest rate exposures with respect to Investments in Fixed Maturities by investing primarily in
investment-grade securities of moderate effective duration.

64



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 . ....uvviioieieeicieeiieeiee et eeee e sareceae s s sase s 66
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009..........cooeeveeieicienvennnennen. 67
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009........ccceccveecenieeniennnen. 68

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31,
2011, 2010 QNG 2000 .....ocveieceieeieiereeeieeeee et eeete et ese et st sttt e e R bbb R RS oA s s s n et b et 69

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Significant EStIMates.........ccoovvviiiinieiiiiiiec e 70
Note 2—Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes...........cooeeiiiiinniennnnieicie e, 71
Note 3—DiscONtNUEd OPETALIONS. ......c.euererrrreeeiiriier ittt et s bbb sebe bbb e e be bbb e bebesa s eseseseseas 74
INOLE 4——TIVESHITIENES ....eeeeuveereririertenieneirieeeer et ettt saeebeese st e st s sas s b e b s e ae s b e e re b e e s e s b et e be st e s bessebeasa s b s b e s s e s e assen s asaesente st esbenees 76
NOLE S—GOOAWILL ..ttt ettt teets ettt e sttt ste b st et st s s r e n e me e s esbe s R e e besatesaessseassabsrnesaeen e e s eensanssesserss 82
Note 6—Property and Casualty InSurance RESEIVES ........coouvirrriiiiitiiiiieiitet ettt e 84
NOLE T—INOLES PAYADIE......veveeieieicireicieiciet ettt ettt e b s s bbb b e r s bbb s s s et e b e b e s s bbb sa b an et s s 85
INOLE 8L @ASES. .. vvereerierreetrerteseeeesrestesssesaeseesbae et st e beabe e st e e et sut et s s s e s s s e e e e e aebesRassheea s s e be s b e e R e e e s ean e s e b e ens et e eas et b e teernanes 87
NOte 9—SharehOlders” EQUILY ....occoceervererreiiteriieeet ettt st s et s e e ae s sa b s ss s bas s s ess s sneacs 87
Note 10—Long-term Equity Based COmMPENSation..........cc.covuriniiriiioiiiiniec ettt s 88
Note 1 1—RESHUCTUINING EXPEISES....cu..erueriireeeirieiiiesictirisstineassse et s s st be s sre e s s s nesesbebesbasesssbesesssssssssnssssnseasns 92
Note 12—Income Per Share from Continuing Operations per Unrestricted Share.............cccoceiiviinnnnnninnn, 93
Note 13—Other Comprehensive Income and Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME ......ovveirieiienieiiniennnnn, 94
Note 14—Income from INVESTMENTS .....ccceeevrruiiiereeiiiriieeit ittt e st es e b r e be s e sbe s e b s ssesbasassess 95
Note 15—TINSUTANCE BEXPENSES....cccvvivrveriuimiiiiiiitiiisitiitirers sttt st r b s s s b e bt e bk ba s bbb e e sa s ban et be s s 96
NOLE 16——TNCOME TAKES ...vveveerieinrerrenierisresaeseeeetestestestesessesseessesesstsaee st sbebasbessebtobtsaeessssessssseassassas s erbs b anssssebsberbesseanens 96
NOtE 17—PenSion BENETIIS. ... cvierieeieiiitirieiterrise ettt eetesteereeee s et s s s s e s s s e b s s b e et saesrssaesbnsraesassrbassaessessenssersans 99
Note-18—Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions ...t 104
NOte 19—BUSINESS SEZIMENLS .....veveverireeuerieuecriieietiirtetitee st st s e saes s ae e s be e sreessr s s s aes s s ek s s e s e s e besssbasas s aranessssesinasasas 106
Note 20—Catastrophe REINSUTANCE. .......ccc.uiveeriiiiiniiiiiiici ittt b e st ea ettt eneanes 109
NOte 21—Other REINSUTANCE.........cvovveveeiireerieeerieeeteeetcsteseat et ettt ess st saeat et st sssess st essessesssbesssas s as s sasssssenseserensasernnses 112
Note 22—Fair Value MeEaSUIEIMENLS......c.veiueeuerrereerieereirreerassseseensesremesssesasssasssssassrasssssressssensessesssessessesssessessasssessesseas 113
NOLE 23——CONEINZEIICIES ...vevvveeinceerirerereereeerir et it ittt b s s se s st et e s st tsa s s e b e b s s e s s e s es s st s bbb s b e s bt s b s ettt 116
INOtE 24—REIAEA PATLIES ......eeveviveveeereirienieieiereerieer ettt sttt st sas st r s ea s e bbb e b s b bbb e e s eab s b e s s st abas s ebesanrenes 116
Note 25—Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)..........ocoevimimiiiiiniiiiiii e 118
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting FirM.......cooviiiiiiieoiininnncicccec e 120

65



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

2011 2010

Assets:
Investments:

Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2011 - $4,266.1; 2010 - $4,240.8)................ $ 4,7734 $ 4,475.3

Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2011 - $367.3; 2010 - $449.2).....cccevieeivvmrreecccnnnes 397.3 550.4

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative Undistributed

BaIMINES ..ottt ettt et sae st s e st bt e b s aaa e b e s s ke estesheestenra e st e bestenaesseesnentene 306.3 328.0

Short-term Investments at Cost which Approximates Fair Value.......ccccooevvevneeinieceereecenennenns 2474 402.9

Other INVESIMENLS .....c..eeeveeieeriireriereieeere e e e saeeeaeesresees e sseae et eseesessesrensesaeseentssensassensencessane 498.3 494.2
TOLAl INVESIIMEIES. ....veeieeeeieeeiereeesieeestteesreeerr e esreeesensessensessossnsesssssseesntnesassneesresesabesessbaesssbeeesses 6,222.7 6,250.8
L7111 O OO UORUORSPTUOUPRRPOPEORt 251.2 117.2
Receivables from POHCYROLACTS .......cccovvieuirieriiirieiseeiinnsiesten e et siesessses e sessenes 379.2 388.9
Oher RECEIVADIES ....c.vivveeieiirieieieiieinicetententeeetete ettt et e ae st ssbe st seenaeste st eseebesaesbeeee e eneentesesuensents 218.7 555.4
Deferred Policy ACQUISIHION COSES.....c.cverierieeeiirietiiiesresteniesieeesressessessenassesessessessessenseseesessasssssenes 448.5 426.4
GOOAWIIL ... cesvevsssseee s 311.8 3118
Current and Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS......ccucieriiviirieeieieeireeniesiaesseseenressesiessaessessesssessessaessonses 3.1 39.6
OTRET ASSELS...uveeieueeiieeeeteeetee et e eteeaete st ebeersesbesss svas bt esse st aesbeasaeessenssaseassesasessensasnsensesnsaneseneensansan 250.7 268.4
TOUAL ASSEES. .. uveereeireieeieeeeetieeeeereeteeesesseseessseeneeeseeassesssensesanessenbesasteeassensssensesssnestsassseenssessnesssannns $ 8,0859 $ 8,358.5

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Insurance Reserves:

Life AN HEAIM ..ot tes v teae e ee e e s s e sen e sessasossesanensanoae st ssensssenesssnens $ 31027 $ 3,063.7
Property and Casualty .........cccoveiiieiiceceeeetese et et re e ae e e e b a s s na s e sensennas 1,029.1 1,118.7
TOtal INSUIANCE RESEIVES ......viieviieieeriiceeeiteeeeteeeteeeeieereeereesseeessseesseseneessesssesensessssssssessneesneessenassens 4,131.8 4,182.4
Certificates of Deposits at Cost (Fair Value: 2010 - $336.6).......ccoocvreerrerrreerereeeeeneee e — 3214
UnEarned PIEIMIUIMIS. .......c.eeuevertriirenreteteeesesseeesssesseseensessesesseessessessessensesessessessesseseeseessrsesssssensansone 666.2 678.6
Liabilities for INCOME TAXES.....c.cvvcerrirrerieiireiiniriestieesteesiesiees e seessese et sseesessebeeesteneesessesesseneansene 57.9 15.1
Notes Payable at Amortized Cost (Fair Value: 2011 - $638.7; 2010 - $628.0).....c.ccccvvvveerirenrenenns 610.6 609.8
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities. ........c.cciiieerierecreceeieiieriieesieeeiceeteeeestesse s sssseesessessanens 403.3 437.8
TOtAL LIADIIIEIES. .. c.euveviieeerisieiieirieiete ettt e et e e st ba s b e b benasbesaeseseseebesnesassesesnnan 5,869.8 6,245.1
Shareholders’ Equity: _
Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value Per Share, 100 Million Shares Authorized; 60,248,582
Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 61,066,587 Shares Issued and
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 .........ccocivveiriiierrireeieeeseiresieeereeveete e eaesseeesessessessesnesens 6.0 6.1
Paid-in Capital ........coooeiiieeiiieieece ettt ettt st st aaere s e te b enneneans 743.9 751.1
Retained EAIMINES ......eeeuiieieiieeeeiee ettt ete s e st esesses s et ssseneses e e esenessessssessasenansebannenans 1,208.2 1,198.8
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME .......c.ceeivveeeiieiiiieceirre e 258.0 157.4
Total Shareholders’” EQuUity...........ccovevveevvevienievennns et teettare e etenhe e ettt e b sha e tesaeertentesseentesraentes 2,216.1 2,113.4
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity............... e teeteteteree et te b et e beseseeraesesaasernenteraaseas $ 8,085.9 $ 8,358.5

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Revenues:
Earned PremIlMS ... .ccocciiirriereeirnieeriistestesneeniesee st eeesaeateseeses srenesseasesecsnssnensesessessessonns
Net Investment INCOME..........cooieiiiiieiir et et see e e e e
Oher TNCOIMIE ...vveieeiieciirececeee e et enee et beaee e esanassbea s oo e aseantsbeaseeaesraseeanessaseenens
Net Realized Gains on Sales of InVestments .........ccocevviivieceniesveniinieesieseesiesnciece e,
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment LOSSES............covvereerereriinensineseererenssennseenas
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income..........cccoeeineceniceeneacns
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.....c....coueovereeenriniennneenererireseseseenenns
TOtAl REVENUES ..ottt ettt sttt sttt sttt et st st et
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses.................
INSUIANCE EXPENSES....coueieiiiirrreeiirriieniiiecetentreresir ettt e resae s tesnetstasbesssesbesnesssasssessessaesieas
Write-off of Goodwill and Other Intangibles Acquired..........cccovccriiverreeenerneeiinaennas
Interest and Other EXPENSES .....ccvciivviiieeriireriesiensicrresennneesteeneesesnenseereenseens trrreeeeeresaeas
TOtAL EXPONSES..c..uieiiiiitiniciccnriritet ittt ettt re e et ottt st on et an s st e st eneaen

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Loss of
INVESIEE «viiiiitiee ettt e st e

INCOME TaX EXPOIISE....ceeeeuiiieiriee e cirieectie st eettesetr e eeeeeas s esasreesesbaessrtaeesstrassssseessvesesas
Income from Continuing Operations before Equity in Net Loss of Investee........................
Equity in Net Loss 0f INVESIEE ....veveveiiiiieeeieieeiicieieiereeteteter e st sen et s st e sene s
Income from Continuing OPErations..........ceeeceerrevrrriveestiniriiesreessresesieesesseessessasssessesssesvaens
Discontinued Operations:

Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes.......c...ccecvvveeceeevenrrciriennne.,

INCOmE TaxX EXPENSE....coruiriieiiiieiitentec ettt ettt s et esee st naesrasee e eseean
Income (Loss) from Discontinued OPerations ...........cccoceeverereeereenimirnseereeseeasnssesssensenas
NELINCOME ....ceeivieieiieii ittt ettt e st et s ettt eas et e ssae s st e testaesbesanensesnansassssnsentons

For The Years Ended December 31,

$ 138
$ 138

$ 096

2.98

2.98
0.88

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011 2010 2009
$2,173.6 $22894 $24555
298.0 325.7 319.9
1.0 1.3 2.5
337 426 24.6
a4 (177 (50.6)
0.1 1.2 0.2
13)  (165)  (504)
2,4950  2,6425  2,752.1
1,645.7  1,6472 17395
669.3 675.5 7212
13.5 148 1.5
83.9 68.3 61.9
2,4124  2,4058  2,524.1
82.6 236.7 228.0
aLr7n (675  (59.5)
70.9 169.2 168.5
—_ (0.1) (1.0)
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19.5 25.8 5.6
67  (103) (8.4)
12.8 15.5 (2.8)
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$ 117 273§ 2.69
$ 117 273§ 2.69
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Operating Activities:
NEEINCOMIE ...ttt et et bs e bbb s bbb s e b ereberereasssetens $ 837 §$ 1846 § 1647
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
Increase in Deferred Policy Acquisition CoStS.......cveeevieeeerireiereeeeereeecreeee e ee e (22.1) (15.1) (12.9)
Amortization of Insurance in FOrce ACQUIred.........o.ooveveeeeeieeevvreevenreeenceeeeeeieeseveessenens 114 11.0 8.4
Equity in Net Loss of Former Investee before Taxes........cco.voevveeririeninicrerecenneerenenenenen — 0.2 1.6
Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments...............c.ooevvueee.. (9.6) (48.8) (47.8)
Amortization of Investment Securities and Depreciation of Investment Real Estate ...... 16.0 17.6 15.7
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESIMENLS............cvevereierericeeieceriiceesisiee st eenerenene (34.1) (42.6) (24.6)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ........ccccocvevevveveeiiecierecieieneeeeeeeeeenne 113 16.5 50.4
Gain on Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables..........ccccoviviveiceeevvreennnnne. “.5) — —
Provision (Benefit) for Loan LOSSES .......cocveviveiieiiiceieee ettt see e (42.0) (14.2) 60.2
Depreciation of Property and EQUIPIENL ..........ccceoerrinieeiinieriieit et evssevessanens 10.9 14.5 16.6
WIite-0ff Of GOOAWILL.......coiiiiiieiiiiiieiiiei et — 14.8 1.5
Impairment of P&C Customer Relationships Acquired..........covvevevrerirriemriencernieenienene 13.5 — —
Decrease (Increase) in Other Receivables..........c.ocvevieviviveeiiiiiiiieciecrceeeeeeic e 0.2) 28.0 80.8
Decrease in INSUTance RESETVES ........ccvcvveiiveeiieeiieeeietiere et st esbeeensereaesaens (52.1) (52.1) (111.8)
Decrease in Unearned Premilms ..........cccoeiivriinieinieineeieeirieiesereeresecseneesevessesesesessesesens (12.4) (46.4) (57.4)
Change N INCOME TAXES .....cueevieveeeieeireericter ettt et st ent e et eresressestesseresneesesseanonee 22.3 12.4 (5.1)
Decrease in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities......c..covovveeeiiieeeivcviicceeierecreeene (47.5) (41.0) (5.0)
OFher, NEL ..o ettt ettt st re et seseaseaseaseneenesronsestonnenes 30.4 19.1 28.2
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating ACtiVILIES........ccevviveivveeriirieeirrinrineesreeeesteere s seesenes (25.0) 58.5 163.5
Investing Activities:
Sales and Maturities Of Fixed MatUrities .......cccceviieivieieeriieei ettt eevereenan 650.3 706.7 708.3
Purchases of FiXed Maturities ........ccoueueeirueieienieenieere e ereseereeressesess et s evess s eessbesssesennesesnens (663.4) (532.1) (865.3)
Sales Of EQUILY SECUTIHIES ....cceoviieiiieiiieeierieeieee ettt es e sv s st st esaenene 248.3 33.8 108.7
Purchases of EQUILY SECUTTLES .. ccvcueviveieieietcieece ettt st e st re s ens (199.2)  (189.1) (3.8)
Sales 0f FOIMETr INVESIEE .....c.c.iuiierireeeiiiirisietntee ettt ettt ress s ne s ressa s sereseaes — 2.7 —
Acquisition and Improvements of Investment Real Estate............cooeoveevevveneeiiccinceeeererennne 6.4) 3.9 (8.9)
Sales of Investment Real EState .........cccoveireirirenriieieesieescsises et se e e 0.3 9.6 0.2
Return of Investment of Equity Method Limited Liability ITnvestments ...........c.c.covvevevenen. 57.0 38.1 21.7
Acquisitions of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments ..............cccovveeirvreeveveeeerennee. (25.7) (3L.9) (17.1)
Decrease (Increase) in Short-term INVESIMENLtS ..........cecevieeieeereveireeirereireenreesr e seeeseseens 155.5 (7.3) 222.2
Receipts from Automobile Loan Receivables..........ccooieivieveeeieieievicericeceeceseee e, 166.5 339.6 431.9
Net Proceeds from Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables............ccooeveveueeeen. 220.7 — —
Acquisitions of Automobile Loan Receivables............ooooviiviveiiieiiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeereeeeneene — — (77.0)
Acquisition of Businesses, Net of Cash ACQUIred ...........coovevrrieeviverireenrieeieeeieeeeeeeveseens — — (190.0)
Disposition of Business, Net of Cash DiSposed............cccovvveveieiereeieeeeeeeeereeessesenas — 4.1 0.2
OIhET, NEL... .ottt ettt st ettt st ea et et ess et s et essrn e et eseseresensasans (39.3) (51.0) (43.5)
Net Cash Provided by Investing ACVITIES . ....ccvvevereeeeiriiinreeniretiiteeeietere et ee et esersee e 564.6 319.3 287.6
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Issuance of Certificates 0f DEPOSItS........cooeretriereeeririserinrnesnsseresiesesenens — — 16.0
Repayments of Certificates of DePOSItS.......c.oceeverieierieiirieriiecr st eresene (321.8) (366.9) (444.5)
Proceeds from Issuance of Notes Payable .........cccovoiiveiierierivieeeeceecvceeee s 95.0 387.8 220.0
Repayments of Notes Payable........cccoocoieiiirniiiiiciiiiieee e (95.0) (340.1) (220.1)
Common Stock REPUICHASES ........cvoiirievecririiiice ettt st ee s e seeeeneeaes 27.4) (34.4) —
Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders ...........ooceiueuireucririereiieieccetcee et (58.2) (54.6) (66.6)
Cash EXercise 0f StOCK OPHIONS......cvveiieiirieeceiieietcreeeeteresrere ettt seeresseseseenesesresssnens 0.2 0.5 —
Excess Tax Benefits from Share-based AWards...........ccouoeveeeiereeiiieieieiccceeercreeneeesenes 0.2 0.2 0.1
Other, NEt.....oiiiiiciei et a ettt s st et asas st teasraaa 1.4 3.2 3.5
Net Cash Used by FInancing ACHVITIES ..........ccvevvveririiriieerctiece it sie vt steeeteet e eseaesees (405.6)  (404.3) (491.6)
Increase (Decrease) i Cash........oocvuiviueuiieieiieiiriiei et en e 134.0 (26.5) (40.5)
Cash, BegiNNiNg Of Y aT........ccooiioviiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et eeeee e e eeveeetsseessess st esesteseseressseeresens 117.2 143.7 184.2
Cash, End 0f PErTOd .....c.c.ovuiiiiieiiicieieeteeie ettt ns sttt $ 2512 § 1172 § 1437

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

For The Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Accumulated

DOLLARS AND SHARES IN Number Other Total
MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE of Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Sharcholders’
AMOUNTS Shares Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2008 ....................... 623 $ 62 $ 7647 $ 9858 $ (108.1) $ 1,648.6
Net INCOme ..ot — — — 164.7 — 164.7
Other Comprehensive Income (note 13) .. — — — — 169.8 169.8
Total Comprehensive INCOMe........coovvvvniirneesiecennens 334.5
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting for

Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ....... — — — 29 2.9) —
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($1.07 per share) ... — — — (66.6) — (66.6)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 10).............. — — 3.1 — — 3.1
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(IOL€ 10)..0vvvvvvervvvsvssernsnnrssssssssnsnssessssseneeeeenereee e 0.1 — (1.9) (0.1) — (2.0)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009 ....................... 624 $ 62 § 7659 $ 1,086.7 $ 588 §$ 1,917.6
Net INCOME .t — — — 184.6 — 184.6
Other Comprehensive Income (note 13) .......c.cc.euene — — — — 98.6 98.6
Total Comprehensive Income...........cccoooeiceniinnenns 283.2
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.88 per share) ... — — — (54.6) — (54.6)
Repurchases of Common Stock........c.ccoeriinniiccns (14) 0.1 (17.0) (17.3) — (34.4)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 10).............. — — 42 — — 4.2
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOE€ 10).cuiuiceeririirieeceeir e 0.1 — 2.0) (0.6) — (2.6)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2010 ....................... 611 $ 61 $ 7511 $ 1,1988 $ 1574 2,1134
Net INCOME .voviviivmmniciiisene — — — 83.7 — 83.7
Other Comprehensive Income (note 13) .........ccc....... — — — — 100.6 100.6
Total Comprehensive Income.................. e 184.3
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) ... — — — (58.2) — (58.2)
Repurchases of Common StocK.........cccoevuvirrerennnes 0.9) .1 (11.6) (15.7) - (27.4)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 10}).............. — — 5.3 -— — 5.3
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(001 10).cervvvrvvveverrennsrsssssssmmssssssereessssssssssrooee 0.1 — (0.9) 0.4) — (1.3)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011....................... 603 $ 60 $ 7439 $ 12082 § 2580 $ 2,216.1

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

On August 25, 2011, Unitrin, Inc. changed its name to Kemper Corporation and began trading on the New York Stock
Exchange under a new ticker symbol, KMPR. The Consolidated Financial Statements included herein have been prepared on
the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Kemper
Corporation, formerly known as Unitrin, Inc. (“Kemper™), and its subsidiaries (individually and collectively referred to herein
as the “Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. The presentation of certain
prior year amounts and disclosures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation for the current year.

On February 13, 2009, Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, completed its acquisition of Direct Response in a cash transaction for a
total purchase price of $201.6 million. The results of Direct Response are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
from the date of acquisition and are reported in the Company’s Direct segment.

During the third quarter of 2011, Kemper’s subsidiary, Fireside Bank, sold its active portfolio of automobile loan receivables.
Accordingly, the Company has accounted for Fireside Bank as a discontinued operation and has reclassified the results of
Fireside Bank and the related disclosures for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 to conform to the current
presentation. The Company also accounts for its former Unitrin Business Insurance operations as discontinued operations. See
Note 3, “Discontinued Operations,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from
those estimates and assumptions.

The fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities, Investments in Equity Securities and Senior Notes Payable
are estimated using a hierarchal framework which prioritizes and ranks market price observability. The fair value of
Automobile Loan Receivables at December 31, 2010 has been estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using
the rates at which loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and the same remaining maturities. The fair
value of Certificates of Deposits at December 31, 2010 has been estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the rate
of discount required to liquidate existing deposits. The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
approximate fair value for Cash, Short-term Investments and certain other assets and other liabilities because of their short-term
nature. The actual value at which financial instruments could actually be sold or settled with a willing buyer or seller may differ
from estimated fair values depending on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, current and future economic
conditions, the quantity sold or settled, the presence of an active market and the availability of a willing buyer or seller.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance is inherently
uncertain and the actual ultimate net cost of a claim may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. The reserving
process is particularly imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, mold, construction defect and other
emerging and/or long-tailed exposures, which may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period
has ended. Management considers a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, past claims experience, current claim trends
and relevant legal, economic and social conditions, in estimating reserves. A change in any one or more factors is likely to
result in the ultimate net claim cost to differ from the estimated reserve. Changes in such estimates may be material and would
be recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements when such estimates change.

The process of determining whether an asset is impaired or recoverable relies on projections of future cash flows, operating
results and market conditions. Projections are inherently uncertain and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ
materially from projected cash flows. As a result, the Company’s assessment of the impairment of long-lived assets is
susceptible to the risk inherent in making such projections.
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Investments

Investments in Fixed Maturities include bonds, notes and redeemable preferred stocks. Investments in Fixed Maturities are
classified as available for sale and reported at fair value. Net Investment Income, including amortization of purchased
premiums and accretion of market discounts, on Investments in Fixed Maturities is recognized as interest earned using the
effective yield method.

Investments in Equity Securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks and other equity interests and are
reported at fair value. Investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks with readily determinable fair values are
classified as available for sale. Dividend income on investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks is recognized
on the ex-dividend date. Other equity interests primarily consist of partnership interests in limited liability partnerships in which
the Company’s interests are deemed minor and exchange traded funds. The Company’s share of distributed earnings from other
equity interests is recognized as dividend income when received.

Unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net of applicable deferred income taxes, on fixed maturities and equity securities is
reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income included in Shareholders’ Equity.

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting.

Short-term Investments include fixed maturities that mature within one year from the date of purchase, money market mutual
funds, Federal funds sold and repurchase agreements. Short-term Investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair
value.

Other Investments primarily include loans to policyholders and real estate. Loans to policyholders are carried at unpaid
principal balance. Real estate is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Real estate is depreciated over the estimated
useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of depreciation. Real estate is evaluated for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value of the real estate may not be recoverable. An impairment on real estate is recognized
when carrying value exceeds the sum of undiscounted cash flows.

Gains and losses on sales of investments are computed on the specific identification method and are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which the sales occur. The Company regularly reviews its investment
portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other than temporary. Losses are computed
on the specific identification method and reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the decline is
determined to be other than temporary. In the second quarter of 2009, the Company adopted a required change in accounting
which impacts the determination of the amount of OTTI losses on Investments in Fixed Maturities that are recognized in
earnings subsequent to April 1, 2009. Effective April 1, 2009, the portion of an impairment of an investment in a fixed maturity
attributed to a credit loss is reported in Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings in the Consolidated Statement of
Income, with the balance of such impairment reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes and ranks the market price observability used in fair value
measurements. Market price observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability and the
characteristics specific to the asset or liability being measured. Assets and liabilities with readily available, active, quoted
market prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree
of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. The Company classifies the inputs
used to measure fair value into one of three levels as follows:

» Level 1 — Quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities;

»  Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-derived prices whose
inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable; and

» Level 3 — Assets and liabilities whose significant value drivers are unobservable.
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Observable inputs are based on market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs are based on the
Company’s market assumptions. Unobservable inputs require significant management judgment or estimation. In some cases,
the inputs used to measure an asset or liability may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those instances, the
Company classifies the fair value measurement using the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Such determination requires significant management judgment. In accordance with GAAP, the Company is not permitted to
adjust quoted market prices in an active market, even if the Company owns a large investment, the sale of which could
reasonably impact the quoted price.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs directly associated with the acquisition of business, principally commissions and certain premium taxes and policy
issuance costs, are deferred. Costs deferred on property and casualty insurance products and health insurance products are
amortized over the period in which premiums are earned. Costs deferred on traditional life insurance products are primarily
amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the related policies in proportion to the ratio of the annual premiums
to the total premiums anticipated, which is estimated using the same assumptions used in calculating policy reserves.

Goodwill

The cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of net assets acquired is reported as Goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but
rather is tested annually for recoverability or when certain triggering events require testing. See discussion below under the
caption “Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted” regarding a pending change in accounting that will impact the nature and
frequency of the Company’s assessment of Goodwill for recoverability in 2012.

Insurance Reserves

Reserves for losses and LAE on property and casualty coverage and health insurance coverage represent the estimated claim
cost and loss adjustment expense necessary to cover the ultimate net cost of investigating and settling all losses incurred and
unpaid. Such estimates are based on individual case estimates for reported claims and estimates for incurred but not reported
losses. These estimates are adjusted in the aggregate for ultimate loss expectations based on historical experience patterns and
current economic trends, with any change in the estimated ultimate liabilities being reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Income in the period of change. Changes in such estimates may be material.

For traditional life insurance products, the reserves for future policy benefits are estimated on the net level premium method
based on rates for expected mortality, lapse rates and interest rates, including provisions for adverse mortality. These
assumptions vary by such characteristics as plan, age at issue and policy duration. Mortality assumptions are based on the
Company’s historical experience and industry standards. Interest rate assumptions principally range from 3% to 7%. Lapse rate
assumptions are based on actual and industry experience.

Other Receivables
Other Receivables primarily include automobile loan receivables, reinsurance recoverables and accrued investment income.
Other Assets

Other Assets primarily include property and equipment, internal use software, insurance licenses acquired in business
combinations, the value of other intangible assets acquired and prepaid expenses. Property and equipment is depreciated over
the useful life of the assets, generally using the straight-line or double declining balance methods of depreciation depending on
the asset involved. Internal use software is primarily amortized over the useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of
amortization. Insurance licenses acquired in business combinations and other indefinite life intangibles are not amortized, but
rather tested periodically for recoverability.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in life insurance in force acquired (“Life VIF™)
based on actuarial estimates of the present value of estimated net cash flows. Life VIF was $52.1 million and $59.1 million at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Life VIF is amortized using the effective interest method using interest rates
consistent with the rates in the underlying insurance contracts. The Company estimates that it will record Life VIF amortization,
net of interest, of $7.8 million in 2012, $7.0 million in 2013, $6.2 million in 2014, $5.5 million in 2015 and $4.8 million in
2016. The Company evaluates the Life VIF for recoverability annually.
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The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in Property and Casualty Insurance customer
relationships acquired (“P&C Customer Relationships™) based on the present value of estimated future profits from the
customer relationships acquired. P&C Customer Relationships was $20.8 million and $38.5 million at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. P&C Customer Relationships is amortized using the effective interest method. P&C Customer
Relationships are tested for recoverability using undiscounted projections of future cash flows and written down to estimated
fair value if the carrying value exceeds the sum of such projections of undiscounted cash flows. The Company recorded a loss
of $13.5 million before tax for the year ended December 31, 2011 to write down the carrying value of P&C Customer
Relationships related to the acquisition of Direct Response to its estimated fair value.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities primarily include accrued salaries and commissions, pension benefits, postretirement
medical benefits and accrued taxes, licenses and fees.

Recognition of Earned Premiums and Related Expenses

Property and casualty insurance and health insurance premiums are deferred when written and recognized and earned ratably
over the periods to which the premiums relate. Unearned Premiums represent the portion of the premiums written related to the
unexpired portion of policies in force which has been deferred and is reported as a liability. A premium deficiency reserve is
established if the sum of expected claim costs, claim adjustment expenses, unamortized deferred policy acquisition costs and
maintenance costs exceeds the related unearned premiums. For each business segment, the analysis is performed at a product
line level, namely automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and other insurance, which is consistent with the manner in
which the Company acquires, services and measures profitability. Anticipated investment income is excluded from such
analysis.

Traditional life insurance premiums are recognized as revenue when due. Policyholders’ benefits are associated with related
premiums to result in recognition of profits over the periods for which the benefits are provided using the net level premium
method.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses include provisions for future policy benefits under
life and certain accident and health insurance contracts and provisions for reported claims, estimates for claims incurred but not
reported and loss adjustment expenses. Benefit payments in excess of policy account balances are expensed.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries reinsure certain risks above certain retention levels with
other insurance enterprises. These reinsurance agreements do not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their legal
obligations to the policyholder. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for benefits and losses are included in Other Receivables.

Gains related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the life of the underlying reinsured
policies. Losses related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are recognized immediately. Any gain or loss associated with
reinsurance agreements for which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries have been legally relieved of their obligations to the
policyholder is recognized in the period of relief.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is maintained for the portion of deferred income tax assets that
the Company does not expect to recover. Increases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as
income tax expense. Decreases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as income tax benefit.
The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period in which
the change is enacted.
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The Company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken, or expected to be
taken, in an income tax return. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Except for rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws and a limited number of
grandfathered standards, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is the sole source of authoritative GAAP
literature recognized by the FASB and applicable to the Company. The Company did not adopt any new accounting standards in
2011.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

FASB issues Accounting Standards Updates (“ASUs”) to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There were twelve ASUs
issued in 2011 that amend the original text of ASC. Except for ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements and ASU 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment, described below, none of the
ASUs issued in 2011 are expected to have an impact on the Company. ASU 2010-26, Accounting for Costs Associated with
Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts, which was issued in 2010 and also described below, is expected to have an impact
on the Company.

In October 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-26, Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance
Contracts. The standard is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011, with earlier
adoption permitted. The provisions of the new standard can be applied either prospectively or retrospectively. The standard
amends ASC Topic 944, Financial Services—Insurance, and modifies the definition of the types of costs incurred by insurance
entities that can be capitalized in the acquisition of new and renewal contracts. The Company intends to adopt the standard on
January 1, 2012 and apply its provisions retrospectively. The Company anticipates that the adoption of the standard will reduce
consolidated shareholders’ equity by $100.4 million on January 1, 2012. The retrospective application of the standard will
decrease reported net income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 by $9.3 million, $6.8 million and $5.7
million, respectively.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Requirements. The standard is effective for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after December 15, 2011. The new
standard amends the existing fair value definition and enhances disclosure requirements. Other than the enhanced disclosure
requirements, the Company does not anticipate that the adoption of the new standard will have a material impact on the
Company.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment. The standard is effective for the first
interim or annual period beginning on or after December 15, 2011 with early adoption permitted. The standard amends ASC
Topic 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other, and gives companies the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Except for the
requirement to perform the qualitative assessment, the Company does not anticipate that the adoption of the new standard will
have a material impact on the Company.

NOTE 3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company accounts for Kemper’s subsidiary, Fireside Bank, and the Company’s former Unitrin Business Insurance
operations as discontinued operations. Fireside Bank, which began to exit the automobile finance business in 2009, was
reported as a continuing operation in the 2010 and 2009 Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly, results of Fireside
Bank and the related disclosures for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 have been reclassified to conform to the
current presentation in these consolidated financial statements.
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Summary financial information included in Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009 is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2011 2010 2009

Interest, Loan Fees and Earned DISCOUNLS .........covivieviiiiieerieciee et evese s eeeeeveeenes $ 318 $ 976 $ 1750
Other Automobile Finance REVENUES ...........ccecveuieiierirreiciieceseee et 14 1.4 35
Gain on Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables........cccoovvevrceievieierireencccierennen 4.5 — —
Total Automobile FInance REVENUES.......cccovvvereiiiieereeesesr ettt e 37.7 99.0 178.5
Net InVEStMENt INCOMIE .....eecviiiieiiiiriiieecrierr e cctes et eae et e s saessseseessaereassesrsaseesansasenns 0.5 1.9 2.8
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENLS .........coceeverierieriereeiicierceeceeeeae et 0.4 — —
Total Revenues Included in Discontinued Operations...........coueeeevirrecrecenrcveereeeeeereereennnnes $ 386 $§ 1009 § 1813

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes:

Fireside Bank:
ReSULLS OF OPEIALIONS ..o.eiveievireirietriiie ettt ere st s et ebe e s e b s eseseesesnes $ 187 $§ 246 $§ 16
Gain on Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables.......c.ococvvvveeveveeeeeeeeeeeaaas 4.5 —_ —

Unitrin Business Insurance:

Change in Estimate of Retained Liabilities Arising from Discontinued Operations..... 3.7 1.2 4.0
Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes........cccoveeveveeeerievenreecireereneene. 19.5 25.8 5.6
INCOME TaAX EXPENSE ..cuoviireriiiiiiniieieieeieieesteettet et sesste s e esseesaasseeasesseesseessenbensesnsenseensessenns 6.7) (10.3) (8.4
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations............coc.veeereeuererieernreeersneeeseseereenesenenenas $ 128 § 155 § (2.8)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations Per Unrestricted Share:
BSIC ..ttt ettt ettt et s s st a et e reseners $ 021 § 025 $ (0.05)
DHIIEEA ..ottt ettt ettt a e aean e $ 021 $§ 025 § (0.05)

During the first four months of 2011, all of the Certificates of Deposits that were outstanding at December 31, 2010 either
matured or were redeemed by Fireside Bank in advance of their respective maturity dates. On October 20, 2011, Fireside Bank
requested that the FDIC terminate Fireside Bank’s FDIC insurance, which request was granted on December 8, 2011, effective
March 31, 2012.

Other Receivables at December 31, 2010 included automobile loan receivables, net of allowance for loan losses, with a carrying
value of $337.6 million and an estimated fair value of $340.0 million. During the third quarter of 2011, Fireside Bank sold its
active portfolio of automobile loan receivables with a carrying value of $214.2 million, net of Reserve for Loan Losses of $22.9
million, at a gain of $4.5 million before tax. Fireside Bank retained its portfolio of loans that had been previously charged off.
Such portfolio is not carried on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. Accordingly, no automobile loans receivables were
carried on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet following the sale of the active loan portfolio.

Following approval from its regulators, Fireside Bank distributed $250.0 million of its capital to its parent company, Fireside
Securities, in October 2011. Fireside Securities, then in turn, distributed the same amount to its parent company, Kemper
Corporation. Fireside Bank had total capital of $16.1 million at December 31, 2011.

In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to the date of the sale. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves reported
in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include $125.6 million and $155.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, for the retained liabilities. In accordance with GAAP, changes in the Company’s estimate of such retained
liabilities after the sale are reported as a separate component of the results of discontinued operations.
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The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2011 were:

Gross Unrealized

Amortized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.......coccoeeeeenenes, $ 4394 $ 523 % — $ 4917
States and Political SUbAIVISIONS ..........ccoovevviviereceeeienie e 1,705.0 148.4 0.8) 1,852.6
Corporate Securities:

Bonds and NOES .....oveviveerireeenriiseiiesenereeetiseseise s b s are st seene s sens 2,040.1 311.6 94) 23423

Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ......ceoreveoiiieiiiiei e 76.7 5.1 0.1 81.7

Mortgage and Asset-backed..........cccooviiviiiiiniec e 4.9 1.0 0.8) 51
Investments in Fixed Maturities.........ooovovvviieieeeeiiee e sees e eeve e $42661 $ 5184 $ (11.1) $4,773.4

Included in the fair value of Mortgage and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2011 are $2.9 million of collateralized
debt obligations, $1.7 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities, $0.4 million of other asset-backed
securities and $0.1 million of commercial mortgage-backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2010 were:

Gross Unrealized

Amortized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.........cc.cooovenene.n, $ 5086 $§ 284 $ (0.1) $ 5369
States and Political SubdiviSIONS .......c..cooeviieeiiiieiiiieeee et 1,760.0 53.5 20.7)  1,792.8
Corporate Securities:

Bonds and NOES .......ccoeviririiie e et ranse s 1,880.3 178.8 (10.1)  2,049.0

Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ........ccceivveeiiiiieiieeieesieete e 83.4 4.9 — 88.3

Mortgage and Asset-backed...........ccoovviiiiiiiieiiiee e 8.5 1.1 (1.3) 8.3
Investments in FIXed Maturities.........ccovvvveveieeeiinesirecreeeeeeieeseesreseessesese e $42408 $ 2667 $ (32.2) $44753

Included in the fair value of Mortgage and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2010 are $5.0 million of collateralized
debt obligations, $1.9 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities, $1.2 million of other asset-backed
securities and $0.2 million of commercial mortgage-backed securities.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2011 by contractual maturity
were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

DUE 1N OMNE Y AT OF LE8S...teeuitriiieiiieieeitecie et et ettt et e et e seeeaiaeeesbe e sr e s ta e saesssesatneseessseanbaasssesssannseeansesnsaesseenbeesntsansenn $ 907
DDUE AFLEr ONE YEAT 10 FIVE YEATS.........eeeeeeeeeeeeesesesssesseeeseeeeeeeseseeee 1o ee e eeeeseee s s eeseesseeess e s eeseseeeeseeesseeeeses e 502.6
Due after FIve YEars t0 TEIM YEATS......ccevcoriiveuiiieeieecirt et eties et oot aectetensesesseaeseesesaebesssessases e sesessesesteteseansesssesessasesnas 961.2
DUE AFEET TN YEAIS.....eveeeuireiieiriieisteteet et crestetesecaes et ese b st s etas e e e e et etseseteseseasesessebe st tessesesessesessesesseteseessesssnesasesasnasas 2,929.5
Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date.........cccoovveieeieirieeieiete et eee e er s evss e 289.4
Investments i FIXEd MATULITIES ........c.ovveeiiiieeieieceeere ettt st et e te ettt e s eeae et e ereest et s saeeesnesereesseessessssnsanseenesresss e $4,773.4

The expected maturities of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities may differ from the contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Investments in Asset-
backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date at December 31, 2011 consisted of securities issued by the Government
National Mortgage Association with a fair value of $255.8 million, securities issued by the Federal National Mortgage
Association with a fair value of $27.7 million, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with a fair
value of $0.8 million and securities of other issuers with a fair value of $5.1 million.

There were no unsettled purchases of Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2011 or December 31, 2010.
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Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2011
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real EState.........cccoviveeeiiveiverecricnrinreeeecceeseeereeneans $ 944 § 1.0 $ @7 $ 86.7
Other INAUSLIIES .....veevieeeierieeeceieetee et eae et sse s s e e esesaennensesens 18.0 2.6 (.1) 20.5
Common Stocks:
MANUTACTUTINEZ .....ecveeeierireierteeeereeeeteestestaessessessaesessestaesesssensesssennsnsssssaesrenns 64.6 18.9 0.1) 834
Other TNAUSITIES ......eveeeeeeeiereerieiereetestere e e reeass e ssasnssesresmeaseessesensessenns 41.4 7.4 (1.8) 47.0
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded FUnds...........ooooccceimmiiienniiinecnincccincnecscsne e 66.0 0.6 — 66.6
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships ..........c.ccceveneeence. 82.9 11.7 (1.5) 93.1
Investments in EQUItY SECUIIIES. ......ccceeeeeirrrereerirreireerere e ereeeceneevannas $ 3673 $ 422 §$§ (12.2) $ 3973

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2010
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate..........c.ccccevvieceienennnrcenenniiecneeennnn, $ 944 § 35§ (02 $ 977
Other INAUSLIIES ......eveveieeeeriieietcieie et eries et stees et see e sbarnse e e sarens 20.0 7.6 (0.2) 27.4
Common Stocks:
TOEETINIEC . .eeeveeiieeieet ettt ettt e e e e b e aa e e e s bb e ersaeentasbntassnaesraassteenns 86.9 50.6 — 137.5
MANUTACEUTING ....vovveveeeeeteecee et cte et sresee s e sesvasseseessevseraessesesaennessennns 75.3 14.6 0.3) 89.6
Other INAUSLIIES ......coveurreeieereie ettt s et sae e e aens 37.3 6.6 0.1 43.8
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded FUnds......c.ococveeeniririceneiinencceenieeeeet et 76.5 2.7 — 79.2
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships.........ccccccceeeeernnnnne. 58.8 17.6 (1.2) 75.2
Investments in EQUILY SECUTIHES. ......cceeeeveiriveeeeetirireere et sreeeeneeesesrrnaesseeannas $ 4492 § 1032 $ (2.0) $ 5504

77



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2011 is
presented below:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULhOTILIES ......cvvvveeverireeeeeee et $ 13 8§ — $ — 8 — 3 13 § —
States and Political Subdivisions.............cceveunanen. 2.0 — 12.0 0.8) 14.0 (0.8)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOes .......ccovecvevvivvicieceeiecreriennrenas 169.6 5.1) 74.7 4.3) 244.3 9.4)
Redeemable Preferred Stocks ......ccvveeeevveevinnens 0.6 (0.1) 0.1 — 0.7 (0.1)
Mortgage and Asset-backed..........cooevevernnnnnnns — — 2.7 (0.8) 2.7 (0.8)
Total Fixed Maturities........cccvvvereeeresrrveeesenesresnenens 173.5 (5.2) 89.5 (5.9) 263.0 (11.1)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 54.9 8.1) 2.2 (0.6) 57.1 8.7
Other Industries.......ocvovevveeerierenrieeieieeserenns 1.8 — 2.8 ©.1) 4.6 0.1)
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing.........ccocvvverveveirrrcsreseeieesreenenns 1.5 0.1 0.1 — 1.6 .1
Other Industries........cc.cocevrvenninencnnnceeeenn, 10.7 (1.8) — — 10.7 (1.8)
Other Equity Interests:
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......ccoceecvecriieeveneninrieeseennnn 171 (1.5) — — 17.1 (1.5)
Total Equity Securities..........ccocevvverrerreeeecerienenrenienene 86.0 (11.5) 5.1 0.7 91.1 (12.2)
TOtAL..eieee et et et $ 2595 § (167) 3 946 $ (6.6) $ 3541 § (23.3)

e ——————— ——— Vet | ————— ——————— e ——
e, T e s e =

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment
is other-than-temporary. The portions of the declines in the fair values of investments that are determined to be other-than-temporary
are reported as losses in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the periods when such determinations are made.

Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company has determined to be temporary at December 31, 2011, were $11.1
million, of which $5.9 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
Unrealized losses at December 31, 2011 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in
the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months” were insignificant. There were no unrealized losses at
December 31, 2011 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in the preceding table
under the heading “12 Months or Longer.” Included in the preceding table under the heading “12 Months or Longer” are
unrealized losses of $0.2 million at December 31, 2011 related to securities for which the Company has previously recognized
foreign currency losses in earnings. Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $5.7 million and below-
investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $5.4 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed maturities
at December 31, 2011. Unrealized losses for below-investment-grade fixed maturities included unrealized losses totaling $0.2
million for one issuer that the Company previously recognized foreign currency impairment losses in earnings. For the other
remaining below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the unrealized loss amount, on
average, was less than 4% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2011, the Company did not have the
intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company would be required to sell these
investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the Company’s evaluation at
December 31, 2011 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of the issuers of the
investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would not be required
to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of
the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the evaluation date.
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For equity securities, the Company considers various factors when determining whether a decline in the fair value is other than
temporary, including, but not limited to:

« The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

* The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

» The volatility of the investment;

* Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

* Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

+  Market liquidity;

» Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

» The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

The vast majority of the Company’s preferred stocks in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2011 were perpetual
preferred stocks of financial institutions. The Company considers the debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks
along with issuer ratings when evaluating impairment. All such preferred stocks paid dividends at the stated dividend rate
during the twelve-month period preceding the evaluation date. The Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of
these perpetual preferred stocks were temporary in nature, largely driven by market conditions, and since the Company intends
to hold the securities until recovery, these investments were not considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2011. The Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in common stocks at December 31,
2011 were temporary based on the relative short length and magnitude of the losses and overall market volatility. The
Company’s investments in other equity interests include investments in limited liability partnerships that primarily invest in
distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments, the Company
believes that its investments in the limited liability partnerships also exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other
factors, the Company considers when evaluating these investments for impairment. Based on evaluations of the factors in the
preceding paragraph, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity
securities were temporary at December 31, 2011.
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An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2010 is
presented below:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government
Agencies and Authorities...................... $ 185 § 0.1 § 0.1 $ — 3 186 $ 0.1)
States and Political Subdivisions............... 455.6 (16.9) 16.5 (3.8) 472.1 (20.7)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and Notes ........cccocveveevieevecrennene. 123.0 3.7 87.8 (6.4) 210.8 (10.1)
Redeemable Preferred Stocks............... 0.7 — — — 0.7 —
Mortgage and Asset-backed.................. — — 4.6 (1.3) 4.6 (1.3)
Total Fixed Maturities........ccoooeverveveveveerennnene, 597.8 (20.7) 109.0 (11.5) 706.8 (32.2)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate....... 3.0 — 2.6 0.2) 5.6 0.2)
Other Industries........ccecoveerivveeneeireenenn, 0.7 (0.1) 2.8 0.1) 3.5 0.2)
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing.......c.ooceveveereieneniernenenne, 7.9 (0.3) 1.7 — 9.6 (0.3)
Other Industries.......c..ceeveeereeeeeerennnnan 6.3 0.1) — — 6.3 (0.1)
Other Equity Interests:
Limited Liability Companies and
Limited Partnerships...........ccc.o...... 22 0.3) 6.1 0.9) 8.3 (1.2)
Total Equity Securities.......cccoerrveivrerrererenenn. 20.1 (0.8) 13.2 (1.2) 333 (2.0)
Total .o § 6179 $ (21.5) $ 1222 $ (127) $ 7401 $ (34.2)

Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company determined to be temporary at December 31, 2010, were $32.2
million, of which $11.5 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
There were no unrealized losses at December 31, 2010 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses
in earnings in the preceding table under either the heading “Less Than 12 Months” or the heading “12 Months or Longer.”
Included in the preceding table under the heading “12 Months or Longer” are unrealized losses of $0.1 million at December 31,
2010 related to securities for which the Company has recognized foreign currency losses in earnings. Investment-grade fixed
maturity investments comprised $28.1 million and below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $4.1 million
of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed maturities at December 31, 2010. Unrealized losses for below-investment-grade
fixed maturities included unrealized losses totaling $0.1 million for one issuer that the Company recognized foreign currency
impairment losses in earnings for the year ended December 31, 2010. For the other remaining below-investment-grade fixed
maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the unrealized loss amount, on average, was less than 4% of the amortized
cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2010, the Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was
not more likely than not that the Company would be required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost
basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2010 of the prospects of the issuers,
including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s
intention to not sell and its determination that it would not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such
investments, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities
presented in the preceding table were temporary at the evaluation date.

The vast majority of the Company’s preferred stocks in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2010 are perpetual
preferred stocks of financial institutions and public utilities. The Company considers the debt-like characteristics of perpetual
preferred stocks along with issuer ratings when evaluating impairment. All such preferred stocks paid dividends at the stated

80



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

dividend rate during the twelve-month period preceding the evaluation date. The Company concluded that the declines in the
fair values of these perpetual preferred stocks were temporary in nature, largely driven by market conditions, and since the
Company intends to hold the securities until recovery, these investments were not considered to be other-than-temporarily
impaired at December 31, 2010. The Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in common stocks at
December 31, 2010 were temporary based on the relative short length and magnitude of the losses. The Company’s investments
in other equity interests include investments in limited liability partnerships that primarily invest in distressed debt, mezzanine
debt and secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments, the Company believes that its investments in the
limited liability partnerships also exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company considers when
evaluating these investments for impairment. Based on evaluations of the factors described above that the Company considers
when determining whether a decline in the fair value of an investment in equity securities is other than temporary, the Company
concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity securities were temporary at

December 31, 2010.

In the second quarter of 2009, the Company adopted a required change in accounting which impacts the determination of the
amount of OTTI losses on Investments in Fixed Maturities that are recognized in earnings on and subsequent to April 1, 2009.

The following table sets forth the pre-tax amount of OTT1I credit losses, recognized in Retained Earnings for Investments in
Fixed Maturities held by the Company as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, for which a portion of the OTTI loss has been
recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, and the corresponding changes in such amounts.

Jan 1, 2011 to Jan 1, 2010 to April 1, 2009 to

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Dec 31, 2011 Dec 31, 2010 Dec 31, 2009
Balance at Beginning of Period ............ccooeeveoieieiecninieneeec e sesenes s $ 24 $ 37 $ 39.8
Additions for Previously Unrecognized OTTI Credit Losses.......ccccoeereevnnne 2.2 53 1.9
Increases to Previously Recognized OTTI Credit Losses......oceceevvvecrieianienee — 0.4 0.9
Reductions to Previously Recognized OTTI Credit Losses ...........coeveuenen. 0.7) 1.7 0.2)
Reductions due to Intent to Sell Investments..........ccccovveeevcinnirecnennrenne — 5.D (35.6)
Reductions for Investments Sold During Period ...........cceceeveviirirenicnrinnenenne. — 0.2) 3.DH
Balance at End of Period.......ccccoeoviiiiinincniiice e $ 39 $ 24 % 3.7

On June 10, 2010, Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, entered into a pre-arranged trading plan (the “Trading Plan”) with UBS
Financial Services Inc. (“UBS”) in accordance with SEC Rule 10b5-1 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, covering the sale over a period of one year of up to 1.5 million shares of Intermec common stock that were owned
by Trinity. During the second quarter of 2010, Trinity sold 255,904 shares of Intermec common stock under the Trading Plan.
During the third quarter of 2010, Trinity sold an additional 1,244,096 shares of Intermec common stock, thereby completing the
Trading Plan. As a result of these sales, the Company’s approximate voting percentage in Intermec was reduced to 18% at
September 30, 2010. As a result of this change in ownership and other qualitative factors, the Company determined that its
investment in the common stock of Intermec no longer qualified for the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, beginning
with the Company’s September 30, 2010 interim consolidated financial statements, the Company’s investment in Intermec
common stock was included in Investments in Equity Securities and was reported at its fair value. Prior to discontinuing the use
of the equity method of accounting for Intermec, the Company used a reporting lag of three months to report its proportionate
share of Intermec’s results. Accordingly, Equity in Net Loss of Investee for the year ended December 31, 2010 relates to the
Company’s proportionate share of results that Intermec reported for the nine months ended June 30, 2010. During the fourth
quarter of 2010, Trinity sold an additional 293,760 shares of Intermec common stock. Net Realized Gains on Sales of
Investments includes gains of $5.4 million arising from the sales of Intermec common stock for the year ended December 31,
2010, of which $0.8 million has been reported as net realized gains on sales of investee and $4.6 million has been included in
net realized gains on sales of equity securities. In 2011, the Company disposed of its remaining holdings of Intermec common
stock. During the first nine months of 2011, the Company sold 3,554,240 shares of Intermec common stock in open market
transactions at a gain of $8.3 million. On September 14, 2011, the Company contributed its remaining holdings of 7,309,764
shares of Intermec common and cash to the Company’s pension plan. The Company recognized a realized loss of $7.0 million
on the contribution of Intermec common stock. See Note 14, “Income from Investments,” and Note 17, “Pension Benefits,” to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The carrying values of the Company’s Other [nvestments at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Loans to Policyholders at Unpaid Principal..........cccccvueveiiieiiieriiiiiierireece et $ 2539 § 2384
Real Estate at Depreciated COSt......ouomiiiirieiiieeriesiiteteseteeeeeesceessnesetese et se st e eneeeeeesseseseseseseesenssneeas 239.4 249.9
TTAQING SECULTHIES <.ttt ettt s st teae et et st eeeessmeneaseteeaseseesesseessseeasannes 4.4 5.1
OBRET ..ottt ettt e bttt ea e aen ettt s st ettt et et e s e e eeaenn 0.6 0.8
TOLAL ..ottt ettt s sr sttt e sttt n et ee et eeeeanaes et enesaeeenen $ 4983 $§ 4942
NOTE 5. GOODWILL

Goodwill balances by business segment at December 31, 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011

PIEEETIEA ...ttt ettt st s e et et b e st b et s eae e st et b e e e st e et et eaeseaseneeseeeaeaeaeneas $ 496
SPECIANLY ..ottt bbbttt ettt e as e ea sttt e st ra e s seeae e reeeraenns 42.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE. .........ccoiviviiiieeterieeteteee e ee ettt essotses et estaesseeeaesessesenessessesssssssassssssssasesessasaes 2194
TOLALL ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e et et ettt e ettt st et eaeteaeaetetet e et eeas s e s s easereraneeseeeraraes $ 3118

The Company tests goodwill for recoverability on an annual basis at the beginning of the first quarter and, if circumstances or
events indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit may have declined below its carrying value, such tests are performed at
intervening interim periods. Accordingly, the Company tested goodwill associated with each of its reporting units for
recoverability on January 1, 2011. However, no goodwill was associated with, and, accordingly, no testing was required for the
Direct segment. The Company principally used projections of discounted future cash flows to estimate the fair values of the
reporting units tested. For each reporting unit tested, the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the reporting unit,
and the Company concluded that the associated goodwill was recoverable at the aforementioned date tested.

Goodwill activity by business segment for the year ended December 31, 2010 is presented below.

Balance at Write-off Balance at

Beginning of End of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS of Year Goodwill Other Year
PIEfEITed ...ttt aeen $ 496 § — 3 — $ 496
SPECIALLY ...ttt ettt s e are s e e et en e e e e e snen 42.8 — — 42.8
Life and Health INSUFANCE ........c.cvvieviiieiiiieeeeteseereieeee et eeee st se e eeseeeseeesenesene 2394 (14.8) 5.2) 219.4
TOMAL...coeeee ettt ettt ettt et ettt e et ettt e e eeeaene $ 3318 $§ (148) $ (52) $ 311.8

The Company tested goodwill associated with each of its reporting units for recoverability on January 1, 2010. The quoted
value of Kemper’s common stock was significantly below the book value per share of the Company at September 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2010. Accordingly, the Company also tested goodwill associated with each of its reporting units for
recoverability at these intervening interim dates. However, no goodwill was associated with, and, accordingly, no testing was
required for the Direct segment at any of the aforementioned dates in 2010. The Company principally used projections of
discounted future cash flows to estimate the fair values of the reporting units tested. Except for the Company’s Reserve
National reporting unit, for each reporting unit tested, the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the reporting unit,
and the Company concluded that the associated goodwill was recoverable at each aforementioned date tested.

With respect to the Company’s Reserve National reporting unit, included in the Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment,
the estimated fair value, based on a projection of discounted future cash flows, exceeded the carrying value of the reporting unit
at January 1, 2010. Accordingly, the Company concluded that the goodwill associated with its Reserve National reporting unit
was recoverable at January 1, 2010. Reserve National focuses on providing non-comprehensive health insurance coverages.
During the first quarter of 2010, the Health Care Acts were signed into law. The Company determined that the Health Care Acts
could have an adverse impact on Reserve National’s prospects. Accordingly, the Company tested goodwill associated with
Reserve National for recoverability at March 31, 2010. During the first quarter of 2010, the Company also began a process to
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sell Reserve National. Based on a projection of discounted future cash flows, updated to take into consideration the impact of
the Health Care Acts, discussions with a potential buyer for Reserve National during the first quarter of 2010 and preliminary
discussions with an adviser retained in April 2010, the Company concluded that the estimated fair value of Reserve National
exceeded its carrying value at March 31, 2010, and the Company concluded that such goodwill was recoverable. In the second
quarter of 2010, based on the Company’s analysis at March 31, 2010 and preliminary, non-binding price indications from
potential buyers for Reserve National, the Company concluded that the goodwill associated with Reserve National was also
recoverable at June 30, 2010.

During the third quarter of 2010, the sales process continued with several potential buyers conducting on-site due diligence
reviews. On September 23, 2010, the NAIC published for comment a model regulation containing the definitions and
methodologies for calculating the medical loss ratios under the Health Care Acts. On October 21, 2010, the NAIC voted to
adopt a model regulation containing such definitions and methodologies and authorized the delivery of such model regulation to
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) for certification. Based on these proposed regulations, the
Company concluded that it was more likely than previously believed that the minimum loss ratio provisions under the Health
Care Acts would apply to Reserve National’s non-comprehensive health insurance coverages. Accordingly, based on the status
of the sales process to date, the continuing uncertainty about the impact of the Health Care Acts on Reserve National’s
operations and the increased likelihood that the minimum loss ratio provisions of the Health Care Acts would apply to Reserve
National’s non-comprehensive health insurance coverages, the Company concluded that the sales process was unlikely to result
in a sales price that would exceed the carrying value of Reserve National, which included the associated goodwill, at
September 30, 2010. Accordingly, an additional evaluation was necessary to determine the amount of implied goodwill that
would result from a pro forma allocation of the estimated fair value of Reserve National to the fair value of the assets and
liabilities of Reserve National as if it had been acquired in a business combination on the evaluation date. The Company
assumed that no value would be assigned to goodwill in a pro forma allocation. Thus, the Company determined that all of the
goodwill associated with Reserve National was impaired and not recoverable at September 30, 2010 and wrote off $14.8
million of goodwill in the third quarter of 2010.
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Property and Casualty Insurance Reserve activity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Beginning Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves:

Gross of Reinsurance at Beginning of Year..........ccveveuieveeecvereeceerieeeece e $1,118.7 $1,211.3 $ 1,268.7

Less Reinsurance Recoverables and Indemnification at Beginning of Year................... 78.1 774 84.6
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at

BegINNINg Of YEAI ... ccctirieeriireeriiteeeiieestsieisree st ss st s s stessbsbes s sassssassssts s sasssssessasass 1,040.6 1,133.9 1,184.1
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves Acquired, Net of Reinsurance............cccucu......... — — 94.7

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

ContiNUING OPETALIONS .....cvveviveineenrierireerieeeteeeeeeseeseereeteetestosessoseessssestessesesenseseseesneas 1,338.5 1,310.5 1,447.3
Prior Years:
ContinuUING OPETAtIONS .......couvveerrirrerriitririerieiestiseeessesnessesseeresressessessersersesessessessensens 35.0) (22.0) (77.9)
Discontinued Operations............curieveririeiiiesiieeieneeientcresrieerieeresesesseseeseressssenseseseennns 1.9 2.9) (3.0)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE related to Prior Years.......coveveevveeveeeevievereeeeeseeensnennn, 33.1) (24.9) (80.9)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE..........c.occooiviiviiiiiieiierivtetees e eeeesree et esseeeeeeesseesesseeseeseens 1,305.4 1,285.6 1,366.4

Paid Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

ContinUING OPErAtiONS .....cceeuiuveieriireiriiiteeieeeeeeteeeesteeteeae s eseeasereenesbensersessersesssrerssnnens 887.7 825.7 970.3
Prior Years:
ContinUINg OPETALIONS ... .ccevvvivererierierereerieieteresesiseesssesesesesesssssesesssessesssesssessssrsseseses 472.9 510.8 490.9
Discontinued OPETatIONS...........coviueeirieierreieerieeieieressseseesesresssrsesssanssassessssssssesesesssnes 30.8 42.4 50.1
Total Paid Losses and LAE related to Prior YearS.......ccocccevivvevivvermiirioceceeeeeeeeee e 503.7 553.2 541.0
Total Paid LosSes and LAE ........coouooiiieeieecieteei ettt eeeeeeeeeteeeseese e e ese st eees s eesnenannn 1,391.4 1,378.9 1,511.3
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at
ENd OF YA ..ottt bt e 954.6 1,040.6 1,133.9
Plus Reinsurance and Indemnification Recoverables at End of Year..........ccocoveeviievenenennnn. 74.5 78.1 77.4
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Gross of Reinsurance at End of Year............... $1,029.1 $1,1187 §$1,211.3

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are estimated based on historical experience patterns and current economic trends.
Actual loss experience and loss trends are likely to differ from these historical experience patterns and economic conditions.
Loss experience and loss trends emerge over several years from the dates of loss inception. The Company monitors such
emerging loss trends on a quarterly basis. Changes in such estimates are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income in
the period of change.

In 2011, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $33.1 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed
favorably by $29.3 million and commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.8 million. The
personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss
trends than expected for the 2010, 2009 and 2008 accident years and favorable development on certain catastrophes.

In 2010, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $24.9 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed
favorably by $21.6 million and commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.3 million. The
personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss
trends than expected for the 2009, 2007 and 2006 accident years, partially offset by adverse development on certain hurricanes.

84



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES (Continued)

In 2009, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $80.9 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed
favorably by $72.3 million and commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably by $8.6 million. The
personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss
trends than expected for the 2007, 2006 and 2005 accident years due to the improvements in the Company’s claims handling
procedures and due to favorable development on catastrophes.

The Company cannot predict whether loss and LAE will develop favorably or unfavorably from the amounts reported in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company believes that any such development will not have a material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial position, but could have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
results for a given period.

Reinsurance and indemnification recoverables on property and casualty insurance reserves were $74.5 million and $78.1
million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. These reinsurance recoverables are concentrated with several reinsurers,
the vast majority of which are highly rated by one or more of the principal investor and/or insurance company rating agencies.
While most of the reinsurance recoverables were unsecured at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the agreements with the reinsurers
generally provide for some form of collateralization upon the occurrence of certain events. The largest reinsurance recoverable
on property and casualty insurance is from General Security National Insurance Company (“GSNIC”), a subsidiary of SCOR
and is unsecured. In 2002, the Company acquired two insurance companies from SCOR. Under the agreement governing the
acquisition of these insurance companies, SCOR and/or GSNIC are responsible for all liabilities of these insurance companies
incurred prior to the acquisition. Reinsurance recoverables at December 31, 2011 and 2010 included $21.8 million and $27.1
million, respectively, from GSNIC.

NOTE 7. NOTES PAYABLE

Total debt outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Senior Notes at Amortized Cost:
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ..ottt ae sttt b s e saee e $ 3568 $ 3563
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .. ...oooiiiiiiieiie et eesieeesvereseaeesonsesseeeeeeeaeeres 248.2 247.8
Mortgage Note Payable at AMOITIZEA COSL......icuruirirreririecriirciniee sttt etebeee e ae e sesesens 5.6 5.7
Notes Payable at AMOTTIZEA COSE.....c.eeieuiriririiiriiieerirteetetetnte e s et etesesteeassasassesaresse e esesesaessesesssesen $ 6106 $ 6098

Interest Expense on Notes Payable, including facility fees and accretion of discount, for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement..........cocueeeverrreeereseneeensesenneaensesnesnsnes $ 20 S 20 § 1.1
Senior Notes Payable:

6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ...cocoovvoiirrreiiiceincrnirrreseceteeevesesessesaesneneenens 22.0 22.0 22.0

6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 ...ccviivvviivreeiriineresnresieeseesreessseessessrsennes 15.4 1.6 —

4.875% Senior Notes due November 1, 2010 .....c.ooovvvevioveiiieeiieeeeeieeeseee e eeeee s — 8.4 10.1
Mortgage NOte PayabIe.........cccoviiviiveriirceirteiiiirseenese e siteie e et esreeseeseesinsssassassseseeas 0.4 0.4 0.4
Interest Expense before Capitalization of INterest ...........cccevvrverecieeeicienenenereneenereceereeenes 39.8 344 33.6
Capitalization Of INEIESt.......cceuiiiieriirecieree ittt se e e sae s e s ae b assenes 2.5) (1.8) (0.7)
Total INterest EXPENSE.........ccvveuerimnreirenrieesiniiscsenscisesessessistseses e nsessasssscsstsenesesesscssescnns $ 373 § 326 $ 329
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Interest Paid on Notes Payable, including facility fees, for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit Agreement.............c.ecvevueeverieeerievesrnerensereessresseeenes $ 1.2 $ 12 $ 32
Senior Notes Payable:
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ....c.oovveiiinriiveiiereiesresreeeeeeeeessesseseeeesassessessennas 21.6 21.6 21.6
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 ....ovvviieiiieieeeiie e eerreeeereeereeeesraeessnens 15.2 e e
4.875% Senior Notes due November 1, 2010 .....oovveeviviviiiireinireeesireeirreeseveessvesssnneees — 9.8 9.8
Mortgage NOtE Payable.........ccovviiiiiieeiricieeicie ettt ees e be e e erresssrnessesaaessaesnenes 0.4 0.4 0.4
Total INETeSt PAid.....c.cvcvevivieieeeiiietitieitetet ettt ettt be s bbb st e e sesesessanres $ 384 § 330 $ 350

On October 30, 2009, Kemper entered into the 2012 Credit Agreement, a three-year, $245 million, unsecured, revolving credit
agreement, expiring October 30, 2012, with a group of financial institutions. The 2012 Credit Agreement replaced the 2010
Credit Agreement, which was a $325 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement scheduled to expire on June 30, 2010 and
was terminated on October 30, 2009. There were no borrowings under the 2010 Credit Agreement at its termination. The 2012
Credit Agreement provides for fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to six months at various interest rates. The 2012
Credit Agreement contains various financial covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net
worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity.
Proceeds from advances under the 2012 Credit Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of
existing indebtedness.

During the third quarter of 2011, Kemper borrowed $95.0 million under the 2012 Credit Agreement. The proceeds from the
borrowing were used, in part, to make a voluntary contribution of $83.7 million to fully fund the Company’s defined benefit
pension plan under the funding requirements of ERISA. The contribution consisted of cash of $32.2 million and 7,309,764
shares of Intermec common stock purchased from Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, with some of the proceeds (see Note 17,
“Pension Benefits,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Kemper repaid $30.0 million and $65.0 million of the borrowing
in September and October of 2011, respectively.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, Kemper borrowed $140 million under the 2012 Credit Agreement. As discussed below, Kemper
used a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of its 2015 Senior Notes to repay in full the borrowings under the 2012 Credit
Agreement.

Kemper had no outstanding advances under the 2012 Credit Agreement at either December 31, 2011 or 2010. The amount
available for borrowing under the 2012 Credit Agreement was $245 million at both December 31, 2011 and 2010.

On November 24, 2010, Kemper issued $250 million of its 6.00% senior notes due November 30, 2015. The 2015 Senior Notes
are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified
redemption prices. Kemper issued the 2015 Senior Notes for proceeds of $247.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an
effective yield of 6.21%. Kemper used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the 2015 Senior Notes to repay borrowings of
$140 million under the 2012 Credit Agreement and to make a capital contribution of $60 million to its subsidiary, United
Insurance.

In 2007, Kemper issued $360 million of its 6.00% senior notes due May 15, 2017. The 2017 Senior Notes are unsecured and
may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper
issued the 2017 Senior Notes for proceeds of $354.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of 6.19%. Kemper
used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the 2017 Senior Notes to repay the $300 million aggregate principal amount of
its 5.75% Senior Notes which matured on July 1, 2007.

In 2003, Kemper issued $200 million of its 4.875% senior notes due November 1, 2010 for an effective yield of 5.04%. The
2010 Senior Notes were repaid and retired on November 1, 2010.
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NOTE 8. LEASES

The Company leases certain office space under non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to
ten years, along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. The Company also leases certain equipment under
non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to five years. Minimum rent is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Net rental expense for operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS ’ 2011 2010 2009
Minimum Rental EXPENSE .....c.cvueurriiriririreeeiiieieiiieiesessisasseenescsesssasasessseencscacsescssaenssssesesessses $ 315 § 356 $§ 320
Less Sublease Rental INCOME ........ccoieevivieiiiiiiiiiniciiicenicieteie e 2.1) 2.4) 1.7)
Net RENLAL EXPEINSE ...v.evevvevererieriiieseteseesesieseseteseanasssesesesesassstetesesessesessssssesssesansassesessssssssses $§ 294 § 332 $§ 303

Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases at December 31, 2011 were:

Capital Operating

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Leases Leases
2002 ettt te b bttt ettt st ettt ettt ekttt e e ke st b es s b ket e e b e R aes sk es st e s etk e e et seaeben st aseesesaberaenessesenens $ 22 $ 268
2013ttt ettt ettt ets et b et e beete b b e er ek e e R e s et eaae b b et e aReRt e e et eR e eaeate b et et enbentesaereeretensareas 1.0 24.6
2014 ettt ettt h ek s £ e e Rt e bt ekt R e R e e s e aseebe b et en e et e aa s s et e s e et ente st ebeesaebantebentens 0.3 20.1
2005ttt ettt e b e e st et a e ekt e te b A b e R e e st ek e b et e R s e eR e e s et et e st et eresaab e s et e s en e e st e st ereatenbeneens — 13.0
2016, .uitieeeeeeteet e ettt ettt et e e r s e et e ke aa bt s e s b e R e e Rkt et st a b e es e e R e R et et e e rsesaseesa st esbenteRaereereebesaensans — 10.5
2007 AN TRETEATIET .....evveerisieeniiiererrec e eet e s ee st et sb e s s e b e st e sae e st s saasssesaasrasnsesseentansanssasneses — 15.5
TOtal FULUIE PAYIMEIES. . c.vecveeveeetiereitestesteeeseseteaesaesessasseseessenseresssssasessasssssessesassesasssssessessessessessessesesrens $ 35 $ 1105
Less TMPULEA INLETESE .....covermiieiiieiiriestereeeeet ettt et et e s sue e s sbe st e s sesaesseenensestasansnsnsssnas 0.3)

Present Value of Minimum Capital 1.ease Payments..........ccccecrverrrrrurrerrcereeeneninienseessessessesssassnesesessens $ 3.2

The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancelable subleases was $10.5 million at December 31,
2011.

NOTE 9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Kemper is authorized to issue 20 million shares of $0.10 par value preferred stock and 100 million shares of $0.10 par value
common stock. No preferred shares were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010. There were 60,248,582 shares
and 61,066,587 shares of common stock outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Common stock outstanding
included 289,659 shares and 218,156 shares at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, that have been issued, subject to
certain vesting and other requirements, in connection with the Company’s long-term equity compensation plans. See Note 10,
“Long-Term Equity-based Compensation,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for an additional discussion of the
restrictions and vesting provisions.

On August 4, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase right for each
outstanding share of common stock of Kemper, pursuant to a shareholder rights plan. The rights have a term of 10 years. The
description and terms of the rights are set forth in a rights agreement between Kemper and Computershare Trust Company,
N.A., as rights agent.

Kemper repurchased and retired 0.9 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of
$27.4 million in 2011. Kemper repurchased and retired 1.4 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an
aggregate cost of $34.4 million in 2010. Kemper did not repurchase any of its common stock in open market transactions in
2009. Common Stock, Paid-in Capital and Retained Earnings were reduced on a pro rata basis for the cost of the repurchased
shares.

Various state insurance laws restrict the amount that an insurance subsidiary may pay in the form of dividends, loans or
advances without the prior approval of regulatory authorities. Also, that portion of an insurance subsidiary’s net equity which
results from differences between statutory insurance accounting practices and GAAP would not be available for cash dividends,
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NOTE 9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Continued)

loans or advances. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $70.5 million in cash to Kemper in 2011. In 2012,
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay approximately $175 million in dividends to Kemper without prior
regulatory approval. Fireside Bank previously agreed not to pay dividends without the prior approval of its regulators, the FDIC
and CDFI. Following approval from its regulators, Fireside Bank distributed $250 million of its capital to its parent company,
Fireside Securities, in October 2011. Fireside Securities, then in turn, distributed the same amount to its parent company,
Kemper. Fireside Bank had capital of $16.1 million at December 31, 2011. Fireside Bank will be able to distribute its capital
without regulatory approval on April 1, 2012.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to file financial statements prepared on the basis of statutory insurance accounting
practices which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s life
and health insurance subsidiaries was approximately $475 million and was $400.1 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Statutory net income for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries was income of approximately $115
million, was income of $80.4 million and was income of $79.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was approximately
$815 million and was $905.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Statutory net income for the Company’s
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was income of approximately $33 million, was income of $117.3 million and was
income of $75.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus and
statutory net income exclude Fireside Bank and parent company operations.

NOTE 10. LONG-TERM EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 4, 2011, Kemper’s shareholders approved the 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”). The Omnibus Plan is
a long-term equity-based compensation plan designed to attract, motivate and retain key employees and/or directors of the
Company. The Omnibus Plan replaced the Company’s previous employee stock option plans, director stock option plan and
restricted stock plan (collectively, the “Prior Plans”). Awards previously granted under the Prior Plans remain outstanding in
accordance with their original terms. Beginning May 4, 2011, equity-based compensation awards may only be granted under
the Omnibus Plan. A maximum number of 10,000,000 shares of Kemper common stock may be issued under the Omnibus Plan
(the “Share Authorization). As of December 31, 2011, there were 9,900,450 common shares available for future grants under
the Omnibus Plan, of which 518,625 shares related to performance-based restricted stock awards outstanding under the Prior
Plans were reserved for future grants.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards™ will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards” are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance shares, performance units, if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.

For equity-based compensation awards with a graded vesting schedule, the Company recognizes compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the awards as if each award were, in
substance, multiple awards. Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures
estimated at the date of grant based on the Company’s historical experience and future expectations. Equity-based
compensation expense for all of the Company’s long-term equity-based compensation plans was $5.3 million, $4.2 million and
$3.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Total unamortized compensation expense
related to nonvested awards of such plans at December 31, 2011 was $5.2 million, which is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.5 years.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, or the Board’s authorized designee, has sole discretion to determine
the persons to whom awards under the Omnibus Plan are granted, and the material terms of the awards. For stock options,
material terms include the number of shares covered by such options and the exercise price, vesting and expiration dates of such
options. Options are non-transferable and are exercisable in installments. Stock options to purchase Kemper’s common stock
are granted at prices equal to the fair value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of grant. Prior to 2003, only non-qualified
stock options had been granted. Beginning in 2003, options granted to employees were coupled with tandem stock appreciation
rights (“SARs”), settled in Kemper common stock. Employee options generally vest over a period of three and one-half years
and expire ten years from the date of grant. Each new member of the Board of Directors who is not employed by the Company
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(“Non-Employee Director”) receives an initial option to purchase 4,000 shares of Kemper common stock immediately upon
becoming a director. Thereafter, on the date of each of Kemper’s annual meetings of shareholders, eligible Non-Employee
Directors automatically receive annual grants of options to purchase 4,000 shares of common stock for so long as they remain
eligible directors. Such options granted to Non-Employee Directors are exercisable one year from the date of grant at an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of grant and expire 10 years from the date
of grant.

All of the Company’s prior stock option plans included provisions, subject to certain limitations, to automatically grant
restorative, or reload stock options (“Restorative Options™), to replace shares of previously owned Kemper common stock that
an exercising option holder surrenders, either actually or constructively, to satisfy the exercise price and/or tax withholding
obligations relating to the exercise. The restorative feature was eliminated prospectively for original option awards granted on
or after February 3, 2009. Restorative Options may still be granted, subject to certain limitations, in connection with the
exercise of original options granted before February 3, 2009. Restorative Options are subject to the same terms and conditions
as the original options, including the expiration date, except that the exercise price is equal to the fair value of Kemper common
stock on the date of grant of a Restorative Option and cannot be exercised until six months after the date of grant. The grant of a
Restorative Option does not result in an increase in the total number of shares and options held by an employee, but changes the
mix of the two.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of each option on the date of grant. The
expected terms of options are developed by considering the Company’s historical share option exercise experience,
demographic profiles, historical share retention practices of employees and assumptions about their propensity for early
exercise in the future. Further, the Company aggregates individual awards into relatively homogenous groups that exhibit
similar exercise behavior to obtain a more refined estimate of the expected term of options. Expected volatility is estimated
using weekly historical volatility. The Company believes that historical volatility is currently the best estimate of expected
volatility. For original option grants made in 2009, the dividend yield assumed was the average, annualized dividend yield
computed over the twenty consecutive quarters preceding the date of grant. Each quarterly dividend yield was calculated by
dividing the amount of declared dividend per share during each quarter by the closing price of Kemper common stock at the
end of such quarter. The quarterly yields were then annualized and averaged to arrive at the dividend yield assumed. In light of
the economic conditions at the beginning of 2009, the Company believed that basing dividend yield over a longer historical
period of time was likely to be more consistent with the actual yield during the expected life of the option rather than the then
current dividend yield. For original option grants made in 2010, the dividend yield assumed was the annualized continuous
dividend yield on Kemper common stock on the date of grant. The dividend yield in 2011 and 2010 was calculated by taking
the natural logarithm of the annualized yield divided by the Kemper common stock price on the date of grant. The Company
believes that basing the dividend yield on the current annualized yield is likely to be more consistent with the actual yield
during the expected life of the option. No Restorative Options were granted in 2011, 2010 or 2009. The risk free interest rate
was the yield on the grant date of U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with a maturity comparable to the expected term of the
option.

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes pricing model for options granted during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, were as follows:

2011 2010 2009
RANGE OF VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS
Expected Volatility.....c..cocevieeceninieicienieceiceieeene 41.26% - 55.16%  40.55% - 50.51%  33.08% - 40.30%
Risk Free Interest Rate .......cocevvvrvvevrireesiecenenieninninnns 1.30 - 2.87 1.70 - 3.20 1.63 - 3.10
Expected Dividend Yield..........cocooneveerecnninniencnnne. 3.15 - 338 325 - 3.58 4359 - 5.21
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXPECTED LIFE IN YEARS
Employee Grants........cocceceeeecinenieveenenrennencseesieneeneas 3.5 - 7.0 40 - 7.0 40 - 7.5
Director Grants...........cceeeveeveeeiverienneenieensreeseeennnnnnees 6.0 6.0 7.0
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Option and SAR activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 is presented below:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Shares Average Remaining Intrinsic
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Value

Options Per Share ($) Life (in Years) ($ In Millions)
Outstanding at Beginning of the Year..........cccocceeerineiccnnccnens 4,004,546 $ 42.34
GTANTEA. ..coviiretirere ettt sae et sr et s raebessae st sevasnassesnness 313,750 28.10
EXErcised....c.ooviioeiieeeiceceee et (30,206) 19.07
Forfeited or EXpired........cccoooeivirieiieereeece e (655,692) 45.69
Outstanding at December 31, 201 1.......cccoovvvvrreceninnrereeenninen 3,632,398 40.70 424 § 5.7
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 201 1.................. 3,604,694 $ 40.81 421 $ 5.6
Exercisable at December 31, 201 L.....coevvercieorieceniicierieniennnee. 3,145,959 '$ 43.15 357 § 3.6

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options granted during 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $9.11, $7.60 and $3.11,
respectively. Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $0.3 million and $0.3 million for the years ended

December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Cash received from option exercises was $0.2 million and $0.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Total tax benefits realized for tax deductions from option exercises were $0.1
million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. No options were exercised during
2009.

Information pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2011 is presented below:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- Average Weighted-
Shares Average Remaining Shares Average
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Subject to Exercise Price
Range of Exercise Prices Options Per Share ($) Life (in Years) Options Per Share ($)

$ 1000 - $ 15.00 209,000 $ 13.55 7.10 156,749 $ 13.55
15.01 - 20.00 8,000 16.48 7.35 8,000 16.48
20.01 - 25.00 313,750 23.74 8.27 118,875 23.63
25.01 - 30.00 386,199 27.66 8.08 146,886 26.83
30.01 - 35.00 2,163 31.34 1.10 2,163 31.34
35.01 - 40.00 343,077 37.25 5.99 343,077 37.28
40.01 - 45.00 502,863 43.32 2.18 502,863 43.32
45.01 - 50.00 1,374,021 48.68 3.10 1,374,021 48.68
50.01 - 55.00 493,325 51.12 1.50 493,325 51.12
10.00 - 55.00 3,632,398 40.70 4.24 3,145,959 43.15

Recipients of restricted stock are entitled to full dividend and voting rights on the same basis as all other outstanding shares of
Kemper common stock and all awards are subject to forfeiture until certain restrictions have lapsed. Prior to February 3, 2009,
only awards of time-vested restricted stock had been granted under the restricted stock plan. Beginning on February 3, 2009, in
addition to time-vested restricted stock granted to certain employees and officers, the Company began awarding performance-
based restricted stock to certain officers and employees under the restricted stock plan. The initial number of shares awarded to
each participant represents the shares that would vest if the performance goals were achieved at the “target” performance level.
The final payout of these awards will be determined based on Kemper’s total shareholder return over a three-year performance
period relative to a peer group comprised of all the companies in the S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index (“Peer Group”).
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Performance-based restricted stock awards are earned over a three-year performance period. If, at the end of the performance
period, the Company’s relative performance:

» exceeds the “target” performance level, additional shares of stock will be issued to the award recipient;

» is below the “target” performance level, only a portion of the shares of performance-based restricted stock originally
issued to the award recipient will vest; or

» s below a “minimum” performance level, none of the shares of performance-based restricted stock originally issued to
the award recipient will vest.

The number of additional shares that would be granted if the Company were to meet or exceed the maximum performance
levels related to the outstanding performance-based shares for the 2011 and 2010 three-year performance periods was 63,950
common shares and 56,900 common shares, respectively, at December 31, 2011. For the 2009 three-year performance period,
the Company exceeded target performance levels with a payout percentage of 183%. Accordingly, an additional 39,748 shares
of stock were issued to award recipients on January 31, 2012.

The grant-date fair values of time-based restricted stock awards are determined using the closing price of Kemper common
stock on the date of grant. The grant date fair values of the performance-based restricted stock awards are determined using the
Monte Carlo simulation method.

The Monte Carlo simulation model produces a risk-neutral simulation of the daily returns on the common stock of Kemper and
each of the other companies included in the Peer Group. Returns generated by the simulation depend on the risk-free interest
rate used and the volatilities of, and the correlation between, these stocks. The model simulates stock prices and dividend
payouts to the end of the three-year performance period. Total shareholder returns are generated for each of these stocks based
on the simulated prices and dividend payouts. The total shareholder returns are then ranked, and Kemper’s simulated ranking is
converted to a payout percentage based on the terms of the performance-based restricted stock awards. The payout percentage
is applied to the simulated stock price at the end of the performance period, reinvested dividends are added back, and the total is
discounted to the valuation date at the risk-free rate. This process is repeated approximately ten thousand times, and the grant
date fair value is equal to the average of the results from these trials.

Activity related to nonvested restricted stock for the year ended December 31, 2011 is presented below:

Weighted-
Average
Grant-Date
Restricted Fair Value
Shares Per Share (8)
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year........ccoccvveciiiinicccnenccnccnececneceees 218,156 $ 23.72
GIANTEA ..oeeeieeeiee ettt et et e et st e s ateeeseesraeasce e st e skt aaseseeasaesssaensaen st e esseenteenbeenarann 137,925 33.38
VESEEM. ettt te et e et ettt e st e st e et e e st et e e st e aae e et e be e e ne et e et e eseaesesaneerres (50,821) 30.18
FOTTRItEA. ..o eee ettt et sate et sae e s e r s eae e e sabe s b aesbeesnesebneenanaeseeeaseeaens (15,601) 22.94
Nonvested Balance at December 31, 2011 ....cccivriiiiiiiieiiiieeiniennreceeeienee e seere e eanereens 289,659 27.23

Restricted stock granted during the year ended December 31, 2011 includes 72,450 shares of time-vested restricted stock and
65,475 shares of performance-based restricted stock. The nonvested balance of restricted stock at December 31, 2011 was
comprised of 116,784 shares of time-vested restricted stock and 172,875 shares of performance-based restricted stock. The total
fair value of restricted stock that vested, all of which were time-based restricted stock awards, during the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $1.4 million, $2.2 million and $0.8 million, respectively. Tax benefits for tax
deductions realized from the vesting of restricted stock were $0.5 million, $0.8 million and $0.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Activity related to restructuring costs from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is
presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Liability at the Beginning of Year:

Employee Termination COSES......civevriireeriirreeiieneenienressenresertsieseasseestessessesseesessseesesssessns s 0.6 $ 1.6 §$ 0.1

Early Lease Termination COStS.......cuevvireeiererriereerennrinrenreeeesieeessssessesseesssseesesseessessessns 0.1 0.6 0.3

Other ASSOCIAEd COSES.....c..coveouiieriirieriicrenreiercee e eort e s e s s eas b s — — —
Liability at the Beginning of Year...........cccooiiiiiiiiii e 0.7 22 0.4
Expenses Incurred:

Employee Termination COStS........ccooeeeierreeirirrinienenententneerenteseesseseeneseeeesesnessesssoneas 2.1 1.1 8.0

Early Lease Termination COStS......c..ccvvrirveerierrieieeseereesiensieesseriassrsoeessessessmessesseessesseessosse 14 — 1.4

Other ASSOCIAtEA COSES....c..evveeiiririiieietiieiineieet e et anis 0.1 — —
Total EXpenses INCUITE ........c.c.ocuiiirueiiiciiiciec ettt 3.6 1.1 9.4
Payments of:

Employee Termination COStS.......c.coeireinriirneetrueniietieseienierestsnetsseesiesessesesssesesenne 2.0 2.1 6.5

Early Lease Termination CoOStS.......cceuvrieirerrenerienierienieeeiesestesresseseeseeesseosessensessensencans 0.5 0.5 1.1

Other ASSOCIAtEA COSES......ueerireiiireeieietreeie et rteta ettt et sae e stebeseeestessesresressensesnensane 0.1 — —
TOLAl PAYIMIEIES .....eeoviiiiiiieiisieeieiteet et e e see e s esesbessestesteestesteessbenasessansesssessesssensesseesnessnsaense 2.6 2.6 7.6
Liability at End of Year:

Employee Termination COSES..........coreeeerererreneerinteiteeineesteeeeereesristesesesaestssessosensensasenss 0.7 0.6 1.6

Early Lease Termination COStS.......ccoveereriereineeieniiiersienseresesensesiasssessassesssessessaessossasns 1.0 0.1 0.6

Other ASSOCIALEd COSES..c...veueriiiiiireerieneeiteeeceret ettt eee st st rse et eesreesraesane — — —
Liability at BN Of YEAT....ooviveiieteieeeeeeteteeet ettt et evetsst et es et vses s sbesebesasssseaesesesnsssnanane $ 1.7 $ 07 $ 22

As discussed in Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Estimates,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Kemper’s
subsidiary, Trinity, completed its acquisition of Direct Response on February 13, 2009. The results of Direct Response’s
operations are included in the Direct segment. The Direct segment recognized restructuring expenses of $2.4 million, $0.9
million and $7.2 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, in part, due to integrating Direct Response’s operations into its operations.
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NOTE 12. INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE

The Company’s awards of restricted common stock contain a right to receive non-forfeitable dividends and participate in the
undistributed earnings with common shareholders. Accordingly, the Company is required to apply the two-class method of
computing basic and diluted earnings per share. A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the calculation of
Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share and Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per
Unrestricted Share for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2011 2010 2009

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Income from Continuing OPerations..........ce.eieeerrrerereeeenrerereermomeremseseeenssmsessesesesseeees $ 709 $ 169.1 § 1675
Less Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Restricted Shares.................... 03 0.8 0.5
Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares.........c..cccoceeeeuene 70.6 168.3 167.0
Dilutive Effect on Income of Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares. — — —
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares............ S 706 $ 1683 § 167.0
'SHARES IN THOUSANDS

Weighted-Average Unrestricted Shares Outstanding............coeeerevcericvennrcninerenneencnncnnes 60,262.6 61,681.2 62,132.6
Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares...........ccccocrrecnicencnniencenencen 103.9 85.7 23.5
Weighted-Average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming
DIHIULION 1.ttt ettt ettt se et bbb bbb mese e b e b e ea e n et es 60,366.5 61,766.9 62,156.1

PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE IN WHOLE DOLLARS

Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share............cccccecennnenne. $ 117 $ 273 $ 2.69
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share.........c..cc.eceoveeeeee $ 117 § 273 $ 2.69

The dilutive effect of Investee Equivalent Shares on Income from Continuing Operations was not significant for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Options outstanding to purchase 3.3 million, 4.1 million and 4.7 million shares of Kemper common stock were excluded from
the computation of Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares and Weighted-Average Common Shares and
Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming Dilution for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
because the exercise price exceeded the average market price.
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NOTE 13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:

Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Period Before Reclassification

AQJUSTINENL 1.....ee ettt s ee e ettt b b eee et b e ens s eses sttt sr e bsneans $ 2321 $§ 1958 §$§ 2075
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........ccoeiiiinnninnnene. (30.9) (18.8) 26.8
Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES).....cuoveurrueriereerereeererieeeenmeenesieiesssstessesssssaseesessnenens 201.2 177.0 234.3
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Period Before

Reclassification AJuStmEnt..........ccevvevueriirerierriiniciicinis i 0.4 (2.6) 1.7
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........ccocoeeiviiniininns — 2.1 0.1)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments...........ccoovvviieniiinnniinieniiiiencsenesreneeenns 0.4 (0.5) 1.6
Equity in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) of INVEStee ........ccvmrereeernvencieniiiinnnns — 2.9 (2.2)
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeat..........c.ccocooevinnaan. (53.9) (27.9) 31.2
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs .........ccovvviviiviviiiniicennnnn 8.7 1.2 (1.9)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS .......coovvevrecenvcnininiiniiiceee 45.2) (26.7) 29.3

Other Comprehensive Income Before Income Taxes........coeeveereeircceivcninninieiicniens 156.4 152.7 263.0

Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Period Before

Reclassification AJUSHMENT. ... .....ccveeieerierierieieceieeee e eereen et sr s (82.5) (69.2) (73.3)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income..........ccococviininiinns 10.9 6.6 9.4)
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES.........ceurveeeieiereeiernnieieenreseesinseescosestonesesiesessesennes (71.6) (62.6) (82.7)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Period Before

Reclassification AdJUSTMENL.......cccocveieuireriereeieeeeceetcec et 0.1) 1.0 (0.6)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.............cccoiiinins — (0.8) —
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment.........cccevcceeermeerncniniiiniiniciiciin s 0.1 0.2 (0.6)
Equity in Other Comprehensive (Income) Loss of Investee ...........cccovviviviiiciicennnnne —_ (1.0) 0.8
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year.............ccooeeni 19.0 9.8 (11.3)
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs .......cccocvvvnvvenicnnccnninine 3.1 (0.5) 0.6
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COsts ........ccoovvivrenecnivcninciininiiicns 15.9 9.3 (10.7)

Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE)......cerueceeeirrieirieeieniecreeeeeiessesieesteerensnieeenseesssstesessossssssnssssnnes (55.8) (54.1) (93.2)
Other CompPrehensive INCOME .......veurieiririeiriecrteet ettt sasbeea st $ 1006 $ 986 $ 1698

The components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Unrealized Gains on Investments, Net of Income Taxes:
Available for Sale Fixed Maturities with Portion of OTTI Recognized in Earnings..............cc.occeee. $ 1.5 % 0.8
Other Net Unrealized Gains on INVESTMENTS........cccuvrveeriireeiiieniieiriieniesrcecentseeriees e 345.7 216.8
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments, Net of Income Taxes.........ccooveevrcemercnieniiiniiiinienens 0.3) (0.6)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs, Net of Income Taxes..........c.cocccevnviininicninnninennenn. (88.9) (59.6)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME .......c..ovviirerireriieniee et $ 2580 $ 1574
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NOTE 14. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Investment Income:
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities .........ccceevveeirrierioirnienniensrenieeseesneenienens $ 246.6 $ 2438 $ 241.0
Dividends on EQUILY SECUTTIES .....ccccivieeeirniiiinieiieiesecicnererent et 25.2 16.0 13.2
Short-term INVESTMENTS ......vveeeieeiiiei et et e e e enees 0.1 0.3 0.8
L0ans t0 POLCYROIACTS ...couveviiiiiiiieiiiceicie ettt a e 17.7 16.5 154
Rl EStale..cuiiiieiiiieiieeee ettt ettt s e en 26.0 27.1 28.4
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments...........ccocovvuivinniiiniiinieinccncene 9.6 48.8 47.7
(01037 U PP U PSP PPPUPPI 03 — 0.3
Total INVeStMENt INCOMIE .....ccuviiieeerieiteeeeee ettt sir e sver b aesbe e beesabessenesrnesrasenne 325.5 352.5 346.8
Investment Expenses:
REAL ESTALE .....eivieieiectieieettetieee st ete et te et sttt sre st sbe e st esatesha et e nbesssasssensessasssesnnenne 25.9 25.7 26.4
Other INVESMENT EXPEIISES ...c.vvrveverieieeririertinretaieeriterentinsesiemeertesesiessssiessssuessesuesseneess 1.6 1.1 0.5
Total INVEStMENT EXPEINISES....cveuverieeeriirierieieetirenterreeeereert e reretenesieseeenessesbeneentesessessesiesnss 27.5 26.8 26.9
NEt INVESTMIENT INCOIMIE ....eeeeeveieeirieeeeeeeeetieeeeee e et s eeetesseaeesestaesseeressaaressassessastesessssesossrnesnsrees $ 298.0 $ 3257 $ 3199

Other Receivables includes accrued investment income of $76.1 million and $72.8 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,

respectively.

The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

2010 2009

§ 215 $ 128

(0.1) 2.7)
11.7 13.6
0.8 —
8.2 —
0.1 —
(0.1) (0.1)
0.5 1.0

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS 01 SALES..euvieieieiieeiieeieeeeriieette ettt srte ettt et eonbesaee st s e ne e bt sene s renes seeeenrsennseanenans $ 142

L0SSES ON SALES ...evieniiiiieiectcet ettt ettt et bt ©.1)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES....eivireeiiiieeeetieeereietete ettt e b ereere b e s s e b et eenenbeestsrem b et esens et srenseeenseneentrreenis 34.0

LLOSSES ON SAIES .....ocvviviviereeteeteieieeeeeieeee st etees e sestes e ettt ses et e sbeesbeutesesaeebesaestensensensensenene (13.5)
Investee — Intermec:

GAINS ON SALES.....cvieeeeieieetietetetete et etesee et eee e s e bt sseee e et eneasebesbesssereebesbeebesbebentensanseseantane —
Real Estate:

GAINS O SAIES...ccutiitieeitiieieeeieese e ee et eeteesteeeatesee e beennseseesnteeeanseenbteesssansessreeenreesraaneran 0.1
Other Investments:

GAINS ON SAIES. ... .ooiiiiitieiiieieeeeetereeee e bt et esatesteesteseneesbeesaseearaessersaseearnesnreeeneeseeesareens —

LLOSSES ON SAIES ...viieeeeiieieiieeeeieierieerestesseestesseste e et sra et e sse et eemtesreertessee e eersaeeneeresnsenaes 0.1)

Trading Securities Net Gains (LLOSSES) ....ccoi i 0.9
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESIMENLS .......cccovireiiireinieneiiieniircineerenterecene s $ 337

§ 426 $ 246

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the

years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009

FXEA MALUIILIES. c..vcveveeeeiiererceceieiseseteaeseseesesebesasssasesesesasesssteseseseneneeseseessebeseseanesesesesensasenesene $ (22) % (144) $ (416
EQUILY SECUITEIES . vevieieerrienienieeieteeei ettt st s s st a e s b e r s nssne e naeeneeas 1.9 2.1) (8.8)
REAL ESALE ..veviiveeiiiieiiere ettt ae et eab e st be et e b sae s sae e s e s e e saee e s nnessreen (7.2) — —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in EArnings...........coveeerevnincennennennenniesncnncnnenes $ (113) $ (165 $ (504
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NOTE 15. INSURANCE EXPENSES

Insurance Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
COTMMISSIONS ...veveereureeeireesestestestesreseeseeeerseseese et etessesen e neseestsasesbarte st sassassres b stesberberserseraasennas $ 3635 $§ 3588 $§ 3726
GENETAL EXPENSES ...vovvivrrerererenirieenirieeestaeaesseseseseseaenesenssssssbssesssnassssssssssssessssesesesessssesssssesens 270.1 273.5 300.5
Taxes, LIicenses and FEes........oimiiiierieiriereee ettt ene s s 46.4 47.3 52.6
Total COStS TNCUITEM ...ttt s s s 680.0 679.6 725.7
Policy Acquisition Costs:

DETEITE™ o..eveeeeceeeeete et tes e e e et sea b ea e be ek e bt n e et b et b st as e e s (301.49) (304.3) (316.5)

AMOTHZE ...voeeveeeeretetet et et s et se bbb bkt e s bbb b aras bt s e e s 279.3 289.2 303.6
Net Policy Acquisition Costs Deferred.........c..ooevreeriiiiniiniiiiiiiinceee e (22.1) (15.1) (12.9)
Life VIF and P&C Customer Relationships Amortized..........ocovveeiiniiniininiieeinen 114 11.0 8.4

INSUTANCE EXPEISES 1vvuvvrvvererecerinesrieitieeeeeseesersetsesessaseesie s s st sesssssasissss s ssasssssasssnssaesans $ 6693 $ 6755 § 7212

Commissions for servicing policies are expensed as incurred, rather than deferred and amortized.

NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES

Current and Deferred Income Tax Assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

2011 2010
CULTENE INCOME TAX ASSELS..nveereviieiitereesreseteeereeuessesssseeseesesssesesseressessessassessassestasessessessmssestensesessessensenes $ 25 § 393
Deferred INCOME TAX ASSEES .uueiiiieiirrireirreeiitreeeieeieiteseeuresastsseesassaessasseesaseessssaeessnaeesaseesanaeeeansassssssassaness 7.4 94
Valuation Allowance for State Income Taxes........ e eereeeheeteetesehesbeesheiseestesseeiteneesbeetebeente st et ebenreeseerenes (6.8) 9.1)
Current and Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS ..civuieiiieiiiieeieireeeirrreeseresseteeseeeesbeeesseeesmnessmeresnaeesssasesssaneas $ 31§ 396
The components of Liabilities for Income Taxes at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Deferred INCOmME TaxX LIGDIEIES ....oveeiiiiiiieeeiiciiee ettt es e et st eeeesteesresbesseesaesbeensesseeanesneseran $ 517 § 7.3
Unrecognized TaxX Benefits.........cccoierieniienieniiic ittt 6.2 7.8
L1abilities fOI INCOME TAXES...v.cvieeeeieeeeeiieteeiireeetaeireessreerseassebeeseesstassteaessessaaestaessressseeaseessseessaenseessnasssens $ 579 § 15.1
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NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s Net Deferred Income Tax Assets
(Liabilities) at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Deferred Income Tax Assets:
INSUTANCE RESEIVES ......vvevivievereeeeseeetessesetesseseseesestssenessensaesaassebesserteseneesentsseseraesesteseaseneaseseasesensesesearesnons $ 768 $ 825
Unearned Premitmm RESEIVES ......ooviiiiiiiieeieeieeieeirecesiveeseeesareeonesrieeesreeesntsstesnssousesinsessossssesnnesinnens 45.0 46.6
Tax Capitalization of Policy AcqUiSition COStS.........cuuivivrriimiiiiiiieistiteretce s 73.5 73.7
RESEIVE fOT OGN LLOSSES ..oneiitiieiiiiteeier et ettt ette et e e e e s s st srae s sraessb s s bbssaassnsesraeesanesnaeente — 18.2
Net Operating L0ss CarryfOrward...........ccovviiiiniiiii e 98.1 73.9
Payroll and Employee Benefit ACCIUAIS. .......coiviviniiiiiiritiieeette s 67.8 67.5
(01 1T OO OO OO OO PP OO PRSP T PO 11.7 11.1
Total Deferred INCOME TaAX ASSES....cviiiiireeeirrieiitertenieesttesiteeeereeeatsrraee e esenssoubesiasssaessrnessresssssarnesseens 3729 373.5
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:
Deferred Policy ACqUISIHION COSTS .....c.eoeeeruiieuiiiiiiiiiiitiiiiiisisee sttt st r et 157.0 149.2
Value of Insurance in FOrce ACQUITEa.....cvirerrirrieniiieiiiienenteesiente ettt ses s sas s sne s e 25.9 34.6
TIIVESHITIENIES . . ..eecueeeeeteeteeetteeereeneeseeesteebaesteesetesseeseesasteaareeat e et e e shbasattembaesanso s bt soaassanesaseeshaesabesassonnnsnnses 182.3 144.7
DEPTECiable ASSELS c....eoviuiieeeiiieiiiiteeitere ettt bbbttt 22.5 17.8
GOOAWIL AN LICENSES ...eveevvivreeriiricieirietiesieeesesesaeestessesseessesbeeesrasaes e eeesreseesreeanesneessesnsssnesssensessesnranns 229 20.7
OBBET ettt e e e e e tt e e bt et e e te e s s aa e s et e st e eata e st e s abe e b e e shaeea bt e ne s AR e et e e r e st e e e e st e e bt e sa b e s ba e e bt s 6.6 4.4
Total Deferred Income Tax LiabIlItIES.....ccveeviiverriererstiiierinceinccereseetesresr et eee s s 417.2 3714
Valuation Allowance for State INCOME TaXES.....cciierrireriieeriiretiieeeriteeeeee et 6.8 9.1
Net Deferred INCOmE Tax LIGDILILIES. ....c..veveeeivereeeieeeriiereeetssesteseseese e esessstesssbevsssasassesessssesansasessassesssenes $ G1.) § (7.0

Deferred Income Tax Assets include Net Operating Loss ("NOL") Carryforwards of $98.1 million and $73.9 million at
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, which include federal net operating loss carryforwards of $91.2
million and $68.3 million, respectively, and state net operating loss carryforwards of $6.9 million and $5.6 million, respectively.
The expiration of the federal net operating loss carryforwards and the related deferred income tax assets is presented below by
year of expiration.

NOL Deferred Tax

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Carryforwards Asset
EXPIRING IN:

2017 through 2020 ......eoceeeeeeceeteectee ettt et et as b b reaneae s $ 109.0 $ 38.2
2021 through 2025 ...co.ooiieeiee et e b e 53.6 18.8
2026 through 2030 .......c.oiiiereceii e bbb 32.1 11.2
203 T ittt ettt ettt s d e bbb s e bR e b e b e R b e b beeas b e b et e b ereen ' 65.6 23.0
TOLAL AL YEAIS.....ocvitceerieiieieteieitcteet s er e e bbbt bbb bbb s bbb oot bR n b h bbb n s ne $ 2603 S 91.2

Except for the net operating losses scheduled to expire in 2031, all of the federal net operating loss carryforwards were acquired
in connection with business acquisitions made in prior years and are subject to annual usage limitations under the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company expects to fully utilize these federal net operating loss carryforwards. The state net operating loss
carryforwards relate to Fireside Bank, the majority of which are scheduled to expire in 2029. Deferred tax asset valuation
allowances of $6.8 million and $9.1 million were required at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and relate to state
income taxes for Fireside Bank.

Income taxes refunded, net of income tax paid of $57.1 million, were $4.1 million in 2011. Income taxes paid were $65.1
million and $72.3 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company has not provided Federal income taxes on $14.7 million of Mutual Savings Life’s income earned prior to 1984
which is not subject to income taxes under certain circumstances. Federal income taxes of $5.1 million would be paid on such
income if it is distributed to shareholders in the future or if it does not continue to meet certain limitations.
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NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 is as follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Balance at Beginning Of YEar.......ccvceriiieiiitririiinenieieeeencs e nreeene s csnesreseemeseesssesaess s i $ 78 $ 117 $ 170
Reductions for Tax Positions of Current Period..........ccovveevvereeirnvinenciinencneeeneeieneeeene 1.8 .7 (1.8)
Additions for Tax Positions of Prior YEars.......ccceeereeireriereeneenienrenietns e cssesseneens 0.2 26.6 25.7
Reduction for Expiration of Federal Statute of Limitations.........c.ccceveveircvcernenncnneireennnne — (28.8) (29.2)
Balance at End Of Year.........ooeorveieeee ettt ettt see e $ 62 § 78 $ 117

The statute of limitations related to Kemper and its eligible subsidiaries’ consolidated Federal income tax returns is closed for
all tax years up to and including 2006. The expiration of the statute of limitations related to the various state income tax returns
that Kemper and its subsidiaries file varies by state.

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 are tax
positions of $3.7 million, $5.7 million and $7.2 million, respectively, for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but
for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred income tax accounting,
other than for interest and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the effective income
tax rate but would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The liability
for unrecognized tax benefits included accrued interest of $2.5 million, $2.1 million and $4.2 million at December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively. Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes an interest expense of $0.4 million
related to unrecognized tax benefits for prior years. Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 includes an interest
benefit of $2.1 million, which is comprised of an interest benefit of $2.8 million resulting from the expiration of the statutes of
limitations referred to above, and interest expense of $0.7 million on unrecognized tax benefits for prior years. Tax benefit for
the year ended December 31, 2009 includes an interest benefit of $1.8 million, which is comprised of an interest benefit of $2.9
million resulting from the expiration of the statutes of limitations referred to above, and interest expense of $1.1 million on
unrecognized tax benefits for prior years.

The components of Income Tax Benefit (Expense) from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Current INCOME TaX EXPENSE .....ccoevueeiiiiieiieieiieiesteere e st esre et evesaressessneaessasssessesnsessesnsanes $ @34) § 426) $ (21.3)
Deferred Income Tax Benefit (EXPense).....ccceveceeireeiineninenenieesesieneereeennesesnessesesnnesennes 30.1 (28.8) (43.5)
Unrecognized Tax Benefit........ccooirveiiireriiiniireitinieniesenireeeesste st sse e sesssesaeetesreesesseessnans 1.6 39 53
INCOME TAX EXPEINSE....evivieteriiereiiteeteteteeseseeteseteseeteve b etessebessenessstebessesessasesessessssesssnesesaesanes $ AL $ (675 $ (595

A reconciliation of the Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense and Rate to the Company’s Effective Income Tax Expense and
Rate from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

2011 2010 2009

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense and Rate....... $ (28.9) 35.0% $ (83.0) 35.0% $ (79.8) 35.0%
Tax-exempt Income and Dividends Received

DedUCHION .....vveviiiciiccnccerecreeeere e 17.7 (21.5) 19.0 8.0 19.2 (8.5)
State Income TaXes.......cocuvveverirrenireniccerenerreriereennens (1.2) 1.4 (0.9) 0.4 (0.8) 0.4
Nondeductible Goodwill...........ccceveeievierevieeeiieerenns — — (5.2) 2.2 — —
Other, Net.....cceiverirrieeeiccreieeeteee e 0.7 0.7) 2.6 (1.1 1.9 (0.8)
Effective Income Tax Expense and Rate.................... $ a17n 14.2% $ (67.5) 28.5% § (59.5) 26.1%
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NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (Expense) included in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Income Tax Expense:

ContiNUING OPETALIONS ....c.ceveuirteeiireecirtesteeteteststeseeeevesteseseesestsr sressaestetsneseesesseeeseneeteneenen $ (117§ (675 $ (59.5)

Discontinued OPETALIONS .......oevruririecirireeriniesieeneesesees e eteessrereesestsseseereesesessosssenessseenesnen 6.7 (10.3) 8.9
Equity in:

Net LosS OF INVESLEE ......c.ouiviiieiciieieeeit ettt ettt sn ettt ess st teta s —_— 0.1 0.6

Other Comprehensive (Income) Loss of INVEStee ........cooovvveeiieeerieiieeeeieee e — (1.0) 0.8
Unrealized Appreciation 0N SECUTIILIES .......cveerieveieiereeiceererieeteeearereeeeres e eseree e eeeee st seneone (71.6) (62.6) (82.7)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on INVESIMENtS ......c..cceerevereverereereeeriniairerrnnes ©.1) 0.2 (0.6)
Tax Effects from Postretirement Benefit P1ans.............cccoeerieveieeeeeiceieeeccceeese s 15.9 9.3 (10.7)
Tax Effects from Long-Term Equity-based Compensation included in Paid-in Capital....... 1.0) (2.0) 1.7
Comprehensive Income Tax EXPEnSe. ........ccccvreurireiniriricnininerinnnininsisssensssesssesseessseenes $ (75.2) § (133.8) $ (162.2)

NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS

The Company sponsors two qualified defined benefit pension plans (the “Pension Plans”) covering approximately 3,000 retired
and 3,200 active employees. The Pension Plans are generally non-contributory, but participation in one of the Pension Plans
requires or required some employees to contribute 3% of pay, as defined, per year. Benefits for participants who are or were
required to contribute to the Pension Plans are based on compensation during plan participation and the number of years of
participation. Benefits for the vast majority of participants who are not required to contribute to the Pension Plans are based on
years of service and final average pay, as defined. The Company funds the Pension Plans in accordance with the requirements

of ERISA.
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NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Projected Benefit Obligation for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Be@inning Of Year.......covovieiieioeiiiiieceieee et senen $ 3527 $§ 3129
Actual Return 0n PIan ASSELS........ceovireiiiieiiiietitceeteteeete ettt ss st eneeeenaene 25.6 44.8
Employer CONITDULIONS ......c.c.eveveirirririnisrirenecee ettt ettt tee st se e sa et eeeeees s easnnees 83.7 15.0
Plan Participants’ COntrTBUIONS.......covocevivveriiitet et e eeeee sttt eeee st stseas s eee s s see e 0.1 —
Benefits Paid ........oooiuiiiiiiicienente ettt sttt s sttt st s s e et (20.49) (19.7)
Settlement Benefits ......cccoeveeevecvveiiiiciicieeeeens et et tebee s teae et e et e atesh e e ekt e nreenreartaeesbeeteatreeaeeennens 0.4) 0.3)

441.3 352.7

Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year. 433.1 377.0
SEIVICE COBL ...ttt sttt ettt ae e ees s es s eae s e bt setoe s esesaessesessn e e e neeaenens 10.2 9.0
INEETESE COSE ...vnieiii ettt ettt ettt s et s bt e e e s s st et toseteneenseeeaeneaneen 22.9 22.4
Plan Participants’ CONLIIDULIONS. .....c.c.eoeueerrieiiirieiiiiieiiet et et tes et es st see et enssenesseesseeasaeaens 0.1 —
BeNefits PaAld .......ocveuiiiiiieice ettt ettt ettt et ae e eeeseeees (204) 19.7)
SELIEMENE BENETILS ...vouiviviieiiitiectiteet ettt e et oo st et ee e eeeeeeeene st e e st es et eseasesearnens 0.9) 0.3)
ACTUATIAL LOSSES ...ttt ettt ettt sb et ettt ss s ee st e s sanssass s st sstes st saeesseseeenonanen 53.7 44.7
Benefit Obligations at ENd 0f YEar .....coouiueuiieiiiieieieeiceeee ettt et et et sseneeen 499.2 433.1
Funded Status—Benefit Obligation in EXcess 0F P1an ASSEtS..........ccovvvevvvieiviiieiiieeeseeesseeeerersnesseseenne $ (57.9) § (804
Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income: -
Accumulated ACTUATIAL LOSS ....c.c.evririeriieiririeirieietesitesevsseeese e e eee s resse sttt eseseseeseaessasesesaeeresens $ (1504) $ (107.6)
PIIOT SEIVICE COSL. ...ttt ettt s en e en sttt it st atemnenaeeenn 0.2 0.4
Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME ............coooeveeeremeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeens $ (150.2) § (107.2)

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year presented in the preceding table under the headings, “2011”
and “2010” were December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

The Accumulated Benefit Obligation was $480.5 million and $417.5 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. For
the Company’s pension plan with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets at December 31, 2011, the
Projected Benefit Obligation was $496.8 million, the Accumulated Benefit Obligation was $478.1 million and the Fair Value of
Plan Assets was $438.7 million. For the Company’s pension plan with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan
assets at December 31, 2010, the Projected Benefit Obligation was $430.6 million, the Accumulated Benefit Obligation was
$415.0 million and the Fair Value of Plan Assets was $349.8 million. The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components
of the Pension Projected Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were:

2011 2010
DISCOUNT RALE ..ottt sr bttt a et ettt st s ees e s eseseneens 4.60% 5.35%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LeVEIS ..........ccoooveveiiuiriiieeieiecie e es s 3.27 2.47

Weighted-average asset allocations for the Pension Plans at December 31, 2011 and 2010 by asset category were:

ASSET CATEGORY 2011 2010
Cash and Short-term INVESTMENES .........c.oiuireeeieeieiriietcieieiiseee st et res e eeeeeeseeteseas e seseeseesssseseseseseseseasn 11% 3%
Corporate Bonds and NOES ..........cccceeiririeuiieieietereet ettt s e et e seeseseseseneens 31 37
COMIMON STOCKS ..ottt ettt st et et st et eeeeseessetesssseseressessesneen 48 47
ONET ASSELS .....cecevieiecieieet ettt ettt e ettt s et es st eetes et e aet et s e s e s s e s eaeeenaesesses e e s s esesesesesen 10 13
TOTAL .ottt e ettt ettt ettt r s e e e e e st s et s s et eneeesen 100% 100%
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NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

The investment objective of the Pension Plans is to produce current income and long-term capital growth through a
combination of equity and fixed income investments which, together with appropriate employer contributions and any required
employee contributions, is adequate to provide for the payment of the benefit obligations of the Pension Plans. The assets of the
Pension Plans may be invested in both fixed income and equity investments. Fixed income investments may include cash and
short-term instruments, U.S. Government securities, corporate bonds, mortgages and other fixed income investments. Equity
investments may include various types of stock, such as large-cap, mid-cap and small-cap stocks, and may also include
investments in investment companies and Kemper common stock (subject to Section 407 and other requirements of ERISA).
The Pension Plans have not invested in Kemper common stock.

The trust investment committee for the Pension Plans periodically reviews the performance of the Pension Plans’ investments
and asset allocation. Several external investment managers, one of which is Fayez Sarofim & Co. (“FS&C”), manage the equity
investments of the trust for the Pension Plans. One of Kemper’s directors, Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is Chairman of the Board,
President and the majority shareholder of FS&C, a registered investment advisory firm (see Note 24, “Related Parties,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements). Each manager is allowed to exercise investment discretion, subject to limitations, if any,
established by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plans. An independent fiduciary has sole investment discretion
with respect to shares of Intermec common stock contributed by the Company to one of the pension plans in 2011. All other
investment decisions are made by the Company, subject to general guidelines as set by the trust investment committee for the
Pension Plans.

The Company determines its Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets based primarily on the Company’s
expectations of future returns for the Pension Plans’ investments, based on target allocations of the Pension Plans’ investments.
Additionally, the Company considers historical returns on comparable fixed income investments and equity investments and
adjusts its estimate as deemed appropriate.

Fair value measurements for the Pension Plans’ assets at December 31, 2011 is summarized below:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable Fair Value
Assets Inputs Inputs Dec. 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2011
Fixed Maturities:
States and Political Subdivisions ...........cc.cceevenee. $ — S 31 8 — 8 31
Corporate Bonds and Notes .......c.ccoecvvvecrinienceinnen. — 135.4 1.0 136.4
Equity Securities:
Common StOCKS: ....ccvevveeiiieeriireeirerieseseesieesaenen
INEEIMEC...ieviivteeriecereccccer e 40.2 — —_ 40.2
Manufacturing ........ccveeeeereiveervenenieeseereeeresvesnens 74.4 4.2 — 78.6
Other INAUSEIIES .....ovveeecrrieieeeeccrecereeeeeere e, 384 —_ —_ 38.4
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds........ccccoevvvviecrecieniennen. 53.6 — — 53.6
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships......coveeeeeieeiereeeeereneeriecrievenenens — —_ 37.2 37.2
Short-term Investments 47.7 — — 47.7
Receivables and Other ........occoveveerveriiieeneneenieseenn. 2.9 — 3.2 6.1
TOtAL oottt $ 2572 $ 1427 § 414 $ 441.3
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NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plans’ assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2011 is presented below:

Corporate Other Equity Receivables

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Bonds Interests and Other Total
Balance at Beginning of Year.......cccccococevivveiiiieccericeereenene $ — 8 415 §$ 37§ 45.2
Return on Plan Assets Held..........ovveooveeooeeeeeeoeereesooreeseseon. — 1.7 — 1.7
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Net..........cccoocoonvioreeveeveeennnn. — 6.0) (0.5) (6.5)
Transfer into Level 3 from Level 2.......c..covcvvverivceeieieeecnaens 1.0 — — 1.0
Balance at December 31, 2011 ....coovoviiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeean. $ 1.0 $ 372§ 32 § 41.4

Fair value measurements for the Pension Plans’ assets at December 31, 2010 is summarized below:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable Fair Value
Assets Inputs Inputs Dec. 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2010
Fixed Maturities:
States and Political Subdivisions .............c.c.......... $ — 3 28 $ — 3 2.8
Corporate Bonds and Notes ...............cococu....... e — 125.8 — 125.8
Equity Securities:
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ......ccceeeveeeeeeieeereceeee e 66.5 4.1 — 70.6
Other INdUSLIIES ...ovcvvvieceececcre e 36.4 — — 36.4
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds...........c..cooccvvvvvvennen. 58.4 — — 58.4
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......coccoevvvenieeeeccieeceere e — — 41.5 41.5
Short-term Investments.............c.coovveevvreviveererecnne. 11.9 — — 11.9
Receivables and Other ...........ccocvceveveeeviviieiineenenn, 1.6 — 3.7 53
TOAL ..ot $ 1748 § 1327 § 452 $ 352.7

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plans’ assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2010 is presented below:

Other Equity Receivables

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Interests and Other Total
Balance at Beginning of Year.......c.cccocueviveiiieieieiecieeeeeie e $ 363 $ 40 $ 40.3
Return on Plan Assets Held .......o.o.oviviueeiceiiiieiiiie et 6.5 0.1 6.6
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Net ............c.ocoovvimeeeereeeieeeeeeeeeeee e, (1.3) 0.4) (1.7)
Balance at December 31, 2010 .......c.ooiouieeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo eeee e $ 415 $ 37 % 452
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The components of Comprehensive Pension (Benefit) Expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Service Cost Earned DUring the Year........ccceveeeeririririereinnneniseeresesenesesesieenssssenessnessesesens $ 102 § 9.0 $ 9.9
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligation..........cccoeveevvuecenevninciiienniiinceeeeesreceeeees 22.9 224 214
Expected Return on Plan ASSEtsS........cccoiviinnciiiiniiiiiicinen s (24.49) 23.7) (24.4)
Net Amortization and Deferral...........cccoeivrviiiiiinicneer s 9.4 2.3 0.1)
Pension Expense ReCOZMIZEA........c.c.corvniniivciiiiniiircicisre e 18.1 10.0 6.8
Unrecognized Pension (Gain) Loss Arising During the Year.......ccococoiivinnciiininnccnnns 52.4 23.6 (36.0)
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized Pension Gain (LOSS) ..c.cocveeriveeerecnenienencnnennnns 9.4 2.3) 0.1
Comprehensive Pension (Benefit) EXpense ... $ 611 $ 313 $ (29.1)

The Company estimates that Pension Expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 will include expense of $18.5 million
resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial loss included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income at December 31, 2011.

Total Pension Expense Recognized presented in the preceding table includes service cost benefits earned and reported in
discontinued operations of $0.6 million, $0.5 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of the Pension Expense for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 were:

2011 2010 2009
DISCOUNE RALE .ottt st e sttt sn et nens b snenas 5.35% 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels......c.coevivierrineiieceencninenese e 247 2.88 2.88
Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan ASSets.........ooceviiiicciiniinicnenicces 7.00 7.00 7.00

On September 14, 2011, the Company made a voluntary contribution of $83.7 million to its defined benefit pension plan. The
contribution consisted of $32.2 million in cash and 7,309,764 shares of Intermec common stock with a fair value of $51.5
million on the date of contribution. The Company recognized a realized loss of $7.0 million on the contribution of Intermec
common stock. On May 23, 2011, the Company requested a waiver from the U.S. Department of Labor (“DOL”) related to the
prohibited transaction rules under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code for the one-time in-kind contribution of the shares of
Intermec common stock. On January 19, 2012, the DOL granted relief, from the prohibited transaction rules retroactive to
September 1, 2011.

The Company does not expect that it will be required to contribute to its Pension Plans in 2012, but could make a voluntary
contribution pursuant to the maximum funding limits under ERISA.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017-2021

Pension Benefits ... $ 218 § 229 $ 240 $§ 251 § 262 § 1487

The Company also sponsors a non-qualified supplemental defined benefit pension plan (the “Supplemental Plan™). The
unfunded liability related to the Supplemental Plan was $21.7 million and $22.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Pension expense for the Supplemental Plan was $3.3 million, $3.1 million and $0.9 million in 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively. An actuarial gain of $2.9 million before tax is included Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended
December 31, 2011.
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The Company also sponsors several defined contribution benefit plans covering most of its employees. The Company made
contributions to those plans of $7.3 million, $6.8 million and $6.6 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Under these
plans, the participants have several investment alternatives, including Kemper’s common stock held through the Kemper
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) Fund and the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. FS&C is a sub-investment advisor of the
Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. One of Kemper’s directors, Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is the Chairman of the Board, President and
majority shareholder of FS&C (see Note 24, “Related Parties,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The fair value of
participants’ investments in Kemper’s ESOP Fund was $16.5 million, or 5.9% of the total investments in the defined
contribution benefit plans at December 31, 2011. The fair value of participants’ investments in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund
was $19.1 million, or 6.8% of the total investments in the defined contribution benefit plans at December 31, 2011.

NOTE 18. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Company sponsors an other than pension postretirement employee benefit plan (“OPEB”) that provides medical, dental
and/or life insurance benefits to approximately 700 retired and 400 active employees (the “OPEB Plan™). The Company
generally is self-insured for the benefits under the OPEB Plan. The medical plan generally provides for a limited number of
years of medical insurance benefits at retirement based on the participant’s attained age at retirement and number of years of
service until specified dates and generally requires participant contributions, with most contributions adjusted annually.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Accumulated Benefit Obligation for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning 0f Year........cocoovevirieireriiinnieieiiieiecsescrtetseee st sessseeesieressesannas $ — 3 —
EmpPloyer CONIIDULIONS ........oevviueieieriereritesieterrteeeierest st eseeesaesesseseseeteseesesassesessesessesessessesesssesessesensesnan 3.2 3.8
Plan Participants’” CONLIDULIONS. ....c...everiieierrirrrrireeiiteierieessteeesteresesessesssesesesssesssnesesassssasesesesesesesnssesesenes 1.1 1.1
BENETIS PAIA ....oviveiicieeeree ettt ettt ettt st s b ab e e et ene e te st et easereteeene 4.3) 4.9)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Year........ccoceoiiiioiiiiicecete et n st — —
Benefit Obligation at Beginning 0f YEar.........ccecrveouiieiiiieicceereiseetes et ev e ere e snabesseeeas 41.1 379
SEIVICE COSE .ovuiiiriiiiiiiitet ettt ettt ettt et b bbbt b et s b et s b e et e bt e s e me s eas s esen e et en e et ase et asnasaseabebenseseansns 0.1 0.1
INEETEST COSE ...viiiiiicnieiieii et rret ettt sttt e bttt e s st s e s et ekt s be s b essassasaeseesessessensesaassatesssssessesessansessans 1.9 2.1
Plan Participants’ CONtIIDULIONS. ....c..eveiriiaiesieetereeeeieteeieretste e esteeeseesasasesesees e e ese e esessesesessesnasessnssrssssesans 1.1 1.1
BENETItS PAIA ..eeieeeeiiiiciiceieteret ettt et ettt se et ettt e st aeeteens b ens st aneeneerebe b et eneerea 4.3) 4.9)
Modernization Act Subsidy RECEIVEQ. ........ccootiuieeeiririirieerr ettt ettt eneeeeaens 0.4 0.4
ACHUATIAL LOSSES ...ttt ettt ettt et s et b ettt s et e ee bbb e s et ses et e e sn s snesebennasetasetene 4.4 4.4
Benefit Obligation at ENd 0F Year......cc.ccuivievrieeiririireesiie et sssssss s sse s s esas s sssasssstenansnaas 44.7 41.1
Funded Status—Benefit Obligation in Excess 0f P1an ASSetS........ccoveveueeeereiiviereitereeeeeeeeeeeeeveveereeeee e $ 4.7 $ @@L
Actuarial Gain Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOme.........ccoeovvviireveccreecannnnns $ 92 § 143

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year in the preceding table under the headings “2011” and “2010”
were December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of the Accumulated Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2011 and
2010 were:

2011 2010
DISCOUILE RALE ....c..vuiieceiiietcieteieie sttt b st e s et et b sttt e sttt esesetss s besssssasasanensesssesesesasessasaras 4.25% 4.40%
Rate of Increase in Futire Compensation LEVELS ........ce.ecoiveeiriieierctieeieetceeeseee e ercee st ene 2.10 1.50
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The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2011 was 7.5%
for 2012, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2017 and remaining at that level thereafter for medical benefits and 9.0% for
2012, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2020 and remaining at that level thereafter for prescription drug benefits. The
assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2010 was 6.5% for
2011, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2014 and remaining at that level thereafter for medical benefits and 7.0% for
2011, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2013 and remaining at that level thereafter for prescription drug benefits.

A one—percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would increase the Accumulated
Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2011 by $2.8 million and 2011 OPEB expense by $0.1 million. A one-percentage point
increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would increase the Accumulated Benefit Obligation at
December 31, 2010 by $2.5 million and 2010 OPEB expense by $0.1 million.

The components of Comprehensive OPEB Expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Service Cost Earned During the Year..........ccocceviviiieiieninenicreinseeceneeesseesresterienaene $ 01 $ 01 $ 0.1
Interest Cost on Accumulated Benefit Obligation..........cccoeivveverierninieicneiineseeeeseeieienene 1.9 2.1 2.1
Net Amortization and Deferral..........ccooceiveriiieininenccies et (0.6) (1.1) (1.8)
OPEB Expense ReCOZIIZEd ......c..occeuiiiieiiiiriiiiiiiiieiceeintctsie sttt e 14 1.1 0.4
Unrecognized OPEB Loss Arising During the Year.........ccoovrevivineicennininnenieeereneenes 4.4 4.3 4.8
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized OPEB Gain.........c.ccecevivverienieniecieenererunneenna 0.6 1.1 1.8
Comprehensive OPEB EXPEIISE .......c.cuvueueueeciiiiincriieiiiiieeceeesisessenienecssessiesesesecassesseacees $ 64 § 65 § 7.0

The Company estimates that OPEB Expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 will include income of $0.5 million
resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial gain included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income at December 31, 2011.

The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of the OPEB Expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 were:

2011 2010 2009
DiISCOUNE RALE ..ottt et et saen e 4.40% 525% 6.00%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels.........cccvverineiiiineieneineneeneeeeseeeae 1.50 1.50 1.50

The Company expects to contribute $4.4 million, net of expected Modernization Act Subsidy, to its OPEB Plan to fund benefit
payments in 2012.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017-2021
Benefit Payments:
Excluding Modernization Act Subsidy.................. $ 49 § 51 8 51 % 51 $ 49 § 211
Expected Modernization Act Subsidy.................... (0.5) 0.5) 0.5) 0.5) (0.5) 2.1)
Net Benefit PAyments .........cocovvveeeceereeniererneeccreanennes $ 44 S 46 $ 46 $ 46 $ 44 $ 19.0
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The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance

businesses. The Company conducts its continuing operations through four operating segments: Preferred, Specialty, Direct and
Life and Health Insurance.

The Preferred segment provides preferred and standard risk personal automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and other
personal insurance through independent agents. The Specialty segment provides automobile insurance to individuals and
businesses in the non-standard and specialty market through independent agents. The non-standard automobile insurance
market consists of individuals and companies that have difficulty obtaining standard or preferred risk insurance, usually
because of their adverse driving records or claim or credit histories. Direct markets personal automobile, homeowners and
renters insurance through a variety of direct-to-consumer websites, including its own websites, marketing partners, employer

and other affinity-sponsored relationships. The Life and Health Insurance segment provides individual life, accident, health and
property insurance.

The Company’s earned premiums are derived in the United States. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Capital expenditures for long-lived assets by operating segment are immaterial.

The Company does not allocate insurance reserves from its 2002 acquisition of certain insurance companies from SCOR (see
Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). It is also the Company’s
management practice to allocate certain corporate expenses, primarily compensation costs for corporate employees and related
facility costs, included in Interest and Other Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income to its insurance operations.
The amount of such allocated corporate expenses was $33.0 million, $30.9 million and $30.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company does not allocate Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments,
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings, interest expense on debt or retirement plans, and actuarial gains and losses on
its retirement plans to its operating segments.

Segment Assets at December 31,2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010
SEGMENT ASSETS

PIETRITEA ...ttt ettt v st bttt s st s e eneeeseasaeeeaenrene $ 1,547.0 §$ 1,452.1
SPECIAILY ...t sttt ettt et e et et a ettt ee et e et s et et neaeaeae 615.8 644.0
DIAIECT. ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et er bt et bttt eaea s ea et ea et e et st et se ettt eneneneaen 570.8 586.2
Life and Health INSUTANCE ........ccveviveiirieiiriiceieeteee ettt et te st ste st st e e e s e e eteteeseeeeeeaeeesenssseessenen 4,926.0 4,602.7
Corporate ANA ONEr, NET......c.eciivieriieieeceeee ettt e vt ettt ae et e aee et et e s eteeasesensessesessessessssssseeseesenes 426.3 1,073.5
Total Assets

L s AR $ 8,085.9 $ 8,358.5
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Segment Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
REVENUES
Preferred:

Farned PrOMIIUINS ......ccveviuieriieieriteeteteeeeteeresseseeeeseesessessesaessassansessassassessassessansesansessensessans $ 8598 § 888.0 $ 931.8

Net INVeStMENt INCOME ....ccuvieieeeeeieete ettt ee st ceessteesrsessieeesrreenrseneressessnaessneerns 49.6 52.8 421

OhET TNCOME ..ttt ettt s e ese et e e ea et ese b ete e et e te s eseeneebensensens 0.3 04 04
TOtAl PrEfEITEA. ....ooviveeeieeeetectieeeeeee ettt e e e be st e ee e anc e s et e et e aees et e e entene et sseeuesaeneeaaens 909.7 941.2 974.3
Specialty:

Earned PremIUITIS. ......ocovieieeeireiieiteeieeie e see et eeteshee st eenaesenreeaasenraessaeesseesnsaenreeomsnanns 445.2 474.9 527.5

Net INVESTMENE TNCOME......eooviieieiiirertenieereetiereert ettt eee e ste e st e bt e b ssessvesbeenesreenneone 211 24.8 20.8

OMHET INCOIMIE ....coueiiiieeiieeeee ettt st ettt s e et esaaesombresmtesineesbaeenbeeennesaneesnessane 0.5 0.6 0.4
TOA] SPECIAILY ...c.vevieeicieieietcet ettt ettt b 466.8 500.3 548.7
Direct: '

Earned PIEMIUIMS.......cccovievierieirieieirenteeeesiessesceeesreestesteessesseesseessesseessessessesssessessasssessuens 222.7 282.4 345.6

Net Investment INCOME.......coioiiiiiiiieiiiiieertt ettt snree st e e e srreeesreee s s eessse e e smeeeenees 17.9 214 18.5

Other INCOMIE ..ottt et e st e et e s ee e s see s e e n e e aen e s ssneeeanneennn .01 0.1 0.9
TOLAL DAFECT..uveeveiiriteeet ettt ete et et e seereesae e ese e sesabesbeessesbessaessasessretsseemtessesssanseeaeenssoneeasanns 240.7 303.9 365.0
Life and Health Insurance:

Earned PremIUINS .. ...veeveeieeeiieseieeieeieeieteeitesieessreetreeseesnsssieeesbeeereemeraasersaseeseeessrneensnennes 645.9 644.1 650.6

Net InvestmMEnt INCOMIE ........coomiiiiiieieieeii e eeieeieeeeeesee e eeir e ebeesbbeestaesbteanbeesanesabeensnens 201.9 214.3 225.3

OthET TNCOMIC ...ttt ettt et e e et e bt st ee et ee e saer e sseesmesneeesrteenssennes 0.1 0.2 0.7
Total Life and Health INSUTANCE ........ccuieerieiieeeieeieeie e evte s sieeesieeearesabeesasesnnsesseeensenans 847.9 858.6 876.6
Total Segment REVENMUES .....cc..eeuiiiiiiiiiiiiriiicciiiit i st e 2,465.1 2,604.0 2,764.6
Net Realized Gains on the Sales of InVestments .........ccccevvvevveeneeiiirnneenniecieseeeee e 33.7 42.6 24.6
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........ccovvivvvivniiininiicieniinc 11.3) (16.5) (50.4)
ORET ..ttt ettt st e ettt e bt et e s bt et e s b e et e see st ettt ek e ear e eaeenne st e benar s e reeareene 7.5 12.4 13.3
TOAL REVEIUES ......eoeeivicteeetiete ettt ere et eteetesaeeseesesessbenbesasesbesbasessasseenaesbeassassansssssessensenn $2,495.0 $2,642.5 §$2,752.1
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NOTE 19. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment Operating Profit for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
SEGMENT OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)
PIOICITEA ..ottt ettt ettt e b e st sa s es s e st saeee st e s et ebem bk e bt astene st eaeae s $ (394 § 639 $ 862
SPECIAILY -ttt e bbb bbb et nn b s ene 225 24.6 30.5
DHIECE 1.ttt eete ettt et e te et et e et e ss e e s e e eresbesb e be b esteseema i see e am e e et e b et she b e e s r st b as 46.7) (7.1) (12.6)
Life and Health INSUIANCE .....cveerrirrenrirrrrnicrniresisiesionsimmsiinissiessssiesnsessneresesnesnssnessessessnns 167.6 154.0 168.5
Total Segment Operating Profif.............ccccoiiiiiiiiiiii s 104.0 2354 272.6
Unallocated Operating LOSS .....c.ccvuererieirieicrtrcrenreteiineerireseeses st ssess e ensnnses (43.8) (24.8) (18.8)
Total Operating Profit.........cccccoveiineineniieiieccrcerietietnte e 60.2 210.6 253.8
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESIMENLS ........cocevcivniiiiiniiniiiiiiiiiere e 33.7 42.6 24.6
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........ccoeevevienniiiniinniicniens (11.3) (16.5) (50.4)
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Loss of

TEIVESEEE ettt ettt et e s ae ettt e eae e s e eesteas s vt ereseb s et easeeeesenbeersebaasberaanseententnen e nnaennens $ 8.6 $ 2367 $ 2280

Segment Net Operating Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
SEGMENT NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
PIEIEITEA ..ottt ettt e e et eeeeseesesessesssses s esssbaseesesearesenc s ensebantebeseenenenee $ (166) $ 506 $§ 63.7
SPECIALLY ettt ettt e et r e eab et er b enes 18.3 20.2 23.5
DHIECL .. e eeeetetettetete et e et e et bttt es s e se e e s e eees e a2 e be b b et e b et ek ent st entnnese s s e aeaserea b sna et e e n s (27.1) (1.1) (5.3)
Life and Health INSUTANCE .....ccveoieieuieeiiieieiecceeec et sreeeen et st es s bt nenae e 108.5 94.9 112.1
Total Segment Net Operating INCOME.......c..coeeveeiinicniirciini e 83.1 164.6 194.0
Unallocated Net Operating LOSS ......ovevvrerrrereenieiriesc e st ene s (26.8) (12.7) 9.7)
Consolidated Net Operating INCOMIE ......cviveverierieriererieirieeie ettt e 56.3 151.9 184.3
Unallocated Net Income (Loss) From:

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments ........c.oocvveenvniiieniiinininceee e 21.9 279 16.0

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Barnings..........ccoceuvreeiiecniiniininnninnnncnienenes (1.3) (10.7) (32.8)
Income from Continuing OPErations..........cccerererrirerieerierertniinee e tens $ 709 $ 169.1 $ 1675

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs by Operating Segment for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009

PrETEITEA ...ttt ettt s re e b e s e s ese e e ra e ae e e e e s e e ann bt beebe b eeneene $ 1489 § 1577 $ 1673
SPECIALLY .ottt ettt ettt s ettt es b e s s as s e reesene eaea s eae bttt et eb et en et eae e een 62.6 67.7 75.8
DITECE ueuienteeieei ettt te et et eete et e beett e b e steessasesanesseetseabsese aebashaeatesbeenbeesae st eesteaeenreeaeetens 8.8 9.8 73
Life and Health INSULANCE ...coveeviiieiiiiniiienieeiesiencecre e e sreesnesresstessse s esnesneesnea 59.0 54.0 53.2
TOtal ADIOTHZATION. ......eveveeeieieeeeceeeeceeeeet et te st eeres e s s snes s eseeseressesessesessesesseseanesesessasenee $ 2793 $ 2892 $ 303.6
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NOTE 19. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Earned Premiums by product line for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
EARNED PREMIUMS
LT ettt ettt ettt e et eat b tsae b e erae s eeneeetesereenbeeaeeneeresereetsoessaeas $ 3951 $§ 3967 $ 3997
Accident and Health .......ccccoiiiviiiiiiiieiiiieecee e et 166.3 161.9 159.2
Property and Casualty:
Personal Lines:
AULOMODILE ..ottt ettt ettt beeas e st ete s teeneesreenssaeessaesssaeeeens 1,129.4 1,249.5 1,394.1
HOMEOWINETS ...ttt sttt et e et e e tb e e bt estaeeeaeeeaesenteeeseeennis 304.1 298.7 301.1
Other Personal........ccocoviiiviiiniiciete ettt et bttt eas e e saae 138.7 139.0 145.4
Total Personal LINES ........covieueeiieiiiiiiiieieceiereeeceee ettt ettt ettt eeneeneeneenee e 1,572.2 1,687.2 1,840.6
Commercial AUOMODILE...........cccvviriiiierieiiniiiierice et e ers e st essone e 40.0 43.6 56.0
Total EArned PrOMIUINS .....ccoovveevirieciirieerieie sttt ettt ettt se vt et s eessaneesenesreeas $2,173.6 $ 22894 § 24555

NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE

Catastrophes and storms are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events and
natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and winter
storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations and
financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of the operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are
more likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and
casualty insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers. ISO-
classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions that
follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, and reinsurance. To limit its
exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property and casualty
insurance businesses.
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NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE (Continued)
Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2011 is provided in various layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Preferred Segment:

RETAIMNEA ..ottt et st sa et $ — 8 50.0 —%

ISt Layer 0 COVEIAZE. ..o ieriiieiei ettt e s e 50.0 100.0 65.0%

20d Layer 0f COVETAZE ....c.ooviiveiieeriintitteeei ettt sttt anen 100.0 200.0 95.0%

31d Layer Of COVEIAZE ....veueiririieeiietcieictriete e cen et e ee et ee st se et st senen 200.0 350.0 90.0%
Direct and Specialty Segments:

RELAINE ..ottt ettt et $ — § 3.0 —%

18t Layer O COVEIAZE. .. c.vevueirieeeeiieee e ciree ettt et e e sas bt e 3.0 16.0 100.0%
Life and Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RELAINEA «.entt ettt etttk ettt ea e sas e saeaes $ — 3 8.0 —%

1St Layer Of COVEIagR. ......ciuiiiiriiiieni ettt et b s 8.0 15.0 70.0%

20d Layer OF COVEIAZE ...c.veui ittt ettt et esbs s 15.0 40.0 100.0%

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Preferred segment in 2011 also includes reinsurance coverage for catastrophe
losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those described above. The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Life and
Health Insurance and Direct segments in 2011 also includes reinsurance coverage from FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at
retentions lower than those described above.

Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2010 is provided in various layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Preferred Segment:

RELAINEA ..eeecvevviereter e rcsc e ses s ra st see ekt eesen e seme e ssancsesesebeseeenesen $ — $ 50.0 —%

15t Layer Of COVETAZE......cucviieriineeeiriiec ettt e sttt et et enennen 50.0 100.0 65.0%

20nd Layer OF COVETAZE ...c.veeiviirieircirieeeitni et srete s ettt reses s et e se e resieeenaens 100.0 200.0 95.0%

3rd Layer OFf COVETAZE ..ouvivvieiiuiieiireeririe e cee st eceeste et caesie e s b s e st e esassaessessnebeseeesresens 200.0 350.0 90.0%
Direct and Specialty Segments:

RETAINE ..veeiiieiietieiite it er ettt b et b bt e st aa s s et ebasebsas s nsesssesar et esenanan A — 3 3.0 —%

1St Layer Of COVETAZE. ...t ivioiiiiaieieritesese ettt ettt sre et st sre et st eabesasessesassseentesnees 3.0 16.0 100.0%
Life and Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RETAINEA ...ttt bbb bbb $ — 8 8.0 —%

Ist Layer 0f COVETAZE. .....ccoiiviriiiniicerieeiet ettt et ee sttt 8.0 15.0 88.5%

20d Layer Of COVEIAZE .ovoveuviieiierieceeci ettt e b ettt n st e e eaeais 15.0 40.0 100.0%

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Preferred segment in 2010 also includes reinsurance coverage for catastrophe
losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those described above. The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Life and
Health Insurance and Direct segments in 2010 also includes reinsurance coverage from FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at
retentions lower than those described above.
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NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE (Continued)

Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2009 is provided in various layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Preferred Segment:

RETAINEA ...ttt ettt s b e s s b s sn s e b et $ — $ 50.0 —%

15t Layer Of COVEIAZE. ....cueuemeereeeerieirereceeremccrs ettt er sttt s st es 50.0 100.0 55.4%

2nd Layer Of COVEIAZE ....couvvvuimiricriiiiiiiicniiteiterre et st ss s ssa s ane s 100.0 200.0 95.0%

3rd Layer Of COVETAZE ...c.cvvviiiimiiiiciitircricret sttt s 200.0 350.0 86.6%
Direct and Specialty Segments:

RELAINEM ..ottt et s b ettt ae s st sn bbb enerens $ — $ 2.0 —%

Ist Layer 0f COVETAZE. .....ccuvviiiiiiiriiiinieniiiintt ittt sttt s 2.0 15.0 95.7%
Life and Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RELAINEA ....vovvieieiii ettt b bbbt a et b e ea e s $ — $ 8.0 —%

18t LaAYETr OF COVEIAZE. .. vveeeeineirieeerertiettrneeestise sttt borensrssrssssss et sben bbb serens 8.0 15.0 97.0%

20d Layer OF COVETAZE ...uceueveeereeieuirientinretenieseettsbessisres st sssetecessess et esssteesssbnssenaens 15.0 40.0 100.0%

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Life and Health Insurance and Direct segments in 2009 also includes reinsurance
coverage from FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described above.

In the event that the Company’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by any of its catastrophe reinsurance programs
presented in the three preceding tables exceed the retention for that particular layer, each of the programs required one
reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers
to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium is a percentage of the original
premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit.

Catastrophe reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary reinsurance programs, the Preferred NC Program and the FHCF
reduced earned premiums for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009

PIETEITEA ....vovervviereeiieresietsess ettt b s s b s s r bbb b b $ 200 $ 219 § 224
SPECIALLY .ottt s bbb bbb enene 0.1 0.3 0.3
D=1 Ao UOPUPPOUTPORUIPPOIOt 0.8 0.8 1.5
Life and Health INSUFANCE .......cveveririeeieniiieirieneniiictierintc st et eress e er e 2.3 3.6 43
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiums..........ccocoovvviviviniiniinnenneneicceceneen $ 232 § 266 $ 285

Catastrophe reinsurance premiums for the year ended December 31, 2011 for the Life and Health Insurance segment in the
preceding table includes a reduction of $0.2 million in the Company’s estimated reinsurance reinstatement premiums for prior
years. Catastrophe reinsurance premiums for the Life and Health Insurance segment in the preceding table includes reinsurance
reinstatement premiums of $0.6 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, to
reinstate coverage following certain hurricanes.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (including development), net of reinsurance recoveries, for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 by business segment are presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009

PIEICITEA ¢.vovveeeeee ettt bbbttt b et st $ 1387 $ 652 $ 293
SPECIANILY ..ttt ettt eb et b e es Rk b ea bR bbb b 3.9 3.0 4.2
DIFECE cvviveeriireeeeeireet et et e s te e e et e e e et e et e bt e b e st e st e nae e e ueshsemes s heesbs s b e sbe s sans e b e e b e e be e b e b s e b et s eanenanens 7.2 2.0 34
Life and Health INSUANCE ...ccccovuieuiiiieeerieeiietesieeerieeer ettt st eas et sasene s eanaas 7.6 7.9 6.6
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..o $ 1574 § 781 §$§ 435
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NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE (Continued)

Total Catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $6.4 million, $1.2 million
and $18.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Preferred segment reported
favorable catastrophe reserve development of $5.5 million, $4.9 million and $18.3 million for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Life and Health Insurance segment reported adverse catastrophe reserve development of
$3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, and favorable catastrophe reserve development of $1.5 million and $0.1
million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2009, respectively.

In the second quarter of 2011, the United States experienced a high volume of spring storms, including a record level of
tornadoes in April. In the third quarter of 2011, the Company incurred claims related to Hurricane Irene. Catastrophe losses and
LAE for the year ended December 31, 2011 include $22.1 million related to Hurricane Irene, of which $21.2 million is included
in the Preferred segment.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, the Preferred segment experienced a higher severity of catastrophe
losses, due in part to a catastrophe loss of $12.9 million resulting from damage caused by hail in the state of Arizona in the
fourth quarter of 2010. No major hurricanes that significantly impacted the Company made landfall in the United States during
2010 or 2009.

Insurance Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 includes a reduction of expense of $2.8 million due to a decrease in
the Company’s estimate of its share of assessments from TWIA.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of actual reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. The Company’s
estimates of direct catastrophe losses are generally based on inspections by claims adjusters and historical loss development
experience for areas that have not been inspected or for claims that have not yet been reported. The Company’s estimates of
direct catastrophe losses are based on the coverages provided by its insurance policies. The Company’s homeowners and
dwellings insurance policies do not provide coverage for losses caused by floods, but generally provide coverage for physical
damage caused by wind or wind driven rain. Accordingly, the Company’s estimates of direct losses for homeowners and
dwellings insurance do not include losses caused by flood. Depending on the policy, automobile insurance may provide
coverage for losses caused by flood. Estimates of the number and severity of claims ultimately reported are influenced by many
variables, including, but not limited to, repair or reconstruction costs and determination of cause of loss, that are difficult to
quantify and will influence the final amount of claim settlements. All these factors, coupled with the impact of the availability
of labor and material on costs, require significant judgment in the reserve setting process. A change in any one or more of these
factors is likely to result in an ultimate net claim cost different from the estimated reserve. The Company’s estimates of indirect
losses from residual market assessments are based on a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, actual or estimated
assessments provided by or received from the assessing entity, insurance industry estimates of losses, and estimates of the
Company’s market share in the assessable states. Actual assessments may differ materially from these estimated amounts.

NOTE 21. OTHER REINSURANCE

In addition to the reinsurance programs described in Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide
greater diversification of risk and to minimize exposures on larger risks. The ceding of insurance does not discharge the primary
liability of the original insurer. Accordingly, insurance reserve liabilities are reported gross of any estimated recovery from
reinsurers in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with
the insurance reserve liability and are included in Other Receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Earned Premiums ceded on long-duration and short-duration policies were not material for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009. Certain insurance subsidiaries assume business from other insurance companies and involuntary pools. Earned
Premiums assumed on long-duration and short-duration policies for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2011 2010 2009
Earned Premiums Assumed From:
CAPILOL. 1+ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt s e s ee et et s et b eaeae bt esererea st eben e ea et b enerereaen $ 279 $ 301 §$ 358
ORCC et ettt ettt et et ee e st e e e e st e et b eeaeereeenese e et e staearenaesatenaesnes 9.0 9.6 10.2
OBBET ..ottt ettt ettt e st e et s b ere bt et et s bt esb et s eas s b et et antens ettt eae et et eneeaes 6.8 6.0 5.4
Total Earned Premiums ASSUME...........c.ccoovvveuiviirieeenieeceseceeses et s eeneneeenenns $ 437 § 457 $§ 514
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NOTE 21. OTHER REINSURANCE (Continued)

Trinity and Capitol are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by
Capitol. Capitol is a mutual insurance company and, accordingly, is owned by its policyholders. five employees of the
Company serve as directors of Capitol’s five member board of directors. nine employees of the Company also serve as directors
of Capitol’s wholly owned subsidiary’s, ORCC’s, nine member board of directors. Trinity and ORCC are parties to a quota
share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by ORCC. Kemper’s subsidiary, United
Insurance, provides claims and administrative services to Capitol and ORCC. In addition, agents appointed by Kemper’s
subsidiary, Reliable, and employed by United Insurance, are also appointed by Capitol and ORCC to sell property insurance
products. The Company also provides certain investment services to Capitol and ORCC.

NOTE 22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company classifies its Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities as available for sale and reports these
investments at fair value. The Company classifies certain investments in mutual funds included in Other Investments as trading
securities and reports these investments at fair value. The Company has no material liabilities that are measured and reported at
fair value.

The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2011 is
summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable Fair Value
Assets Inputs Inputs Dec. 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2011
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTITIES c..vveeiee et $ 153.6 $ 3381 S — 3 491.7
States and Political Subdivisions ...........c.ceeeveeene. — 1,852.6 — 1,852.6
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOteS.......covvuvreeeeerrreeeeniirrreeceenreeens — 2,107.2 235.1 2,342.3
Redeemable Preferred Stocks........ccceeceevecinnnen. — 75.6 6.1 81.7
Mortgage and Asset Backed..........c..cccciiiie — 4.8 0.3 51
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities ........c...coevennee. 153.6 4,378.3 241.5 4,773.4
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 86.7 — 86.7
Other INAUSIIIES ...veeveeeeenreieeieieer e — 14.9 5.6 20.5
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........cceeeeveerirrereernerenreseensesneseenne 74.7 5.0 3.7 834
Other Industries .....oeeveverieneenireeeceeeeeeeieae 42.8 — 4.2 47.0
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.....c..coccoveveniiennneencnns 66.6 — — 66.6
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships......ocveeeeeeneeneenereeieeneeeece e — _ 93.1 93.1
Total Investments in Equity Securities............c.......... 184.1 106.6 106.6 3973
Other Investments:
Trading SeCUrities ........coceovevrirecrincniecrnenirennne 4.4 — — 4.4
TOtAL ettt $ 3421 8§ 4,4849 $ 348.1 $ 5,175.1
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NOTE 22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2010 is
summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable Fair Value
Assets Inputs Inputs Dec. 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2010
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUTNOTIHIES ..ovvveeeeerierr et eee e e $ 281.0 §$ 2559 $ — 3 536.9
States and Political Subdivisions .............cceevvennee. — 1,792.8 — 1,792.8
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOES......ccccevevirvrnveieerecieniiiininienns — 1,902.8 146.2 2,049.0
Redeemable Preferred Stocks......ccoecevviiviininn — 83.8 4.5 88.3
Mortgage and Asset Backed...........ccccoininnnnn. — 7.9 04 8.3
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities...........ccovveneen. 281.0 4,043.2 151.1 44753
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 97.7 — 97.7
Other INAUSLIIES ..vevveieeericrireeeescerecrceeesieens e 17.0 10.4 27.4
Common Stocks:
INEEIMEC . .ceeevivereriesieiese ettt 137.5 — — 137.5
Manufacturing ......eevevveeereceeerenreerreneeruesesioennnas 82.9 4.7 2.0 89.6
Other INAUSETIES ....eeveeeeeeeieececeseeerc e 41.5 — 2.3 43.8
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds......ccccceccoiciiiininnns 79.2 — — 79.2
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.....cocoeeeeveeccrcceriveninecniinienn, —_ — 75.2 75.2
Total Investments in Equity Securities ...........c..ce.c.... 341.1 119.4 89.9 550.4
Other Investments:
Trading SeCUrities .....cc.evvereerrereerincniiniiniiniiinenn 5.1 — — 5.1
TOUAL ecvvieieeieieee ettt b et $ 6272 $ 4,162.6 $ 2410 $ 5,030.8

The Company’s investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 1 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 1 in the two
preceding tables consist of either investments in publicly-traded common stocks, or exchange traded funds. The Company’s
investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of investments in
corporate bonds and redeemable preferred stocks, state and municipal bonds, and bonds and mortgage-backed securities of U.S.
government agencies. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables
primarily consist of investments in preferred stocks. The Company uses a leading, nationally recognized provider of market
data and analytics to price the vast majority of the Company’s Level 2 measurements. The provider utilizes evaluated pricing
models that vary by asset class and incorporate available trade, bid and other market information. Because many fixed maturity
securities do not trade on a daily basis, the provider’s evaluated pricing applications apply available information through
processes such as benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector groupings, and matrix pricing to prepare
evaluations. In addition, the provider uses model processes to develop prepayment and interest rate scenarios. The pricing
provider’s models and processes also take into account market convention. For each asset class, teams of its evaluators gather
information from market sources and integrate relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news into
the evaluated pricing applications and models. The Company generally validates the measurements obtained from its primary
pricing provider by comparing them with measurements obtained from one additional pricing provider that provides either
prices from recent market transactions or quotes in inactive markets or evaluations based on its own proprietary models.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The Company investigates significant differences related to the values provided. On completion of its investigation,
management exercises judgment to determine the price selected and whether adjustments, if any, to the price obtained from the
Company’s primary pricing provider would warrant classification of the price as Level 3. In instances where a measurement
cannot be obtained from either pricing provider, the Company generally will evaluate bid prices from one or more binding
quotes obtained from market makers to value investments in inactive markets and classified by the Company as Level 2. The
Company generally classifies securities when it receives non-binding quotes or indications as Level 3 securities unless the
Company can validate the quote or indication against recent transactions in the market. For securities classified as Level 3, the
Company either uses valuations provided by third party fund managers, third party appraisers or the Company’s own internal
valuations. These valuations typically employ valuation techniques, including earning multiples based on comparable public
securities, industry specific non-earnings based multiples or discounted cash flow models. Valuations classified as Level 3 by
the Company generally consist of investments in various private placement securities of non-rated entities. In rare cases, if the
private placement security has only been outstanding for a short amount of time, the Company, after considering the initial
assumptions used in acquiring an investment, considers the original purchase price as representative of the fair value.

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2011 is presented below:

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Mortgage Preferred
Bonds Redeemable and and Other
and Preferred Asset Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Backed Stocks Interests Total
Balance at Beginning of Year.........cccococeennee. $ 1462 $ 45 §$ 04 $ 147 § 752§ 2410
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated Statement of
INCOME ..o, 0.7) —_ — 4.5 4.3 8.1
Included in Other Comprehensive Income 34 1.6 — 3.1) 6.2) “4.3)
Purchases .......cccoooeeeeeivecceeeeeeeeeecceeee e 131.6 — — 35 393 174.4
Settlements......ccoueeeereeveeeiecrenreeeerecieereerenea (50.3) — 0.1) 0.4) (19.5) (70.3)
SALES ..ot 0.5) — — 6.7 — 6.2)
Transfers into Level 3 from Level 2............... 54 — —_— — — 54
Balance at December 31, 2011 .......ccccouveueee. $ 2351 $ 61 $ 03 § 135 § 93.1 $§ 348.1

—— e e e e e e

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. Transfers between levels 1
and 2 were not significant for the year ended December 31, 2011. Included in Other Equity Interests at December 31, 2011 in
the preceding table is $84.1 million of private equity funds and mezzanine debt funds which the Company has unfunded
commitments of $77.1 million. These funds cannot be redeemed, instead distributions are received through the liquidation of
the underlying investments of the fund. It is estimated that the assets of these funds will be liquidated and distributed to the
Company between 2012 and 2021.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2010 is presented below:

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Mortgage Preferred
Bonds Redeemable and and Other
and Preferred Asset Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Backed Stocks Interests Total
Balance at Beginning of Year........cceevvvveeruenen § 1248 § 70.1 § 49 § 140 3 391 § 2529
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated Statement of
INCOME .. 4.0) (7.0) — (1.8) 0.7 (12.1)
Included in Other Comprehensive Income 8.9 2.5 (1. 4.8 16.1 31.2
Purchases ........ooeveereeerieneieieineee e 435 6.6 — 1.3 21.0 72.4
Settlements.......c..ovvveireveriinniieeereeeene (26.9) 67.7) (0.3) (3.6) .7 (100.2)
SAlES...uiitiieceee e (0.3) —_ — — — (0.3)
Transfers Into Level 3 from Level 2............... 0.2 - — — — 0.2
Transfers out of Level 3 into Level 2 ............. — — 3.1 — - (3.1)
Balance at End of Period .........cccccoevveeviiniinnne $ 1462 $ 45 $% 04 $ 147 $ 752 $  241.0

Transfers between levels 1 and 2 were not significant for the year ended December 31, 2010. Included in Other Equity Interests
at December 31, 2010 in the preceding table is $59.1 million of private equity funds and mezzanine debt funds which the
company has unfunded commitments of $68.6 million. These funds cannot be redeemed, instead distributions are received
through the liquidation of the underlying investments of the fund. It is estimated that the assets of these funds will be liquidated
and distributed to the Company between 2011 and 2021.

NOTE 23. CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of its businesses, the Company is involved in legal proceedings, including lawsuits, regulatory
examinations and inquiries. Based on currently available information, the Company does not believe that it is reasonably
possible that any of its pending legal proceedings will have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

NOTE 24. RELATED PARTIES

One of Kemper’s directors, Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is the Chairman of the Board, President and the majority shareholder of FS&C,
a registered investment advisory firm. In the second quarter of 2010, Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, entered into an agreement
with FS&C whereby FS&C provides investment management services with respect to certain assets of Trinity for a fee based
on the fair market value of the assets under management. Such agreement is terminable by either party at any time upon 30 days
advance written notice. At December 31, 2011, Trinity had $115.2 million in assets managed by FS&C. Investment Expenses
incurred in connection with such agreement were $0.3 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. FS&C did not provide investment management services to Trinity in 2009,

FS&C also provides investment management services with respect to certain funds of the Company’s defined benefit pension
plans. The Company’s defined benefit pension plans had $107.1 million, $98.3 million and $84.3 million, in assets managed by
FS&C at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company’s defined benefit pension plans incurred, in the
aggregate, expenses of $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 million to FS&C for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

With respect to the Company’s defined contribution plans, one of the alternative investment choices afforded to participating
employees is the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund, an open-end, diversified managed investment fund. FS&C provides investment
management services to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund as a sub-investment advisor. According to published reports filed by
FS&C with the SEC, the Dreytfus Appreciation Fund pays monthly fees to FS&C according to a graduated schedule computed
at an annual rate based on the value of the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund’s average daily net assets. The Company does not
compensate FS&C for services provided to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. Participants in the Company’s defined contribution
plans had allocated $19.3 million, $18.2 miltion and $16.9 million for investment in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund at
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 24. RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, representing 7%, 6% and 7% of the total amount invested in the Company’s
defined contribution plans at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Kemper’s Life and Health Insurance segment paid $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $0.2 million to Intermec for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, for the maintenance of hand held computers previously purchased from the
Company’s former investee, Intermec.

The Company believes that the transactions described above have been provided on terms no less favorable to the Company
than could have been negotiated with non-affiliated third parties.

As described in Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company also has certain
relationships with Capitol, a mutual insurance company which is owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, ORCC.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

Year
Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
Revenues:
Earned Premiums.........cooovveeuieoeeiereeieriecre e e e eaeeseeesenaee e cans $ 5460 $ 5481 $ 5430 $ 5365 $2,173.6
Net Investment INCOME..........cocouvrrrerrrriiereereneee et 81.2 82.9 58.6 75.3 298.0
Other INCOME .....ccoiiiriiiririeee et 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.2 1.0
Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of Investments ................ 14.2 17.8 4.2) 5.9 33.7
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses........c............ 0.49) (1.3) 5.0) “.7) (11.4)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
TRCOME ....c.eetiireciiitcctt sttt st se e e — — — 0.1 0.1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........ccoovvereenene 0.49) (1.3) (5.0) (4.6) (11.3)
TOtal REVENUES ......cveiriviieeiiriirirecieieietaaeri vt eaanaesseesesteanreeenens 641.2 647.7 592.8 613.3  2,495.0
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPenses.......cceecevrerrerenenisenrnrnieieceieenienceseenes 392.3 477.1 399.6 376.7 1,645.7
Insurance EXPENSes ......c.covvevriercciiiieeceicniineecereieeeseeeeeees 161.9 166.3 172.6 168.5 669.3
Write-off of Other Intangibles Acquired..........cccoenvevericenenenn — — — 13.5 13.5
Interest and Other EXPenses .....cocecveerirecrirereeeieeeeeereveensenees 19.7 20.9 21.4 21.9 83.9
TOtal EXPENSES....cccovriireirieeciriniiicieeetrcniesees e seese st s b e 573.9 664.3 593.6 580.6 24124
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.. 67.3 (16.6) (0.8) 32.7 82.6
Income Tax Benefit (EXPense).....c..cceecrurerrrvirereenerreereesseseeressannens 19.7) 10.0 4.6 (6.6) L7
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations ..........c.c.eecereeecereeeernnnns 47.6 (6.6) 38 26.1 70.9
Discontinued Operations:
Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes..... 94 93 0.6 0.2 19.5
Income Tax Benefit (EXPense)......ccuvieeiiceerivevisineireseceeeseennes 2.9 (3.2) 0.3 0.9) 6.7
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations .............ccceecevveurvvvennnne 6.5 6.1 0.9 0.7 12.8
Net INCome (LLOSS) ....crceeereireerineeiereeerirrreireeesreeneeseenaereeesaanneeenee $ 541 8§ (05 $ 47 $ 254 $ 837
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted -
SRATE: ..ottt e
BaSIC .ttt e e e $ 078 $ (011) $ 006 $ 043 $§ 1.17
DiIULEd ...t e $ 078 § (011) $ 006 $ 043 § 1.17
Net Income (Loss) Per Unrestricted Share:
BaSIC .ttt et e $ 089 $ (001 S 008 $ 042 $ 138
DAl ..o $0.89 8 (0.01) $ 0,08 0.42 1.38
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share..........cccooccevivereeeninennn. $ 024 § 024 $ 0.24 0.24 0.96

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares
outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited) (Continued)

Year
Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOQUNTS 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
Revenues:
Earned PIEMIUIIS. ......ccoovviiiieeieeiereeeeeeeteeeeseseessentesteseeesseesresesenens $ 5815 $ 35781 $§ 5682 $ 561.6 $2,2894
Net Investment INCOME........c..cocervreerreeerrenieniniesesieseceeneesnenees 80.3 81.3 79.4 84.7 325.7
OtheT INCOME ...ttt esaest e ebe et r e ebe s enes 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.3 1.3
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments...........cccccccvereueennee 4.5 2.9 7.2 28.0 42.6
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses..................... (6.2) 4.1 (3.6) (3.8) (17.7)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
(INCOME) LIOSS ..cnveeieeiiecieeccee ettt a e 3.0 (0.8) (1.0) — 1.2
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings......................... (3.2) 4.9) (4.6) (3.8) (16.5)
TOtal REVENUES ......cvivieeeeieeieeeee ettt st 663.4 657.7 650.6 670.8 2,642.5
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPEnses........c.c.cvueueueeerereeeresnrermrenseressesesessssosens 417.1 419.1 403.9 407.1 1,647.2
Insurance EXPEnses .....ccoveveererueneeenerieneninceenenie s aensensesaeseenes 168.5 169.4 168.9 168.7 675.5
Write-0off 0f GOOdWIlL.....c..ccoreiiiciicicccren e e — — 14.8 — 14.8
Interest and Other EXPenses .......c.ccocvveevevevrenreresrenesesreceeeeeninn, 16.4 17.4 16.1 18.4 68.3
TOtal EXPENSES.....cueoveeieueiereeeieneieeneeateteeneeeese s essssnsesansesessesnasens 602.0 605.9 603.7 594.2 2,405.8
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and
Equity in Net Loss 0f IDVEStEe........cccoueueeeeeineeenineiernienseneesnna 61.4 51.8 46.9 76.6 236.7
Income Tax EXPense ........cccccriverrecinieciineneeieee st eenes 17.4) (14.9) (14.3) (20.9) (67.5)
Income from Continuing Operations before Equity in Net Income
(L08S) OF INVESLEE ...t 44.0 36.9 32.6 55.7 169.2
Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee ..........ccccecvevevenrivervevennnne. 0.7 (0.5) 0.3) — 0.1)
Income from Continuing OPerations..........c.cceeeeeererereresreesenesesenns 44.7 36.4 323 55.7 169.1
Discontinued Operations:
Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes..... 5.6 2.5 5.6 12.1 25.8
Income Tax EXPEnSe.......ccccvevieriirenieirenienreneineerrsseeseessensseseennas 2.1 (1.1 2.2) 4.9) (10.3)
Income from Discontinued Operations ............cc.eceveveereerrererennennn 35 1.4 34 7.2 15.5
NEt INCOME ...ttt es ettt b s st en st $ 482 § 378 $ 357 $ 629 § 1846
Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share: -
BASIC ..ttt $§ 072 § 059 § 052 § 091 § 273
DHIUEEA ..veveveseveveenrsssneessesess s ssssrsssseessssessssess e $ 072 8 059 § 052 § 091 § 273
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share:
BASIC ..ottt $ 077 § 061 $ 058 $ 1.03 § 298
DiIULEA ...oveevvveveevivemionienesseneseesmnmneensnsssssenssssssnsssssssnesesseessenennennens. 9 077§ 061§ 058 $  1.03 § 298
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share...........ccccoervreeievrennnnee. $§ 022 § 022 $§ 022 $§ 022 $ 088

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares
outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KEMPER CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kemper Corporation (formerly Unitrin, Inc.) and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2011. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in Item 15. We also have audited the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management
is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management Report on Internal Control. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and financial statement schedules and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth herein. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of recognizing and presenting
other-than-temporary impairments in 2009.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 17,2012
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not Applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(¢) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms, and accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2011 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We, as management of the Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, a company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

*  Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

*  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

*  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on
the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, we have concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2011.

The independent registered public accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP, as auditors of Kemper’s consolidated financial
statements, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of management’s internal control over financial reporting based
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

/s/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL /s/ DENNIS R. VIGNEAU
Donald G. Southwell Dennis R. Vigneau
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 17, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The attestation report of the independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is included in Item & under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None
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PART III

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Election of Directors,”
“Kemper Executive Officers,” “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock” and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement
for Kemper’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Kemper plans to file such proxy statement within 120 days after
December 31, 2011, the end of Kemper’s fiscal year.

Kemper’s code of ethics applicable to its chief executive officer, chief financial officer and principal accounting officer (“Code
of Ethics for Senior Financial Executives”) is posted in the “Governance” section of Kemper’s website, kemper.com. Kemper
also intends to disclose any future amendments to, and any waivers from (though none are anticipated), the Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Executives in the “Governance” section of its website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Executive Compensation,”
“Executive Officer Compensation and Benefits,” “Director Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” and “Compensation Committee Report” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The Compensation Committee Report to be included in such Proxy Statement shall be deemed to be furnished in
this report and shall not be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act as a
result of such furnishing in this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item is set forth in the table below and incorporated herein by reference to the section
captioned “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans
Plan Category Warrants and Rights ‘Warrants and Rights or Programs
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Security HOlders.......ooceremrecceeercncnieirineeniennes 3,632,398 $ 40.70 9,900,450
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Security Holders........cocoecivueenneccruenenreennnnennne — — —
TOtAL.eeieeieiereeeecenrereecer e 3,632,398 $ 40.70 9,900,450

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Related Person
Transactions” and “Director Independence” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned “Independent Registered Public
Accountant” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report

1.

Financial Statements. The consolidated balance sheets of Kemper and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and
the consolidated statements of income, cash flows and shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, together with the notes thereto and the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP thereon
appearing in Item 8 are included in this 2011 Annual Report.

Financial Statement Schedules. The following five financial statement schedules are included on the pages immediately
following the signature pages hereof. Schedules not listed here have been omitted because they are not applicable or not
material or the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Schedule I Investments Other Than Investments in Related Parties

Schedule IT Parent Company Financial Statements

Schedule III Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule IV Reinsurance Schedule

Schedule VI Supplemental Information Concerning Property-Casualty Insurance Operations

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, with regards to the Financial
Statement Schedules listed above, is incorporated by reference to the Report of Independent Registered Public Accountant
included in Item 8.

Exhibits. The following exhibits are either filed as a part hereof or are incorporated by reference. Exhibit numbers
correspond to the numbering system in Item 601 of Regulation S-K. Exhibits 10.1 through 10.25 relate to compensatory
plans incorporated by reference as exhibits hereto pursuant to Item 15(b) of Form 10-K.

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Kemper's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed August 29, 2011).

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Kemper's Current Report on
Form 8-K filed August 29, 2011).

4.1 Rights Agreement between Kemper and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. as successor Rights Agent, including
the Form of Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, the
Form of Rights Certificate and the Summary of Rights to Purchase Preferred Stock, dated as of August 4, 2004 and
amended May 4, 2006 and October 9, 2006. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Kemper's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed August 3, 2009).

4.2 Indenture dated as of June 26, 2002, by and between Kemper and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as
successor trustee to BNY Midwest Trust Company, as Trustee (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Kemper’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 14, 2007).

43 Officers’ Certificate, including form of Senior Note with respect to Kemper's 6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Kemper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 14, 2007).

44 Officers’ Certificate, including the form of Senior Note with respect to Kemper's 6.00% Senior Notes due
November 30, 2015 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Kemper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed
November 24, 2010).

10.1 Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective February 3, 2009
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Kemper's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed February 4, 2009).

10.2  Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective February 1, 2006 (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4, 2011).

10.3  Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective February 3, 2009 (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Kemper's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed February 4, 2009).

10.4  Kemper 2005 Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Plan, as amended and restated effective February 3, 2009
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed February 4, 2009).

10.5  Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011 (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2, 2011).

10.6  Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as of
February 1, 2006 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed May 4, 2011).
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22
10.23

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as of
February 3, 2009 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Kemper's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
February 4, 2009).

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement under the Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as of February 1, 2006
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4, 2011).

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement under the Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as of February 1, 2006
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4, 2011).

Form of Stock Option Agreement (including stock appreciation rights) under the Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan,
as of February 1, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Kemper's Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed February 3, 2011).

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Kemper 2005 Restricted Stock and Restricted
Stock Unit Plan, as of February 1, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Kemper's Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed February 3, 2011).

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Kemper 2005 Restricted Stock and
Restricted Stock Unit Plan, as of February 1, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Kemper's
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed February 3, 2011).

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity
Plan, as of August 25, 2011.

Kemper Pension Equalization Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011 (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2, 2011).

Kemper Defined Contribution Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2,
2011).

Kemper Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2,
2011).

Kemper is a party to individual severance agreements (the form of which, as amended and restated effective August
25,2011, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November
2, 2011) with the following executive officers:

Donald G. Southwell (Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer)

John M. Boschelli (Vice President and Chief Investment Officer)

Lisa M. King (Vice President — Human Resources)

Edward J. Konar (Vice President)

Christopher L. Moses (Vice President and Treasurer)

Scott Renwick (Senior Vice President and General Counsel)

Richard Roeske (Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer)

Dennis J. Sandelski (Vice President — Tax)

Frank J. Sodaro (Vice President — Planning and Analysis)

Dennis R. Vigneau (Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Each of the foregoing agreements is identical except that the severance compensation multiple is 3.0 for Mr.
Southwell and 2.0 for the other executive officers.

Kemper Severance Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2, 2011).

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011 (Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2, 2011).

Form of Annual Incentive Award Agreement under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as of January 31,
2012.

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as of January
31, 2012.

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of August 25, 2011.

Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of August 25,
2011.
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10.24

10.25

10.26

12
21
23
24
31.1
31.2
321

322

101.1
101.2
101.3
101.4
101.5
101.6

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as
of January 31, 2012.

Kemper is a party to individual Indemnification and Expense Advancement Agreements with each of its directors,
as amended and restated effective February 1, 2012 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Kemper's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 6, 2012).

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2009, by and among Kemper, the lenders party thereto, Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, swing line lender and issuing lender, and JP Morgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as syndication agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Kemper's Quarterly report on Form
10-Q filed November 2, 2009).

Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney (included on the signature page hereof)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K).

XBRL Instance

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

(b) Exhibits. Included in Item 15(a)3 above
(c) Financial Statement Schedules. Included in Item 15(a)2 above
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below on the following page hereby appoints each of Donald G. Southwell, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, Dennis R. Vigneau, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and Scott
Renwick, Senior Vice President and General Counsel, so long as such individual remains an executive officer of Kemper
Corporation, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact with authority together or individually to execute in the name of each such
signatory, and with authority to file with the SEC, any and all amendments to this 2011 Annual Report of Kemper Corporation,
together with any and all exhibits thereto and other documents therewith, necessary or advisable to enable Kemper Corporation
to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations, and requirements of the SEC in
respect thereof, which amendments may make such other changes in the 2011 Annual Report as the aforesaid attorney-in-fact
executing the same deems appropriate.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Kemper Corporation has duly caused this
2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, on February 17, 2012.

KEMPER CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of Kemper Corporation in the capacities indicated on February 17, 2012.

Signature

/S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL

Donald G. Southwell

/S/ DENNIS R. VIGNEAU

Dennis R. Vigneau

/S/ RICHARD ROESKE

Richard Roeske

/S/ JAMES E. ANNABLE

James E. Annable

/S/ DOUGLAS G. GEOGA

Douglas G. Geoga

/S/ REUBEN L. HEDLUND

Reuben L. Hedlund

/S/ JULIE M. HOWARD

Julie M. Howard

/S/ WAYNE KAUTH

Wayne Kauth

/S/ FAYEZ S. SAROFIM

Fayez S. Sarofim

/S/ DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch

/S/ RICHARD C. VIE

Richard C. Vie

Title

Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(principal executive officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer)

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (principal

accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Financial Statement Schedules and Selected Exhibits



KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

DECEMBER 31, 2011
(Dollars in Millions)

SCHEDULE ]

Amount
Amortized Carried in
Cost Fair Value  Balance Sheet
Fixed Maturities:
Bonds and Notes:
United States Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.............. § 4394 § 4917 § 491.7
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS ...c...ceeeiiieercriiiriieneenieieesesseeeeeeeereseeinesseenveans 1,705.0 1,852.6 1,852.6
Corporate Securities:
Other Bonds and NOLES .......couveeriieiieiieecie e cieerre e e estaeeveeesr e e seeeans 2,045.0 2,347.4 2,347.4
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ......ovvvveeeniiiiseeeecieste e ceenaeeee s eaeinenes 76.7 81.7 81.7
Total Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s. ..........ovrreiiievnriieieeiieerieee st eeee et ereeas 4,266.1 4,773.4 4,773.4
Equity Securities:
Preferred StOCKS ...ovi iiiiieeet et eectee ettt eses b e s e et e saaesese e neeeabeeabeeas 112.4 107.2 107.2
COMMON STOCKS ..c-tuvivraverereeuerrivearsentetesessesisesesteassessassssesesteseseamensesensasessssentesessasaneans 106.0 130.4 130.4
Other EQUILY INEEIESLS ... ..eecieiireirirerieiete e esve s ern ettt sreae e et esess e seeneeseesesassrennes 148.9 159.7 159.7
Total Investments in Equity SECUTIIEs......covcceiviirinecniiiricnine s 367.3 3973 397.3
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative
Undistributed Earnings .......cococoovevvrrercrieinrinreeieecinnresissesestsessrassssseesasnssesssssssssasnssesens 306.3 XXX.X 306.3
Loans, Real Estate and Other INVESIMENLS .......cccvevvivreeieetinriiesieeeeraereeeesesieeneccnens 498.3 XXX.X 498.3
Short-term INVESLIMENES ......cccvvveeieiiecerierrieiiesiete e seeresreeessessesseseasesaessassessessansesnans 247.4 XXX.X 247.4
TOtA]l INVESLIMIEILS. c.vvevenerierreeesieeeisiteeesnreeeetreeestreeenrtesesreseenseassssesnraaseseseseesssrsesssnseesinsesins $ 5,685.4 $ 62227

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

SCHI-1
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in Millions)

December 31,

SCHEDULE II

December 31,

2011 2010

ASSETS
INVEStMENLS 11 SUDSIAIATIES .....cuvieveeeeieeietc ettt ettt et e et ete st eseeseeeeeseeseeesesssssesesssssssssssassssessesessans $ 27661 $ 2,840.0
Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Cost: 2011 —$13.1; 2010 — $13.1)0.ccveceevicerieeeeeeeieve e, 13.1 13.2
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2011 — $5.0; 2010 — $5.0)....c.ovviemrevereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeas 43 5.1
ShoTt-term INVESHMENTS .....c.c.vviriererriieieieeeeee st eseteeesteteseees et et seseees s resesesessesotesssensssososasenesmenenenns 77.2 41.8
CASHL .ttt et bttt et et r bt etesar e st teb et en e eeans 1224 0.4
OtheT RECEIVADIES ........oeceerieiririeiciiitiiereierert ettt ese et s s esse et besea s st et assasetssanereneaessossssasaen 5.7 6.4
Deferred INCOME TAXES .......ceueuieiiiieieiitire et seest et ae s s bebe s e st resesseseneneneseasnens 57.6 58.2
OhEr ASSELS .......eeeuiieuieiciticiettis ettt esse bbb e bse bt sstes b e st et sasssesssessssseasssaesesesnetesesanne 5.9 6.7
TOLAL ASSEIS ...cveureereeieteeteete ettt et ettt eteeeeeaeseeateetessenteatosseasaneeseetensenessanee st ensessensassensansensssseaen $ 3,0523 § 29718
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY -
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2017 (Fair Value: 2011 — $370.3; 2010 — $366.2)..........co.......... $ 356.8 $ 356.3
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2015 (Fair Value: 2011 — $262.8; 2010 — $256.1 )....c.cocovnn.e.. 248.2 247.8
Liabilities fOr INCOME TAXES......cvuverrereienererereeteteresese e reses s estesessse et resesssssssssesssssssssssassnseesenenns 85.3 84.3
Liabilities for Benefit PIANS .......ccovovvieerieeeieieiececte e ettt ettt s s stss st e naeann 140.5 162.3
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities .........ccccoveoverenrrrnrenniinnersnsseeeesesesseneessssessssesesesessesssenas 54 7.7
TOtAl LIADIIILIES .....cocecemceciicreieteeeirte sttt et a st nes et n st ensse s sesasanaen 836.2 858.4
Shareholders’ Equity:

COMMON SLOCK ...ttt b e ettt re st sesesesssbese s et smnenssenens 6.0 6.1

Additional Paid-in Capital...........cc.veevueveerereinreiieeeeerere ettt eetere st et ses st s en e 743.9 751.1

Retained EAITINES .....c.c.oveiriirierrieiiirisieteeteieiere s e st e s e nossssas s bessess st esese s s e snns 1,208.2 1,198.8

Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME ...........cciiveivieneivieniriceiricee et eeene 258.0 157.4
Total SharehOlders’ EQUILY.........c.ceeueurieirrierinirieineseeiersisiesesinsssssessesessssesesesssassesssssssssssssssssssssssssas 2,216.1 2,113.4
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EQUItY........c...ovvivirermeeeeiririeeeeeee et reneseneseeseesseneen $ 30523 $§ 29718

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009
(Dollars in Millions)

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net INVESTMENE INCOME. 1.vevveurerenceriaicirieetesetneseteie ettt s besae b seaetsesetseseessansasessscsneas $ 04 $ 17§ 2.2
Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of INVESTMENLS ........covvveuerrieierriinenireeeenienceeerneeenes 0.2) 0.5 1.4
TOLAl REVEIUES ....coveeiiereieerenieentinieicstectetsessestestessese st essesetesaentestcetessessensassensenssnessassessesanes 0.2 2.2 3.6
INEETESt EXPEIISE......eiitieiieiirririereciireest ettt s sie st s see st e s ae b e sse s esaeabasseseasasentessaassansesaeanes 39.4 34.1 33.2
Other Operating (INCOME) EXPENSES ....covrueuiriiuiriiiinieririeirieretneeeniienetescetsne et sseseeneatsveneone 10.3 43 0.4)
Total OPerating EXPENSES.......c.eruvueurrrereriererinesteretreetesereseestosesessestesassesesiesessesessessssssessesssens 49.7 384 32.8
Loss before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries..........cccoceevevccrcccenene. (49.5) (36.2) (29.2)
Income Tax Benefit.......ccovriiiiieirirecienrr ettt s st e st et saesaass et eanan 18.6 13.0 10.4
Loss before Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries..........ccccvevieereecnennncceceniniesc e (30.9) (23.2) (18.8)
Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries..........cevvimneciiineriniineicerineercirecseee st 114.6 207.8 183.5
NELINCOIME «....voireerecieerernieiererereies et eacseasse bbb st senensasessses s abesensasessensaesenssensasasacsene $ 837 § 1846 $ 1647

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009
(Dollars in Millions)

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Operating Activities:
NEEINCOME.....ceviieiieririieritete ittt st et e e aeae sate b eesesbasb e sbearenesnssnenssresssssens $ 837 § 1846 $ 164.7
Adjustment Required to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations:
Equity in Net Income of SubSidiaries ..........c.cocviveerreerereereneinienesesesiecsnsenesieseereeens (114.6) (207.8) (183.5)
Cash Dividends from SubSidiaries.........cecevveeiereeirenireniicreireniennesieneesese e sesiensens 70.8 147.4 184.4
Cash Received for Benefit Plan from Subsidiary .............coceeenvnvennicncnencnrneneneenn — — 41.2
Cash Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan ..........ccoecvvveieveeiinenineneeccnennereecrennes 32.2) (15.0) —
Net Realized (Gains) Losses on Sales of Investments...........cocccvvvereneneeneennrennenene 0.2 (0.5) (1.4)
OhEr, NEL....coveiieiicretei ettt sttt ne 355 (10.8) 45.7)
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACHVILIES........oveveveuerereriirreereeieeeiseeiereeesessereseeseseerenene 43.4 97.9 159.7
Investing Activities:
Capital Contributed t0 SUDSIAIAIIES . .vevvvverrieieererierenireeteeerteretsess e asse e ebeeens — (110.0) (25.0)
Capital Distribution from SUDSIAIArY.........ceeuvveeveereririerieceieeeeneer e sener e 250.0 — —
Maturity of Note Receivable from SubSidiary......cocecceeeeievvereneniecieieeenriseseesesseseeneeenns — 20.0 —
Purchases of FiXed MEatULIHES .........ccocevirieieruererireriiieenreissreseeseesesessessstesssaeiessesannsseseriensns — (13.1) —
Purchases of Common Stocks from SubSidiary.........cccceveeeeerireerereiiensseeiineeree e (50.8) — —
Sales Of COMMON SEOCKS ...c.vveriiirirecerieriistrreteereeaeesseseressesteesaensseseseesensesansesesesssessene — — 0.6
Change in Short-term INVESTMENTS .....ccoevverririreceniiecrrier e cese et er e sreeeseens (35.4) 10.5 (42.4)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing ACtiVILies.......ecueeerrieeeeniniennanerienierenienesseneseenens 163.8 (92.6) (66.8)
Financing Activities:
Notes Payable Proceeds:
Senior Notes Payable ISSUE..........cccooiririirneeiieeieerceeete et — 247.8 —
Revolving Credit AGrEemeNnt ........ccoevuveeriuerirreeereetrieteiereneerene e reesteseseseessesenesasenesesens 95.0 140.0 220.0
Notes Payable Payments:
Senior Notes Payable Repaid........cccoovoeeuiiieeerniiieccr e svense s — (200.0) —
Revolving Credit AGIeemENt .........o.vvvveveeeiiecererteieseeieversesneseessseesesesaessesseassessesnans (95.0) (140.0) (220.0)
Cash Dividends Paid..........cooueorriiiiieeieii ettt ettt er e as e st e (58.2) (54.6) (66.6)
Common Stock REPUICHASES ........cveveirieriircirieieierert ettt ettt na s sene e 274) (344 —
EXercise of StOCK OPLIONS .....cevvierireeeeiieiinietcr ettt ettt st s sssnasssesessseacn 0.2 0.5 —
Excess Tax Benefits on Share Based AWArds.........ccveevevuerieererrirenieneesrernsnsessesseensens 0.2 0.2 0.1
Net Cash Used by FInancing ACtIVILIES........ccuvveiececerrrnrernesseesreeesiensssseessrsressasasssssersssrenes (85.2) (40.5) (66.5)
Increase (Decrease) N Cash ....uiuecviviiiieiieciicreie ettt sttt eve e e ess e asean s eraesbe e 122.0 35.2) 26.4
Cash, Beginning 0f YEar.......occcuvuiirriieeeiieiri ettt ebe st sae et seean 0.4 35.6 92
Cash, ENA OF YEaI......covioii ittt ettt et cete e eesnsen et seteeeeesneessansesaesssestenssareens $ 1224 $ 04 $ 356

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009
(Dollars in Millions)

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
UNEETICOMIE .ecevieeeee ettt b ettt eae s st eaa e b bebesa s et esebessasasesnasssasesesnn $ 837 § 1846 $ 1647
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SubSidiaries ........coceeeeerrirreeierinrinrecesenercsiesreseseeneeaesaesnsseesesesnes 231.5 195.7 207.3
Securities Held by Parent...........ccoocoviiiiiicncceas 0.6 0.1 0.2
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SUbSIQIATIES ...coveveevereerierieerreeiereeie e eetesresereeeesaesiaseresseeaees (30.2) (18.8) 27.1
Securities Held by Parent..........cccevevirireciineciicciiienen oo essesseseesvessessessesnsseonas .7 — (0.3)
Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES)...cocoueuririrerieenirrcincce et vesesnese e 201.2 177.0 234.3
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year.........cccoceevveecnnee (53.9) 27.9) 31.2
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs .......ccoeverecrnenirecciinenennencs 8.7 1.2 (1.9)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs.........cooovvivveeiivniimecicnninncncnineecns 45.2) (26.7) 29.3
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments........ceceeceueueeueieeenieeriinenierenierenniennencsnerennesenns 04 (2.6) 1.7
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.......cccoecverecierenrnnen. — 2.1 0.1)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments........cccevueereiiurnererneinienecrecnieeeeeeeneesenns 0.4 (0.5) 1.6
Equity in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) of Subsidiary...........cccoeevevrenvinrrurinnee. — 2.9 (2.2)
Other Comprehensive Income before INCOme TaXes ....ccveveeecrerirenerenieriereeienieisesenennens 156.4 152.7 263.0
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SubsSidiaries .......c.ceeveverieecerieirinceisieeniecreerieeseies e csesesisieeene (82.3) (69.2) (73.2)
Securities Held bY Parent...........cccuvirreriiienieeeiinceiteenrteeesieetesree e eeesaessesseasaasssens 0.2) — 0.1)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held DY SubSIAIaries ........cceieeverierieniernieeniesreenceresasiesseseesessesaesessssvassens 10.7 6.6 (9.5)
Securities Held by Parent...........coovvveieieiinecinierierecseesreeeteeetnse e et sae e e saesasnnes 0.2 — 0.1
Unrealized Holding Gains (LLOSSES).......ceververieviereeerienririeeeeeressessesseseesesseseseesssessessssseses (71.6) (62.6) (82.7)
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year...........ccocveeveueneeee. 19.0 9.8 (11.3)
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COSts ......cccvecervevcrrcinieennrnnrenene. 3.1) 0.5) 0.6
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........coevvvrevveciniecinninicniieneceneneeeene 15.9 9.3 (10.7)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments.........coccoeeeeieceiieneriereniinneeenenenenressesnescnens 0.1) 1.0 0.6)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income........cccecoovreeenrennanen. — (0.8) —
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments.........coeeueeieerieeeriierineennenenenaneeseeeneeenens (0.1) 0.2 (0.6)
Equity in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) of Subsidiary.........c..cocccvrinevcverinnncnee — (1.0) 0.8
INCOME TAX EXPEIISE...c.oeivriruieieiirieriietirieecctee s te st e ae et e b st e e saresbessbesaesrnessessaessananen (55.8) 54.1H) (93.2)
Other Comprehensive INCOME .......coeviiriiiiiereriieeriectete ettt s e seeeeeseseeeene 100.6 98.6 169.8
Total Comprehensive INCOME. .........cccceeririieericreiir ettt ettt esae et e ae s enens $ 1843 §$ 2832 § 3345

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE III

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

(Dollars in Millions)
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
Insurance
Claims Amortization
and Of Deferred Deferred
Net Policy- Policy Other Policy
Premiums Other Investment holders’ Acquisition Insurance  Acquisition  Insurance Unearned

Premiums Written Income Income Benefits Costs Expenses Costs Reserves Premiums
2011
Preferred.......cccocveiveeivnceiiieceieceee, $ 8598 $ 8688 $ 03 $ 496 $ 7096 $ 1489 $ 905 $ 752 $ 4162 $ 435.9
SPECIalty ..c.covoveveieiieiieeee e 445.2 438.2 0.5 211 352.8 62.6 28.9 18.6 225.9 134.1
DIEECE ......voeiirineeeeietiteeie ettt 222.7 209.0 0.1 17.9 197.6 8.8 67.5 2.4 223.9 65.1
Life and Health (1) ..cooooevvvvveeeeeiiceeceee, 645.9 N/A 0.1 201.9 385.7 59.0 235.7 352.3 3,111.¢ 31.1
OUHET ..o — N/A —_ 75 — — (32.6) — 154.8 —
Total. ..o $2,173.6 N/A § 1.0 $ 2980 $1,645.7 $ 2793 § 390.0 $§ 4485 $4,131.8 $ 666.2
2010 - -
Preferred.......cccocvviivvnecineeeieeee $ 8880 $ 8722 $ 04 § 528 $ 6335 $ 1577 ' § 86.0 $ 737 $ 4205 § 4269
Specialty ......ccoeievninnieiieee e 474.9 4572 0.6 24.8 383.0 67.7 25.0 19.9 250.8 141.1
DIFECE. ....eceierecrcecrree ettt 282.4 269.3 0.1 214 2239 9.8 71.3 2.9 235.6 78.9
Life and Health (1) ....ccccooovirvriiiriiicinn 644.1 N/A 0.2 214.3 406.8 54.0 229.0 329.9 3,084.5 31.7
07111 SO — N/A — 12.4 — — (31.0) — 191.0 —
Total.....ooooiiiie e $2,2804 N/A § 1.3 § 3257 $1,6472 $ 2892 § 3863 $§ 4264 $4,1824 $ 678.6
2009 - - -
Preferred.......ccocoveiiimminnniineerieeeee $ 9318 $ 9183 § 04 $§ 421 % 6278 § 1673 $§ 93.0
Specialty .......ccccivererininriniieee e 527.5 5123 0.4 20.8 418.8 75.8 23.6
DATECT ...ttt e 345.6 320.3 0.9 18.5 269.1 7.3 99.7
Life and Health (1) ....ococovevvieiciienee. 650.6 N/A 0.7 2253 423.8 532 231.1
Other ... , — N/A 0.1 13.2 — — (29.8)
Total......c.coviiieccieeeieeeee e $ 2,455.5 N/A $ 25 $ 3199 $1,739.5 § 303.6 § 417.6

(1) The Company’s Life and Health Insurance employee-agents also market certain property and casualty insurance products under common management.
Accordingly, the Company includes the results of these property and casualty insurance products in its Life and Health Insurance segment.

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE 1V

KEMPER CORPORATION
REINSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009
(Dollars in Millions)

Percentage

Ceded to Assumed of Amount

Gross Other from Other Net Assumed to

Amount Companies Companies Amount Net
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Life Insurance in FOIrCe ......coiivireiiiirirreesieeeeereeenreeen s $21,627.8 $ 6620 $ 2569 $21,222.7 1.2%
Premiums -
Life INSUTANCE .....veoveerrereeieienreeieieneeresreemeersreeeesaennes $ 3943 $ 15 $ 23 § 3951 0.6%
Accident and Health Insurance...........cococvevevvvcninniinnnnnn, 166.5 0.3 0.1 166.3 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance ...........cccevveveuiceeesniienanes 1,609.8 38.9 413 1,612.2 2.6%
Total PrEMIUMS......cccoverrerieerrireeceereininresicneenenienesseessienennes $ 21706 $ 40.7 $ 43.7 § 2,173.6 2.0%
Year Ended December 31,2010 -
Life Insurance in FOICE ......ocvviiviiniiieniireecrecresessessecieennns $21,9094 $§ 6953 § 272.6 $ 21,486.7 1.3%
Premiums -
Life INSUTANCE .....cvevverrerrereereeiereeeieeereesesresnenesessnesesseneenens $ 3961 $ 20 § 27 $ 3968 0.7%
Accident and Health Insurance.......c.cccceeveveeecneccnncncane 162.0 0.3 0.1 161.8 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance ..........ccoevevereniiinniins 1,729.5 41.6 429 1,730.8 2.5%
Total PrEMIUMS......cvivveeeereieeeeerrenresreeeseesceeeseeneeneemeaeesnenenns $ 22876 $ 439 § 457 $ 2,289.4 2.0%
Year Ended December 31, 2009 -
Life Insurance in FOTCE .....oovvvvvmierieeiieeiieeteecieesneenceeieeieenee $21,9035 $§ 7826 $ 2889 §$21,409.8 1.3%
Premiums -
Life INSUTANCE .....ceevevirereeereereerceneeeeeeseeseseeseesneeseeniens $§ 3993 3§ 27 $ 31§ 3997 0.8%
Accident and Health Insurance.........ccccoovevvvvcnciinnnnninenn 159.1 0.1 0.2 159.2 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance ............ccovveveviririennnnennes 1,893.5 44.9 48.0 1,896.6 25%
TOtal PIEMIUINS.....ceveveienienenreeeeerrereeiesseieesessessessssssnsarssses $ 24519 3% 477 $ 513 § 2,455.5 2.1%

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE VI

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION CONCERNING PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE OPERATIONS

(Dollars in Millions)
Reservesdfor Claim and Claim Amortization
Unpai <
Deferred Clail:,l:: land A&L‘f:zg"ﬁg:gg:ss of Deferred Paid Claims
Policy Claim Net Policy and Claim
Acquisition Adjustment Unearned Earned Investment Current Prior Acquisition Adjustment  Premiums

Affiliation Costs Expenses Discount Premiums  Premiums Income Year Years Costs Expenses Written
Year Ended December 31, 2011
(a) Consolidated property casualty

entities $ 96.7 § 1,029.1 § — § 637.3 $ 16122 § 899 §$ 13385 § (35.0) $ 2270 % 1,360.6 $ 1,600.4
(b) Unconsolidated property casualty

entities $ — 3 — § — 3§ — § — § — 3 — 3 1.9 § — ¥ 308 $ —
Year Ended December 31, 2010
(a) Consolidated property casualty

entities $ 97.1 § 11187 § — 8 6494 § 1,7308 $ 1004 $ 13105 § (22.0) $ 2424 $ 13365 $ 1,684.2
(b) Unconsolidated property casualty

entities $ — 3 — $ — 3 — $ — $ — 3 — $ 29 $ — 8§ 924 3 —
Year Ended December 31, 2009
(a) Consolidated property casualty

entities $ 1,89%.6 § 833 § 14473 8§ (77.9) $ 2584 % 14612 § 11,8483
(b) Unconsolidated property casualty

entities $ — $ — 3 — § 3.0 $ — 8 50.1 § —

Amounts reported in (b) above represent amounts for Unitrin Business Insurance which is reported as a discontinued operation in the Company’s financial statements. The
Company has no 50%-or-less-owned property and casualty equity investees. Accordingly, amounts for category (c) are omitted from the table.

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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Exhibit 12

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF CONSOLIDATED RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Dollars in Millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes

and Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee $ 8.6 $ 2367 $ 2280 $ (647) $ 2928
Fixed Charges, Excluding Capitalized Interest 42.5 37.9 38.1 37.5 38.7
Earnings from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and

Fixed Charges $ 1251 § 2746 $§ 2661 $ (27.2) $§ 3315
Interest $ 406 $ 360 $ 361 $ 358 $ 37.0
Rental Factor 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.7 1.7
Capitalized Interest 2.6 1.8 0.7 1.3 0.3
Total Fixed Charges $ 451 $ 397 $ 388 $ 388 $§ 390
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (a) 2.8x 6.9x 6.9x b) 85x
(a) The ratios of earnings to fixed charges have been computed on a consolidated basis by dividing earnings from continuing

(b)

operations before income taxes and fixed charges by fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest on debt and a factor
for interest included in rent expense. Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and Equity in Net
Income (Loss) of Investee has the meaning as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Income included in this 2011
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Fixed charges exceeded earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and fixed charges by $66.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2008.



Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-58300, 333-4530, 333-38981,

333-86935, 333-76076, 333-87898, 333-127216 and 333-173877 on Form S-8 and Nos. 333-127215, 333-142722 and
333-170297 on Form S-3 of our report, dated February 17, 2012, relating to the consolidated financial statements

and the financial statement schedules of Kemper Corporation (formerly Unitrin, Inc.) and subsidiaries (the “Company”), and
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, (which report expresses an unqualified opinion and
includes an explanatory paragraph as to the changes in the Company’s method of recognizing and presenting
other-than-temporary impairments in 2009), appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation and
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 17, 2012



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Donald G. Southwell, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

Ld
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 17, 2012

/S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
L, Dennis R. Vigneau, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 17,2012

/S/ DENNIS R. VIGNEAU
Dennis R. Vigneau
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended
December 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Donald G.

Southwell, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Name: Donald G. Southwell
Title: Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Date:  February 17, 2012




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), Dennis R.
Vigneau, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/ DENNIS R. VIGNEAU
Name:  Dennis R. Vigneau
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 17, 2012
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